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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have aundited the accompanying Financial Statements of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial
Statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Ind A8 specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its financial performance including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As mentioned in Note no. 48 of the Financial Statement, the Company failed to make payment
prescribed as per One Time Settlement with a lender. As a result, event of default has occurred
and the entire debt prior to date of settlement become payable along with interest. The
Company has not reversed the gain recorded and provided for additional interest. Had the
Company reversed the gain recorded and provided for additional interest, exceptional item
would have been lower by Rs. 6604.55 Lakh and finance cost would have been higher Rs.
3500.76 Lakh having consequential impact on total comprehensive income, liabilities and other

equity.

We conducted our andit in accordance with the Standards on Anditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the note no. 46 of the financial statement, which indicates that company
has incurred a net loss of Rs. 41,83.51 Lakh during the year ended 31# March 2019 and as of that
date, company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 294,49.72 Lakh, it is unable
to meet its financial obligations and as of that date it’s accumulated losses is resulting in negative
net worth. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in the aforesaid note, indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Arshiya Limited, the Parent Company, has given a support letter to
extend, for the foreseeable future, any financial support which may be required by company.
Further, in view of various steps taken by the management, future outlook as assessed by the
management and the business plans and in lieu of the support letter from the Parent Company,
the management has assessed company continues to be going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of the said matter.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note no. 52 of the statement regarding the balance confirmations of
borrowings, trade receivables, trade payables and loans and advances. During, the course of
preparation of financial statements, e-mails/letters have been sent to various parties by the
respective companies with a request to confirm their balances directly to us out of which only few
parties have responded, accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required in the financial
statements will be accounted as and when the same is determinable. Our Opinion is not modified
in respect of the said matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Anditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the director report (but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. -

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this aunditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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When we read the director report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there under.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

reparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Process.

Anditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
Professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 2200 4
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e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safegnards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”),
and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
«Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

>,  PFurther to our comment in the Annexure A, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we
report that:

a. We have songht and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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b. Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph above, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules there under;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as
on 31% March, 2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of
the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

£ The matters described in the paragraphs above “Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern”, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”;

h. The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above;

i. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
" to us, the provisions of section 197 of the act is not applicable to the company since no
managerial remuneration is paid / provided.

Confinuation sheet...
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j. ‘With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Anditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company, as detailed in Note no. 34(ii) (d and e) and 35 to the financial
statements has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position.

ii. 'The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

iii.,. ‘'There is no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

i,
i

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27/05/2019

Continuation sheet...
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
RegulatoryRequirements”ofourreportofevendatetothemembersoftheA.rshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019)

@) In respect of fixed assets:-

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the Company has physically verified fixed assets, in accordance
with a phased program of verification, which in our opinion is reasonable, having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification as compared with the
available records.

{(¢) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us and on
the basis of our examination of available records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(i) Inrespect of its inventories:-
The Company does not have any inventory at year end. Therefore, the provisions of
paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provision of paragraph 3
(iif) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of providing guarantees. The company has not given any loan,
made investment and securities.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
notified. During the year, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other
Tribunal. ' '

(vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is
required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in
respect of services rendered. We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records wiik-g
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. TR
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(vii) (a) According to the records of the company and information and explanations given
to us, the Company has generally been regular except slight delays in few cases, in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, goods and service tax, cess and
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities as applicable during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of such statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2019 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except Tax
deducted at Source and Service Tax amounting to Rs. 86.88 Lakh and Rs. 610.48
Lakh, respectively and interest on tax deducted at source and interest on service tax
amounting to Rs. 158.32 Lakh and Rs. 427.57 Lakh, respectively.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined. by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and goods and service tax, which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as mentioned below:-

(Rs. In Lakh)
Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to | Forum where
Statute Dues Disputed (net | which Dispute is Pending
of amount | Dispute '
deposited)* Relates
The Finance Act, | Service tax 20.58 | FY 2011-2012 | Commissioner of
1994 and 2012-2013 | Service Tax (Appeal 1)
Penalty on 25.82 | FY 2011-2012 | Commissioner of
Service tax and 2012-2013 | Service Tax (Appeal 1)
Total 46.40

*net of Rs. 5.14 Lakh paid under protest.

(vil)  According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings to any financial institution or bank as at balance sheet date except as
mentioned below. There are no dues to debenture holders and government as at the
balance sheet date.

Continuation sheet...
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Defaults in respect of bank and financial institutions are as under:-
(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars Amount of continuing Period of Default
default as on 31st March,
2019
Principal Interest
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction - 1378.00 | Financial Year 2017-2018
Company Limited- through - 1,651.87 | Financial Year 2018-2019
Various trust
EARC-Rupee term loan 2,060.00 200.64 | Financial Year 2018-2019
Corporation Bank - 676.15 | Financial Year 2013-2014
142.50 616.80 | Financial Year 2014-2015
2,586.46 725.71 | Financial Year 2015-2016
- 901.75 | Financial Year 2016-2017
- 1,059.67 | Financial Year 2017-2018
1,303.57 | Financial Year 2018-2019
Bank of India 2,840.00 188.64 | Financial Year 2018-2019
Karur Vysya Bank Limited 22.50 - | Financial Year 2012-2013
v5.00 288.90 | Financial Year 2013-2014
1,35.00 250,72 | Financial Year 2014-2015
1,109.14 910.23 | Financial Year 2015-2016
- 385.48 | Financial Year 2016-2017
- 452.98 | Financial Year 2017-2018
1,120.39 | Financial Year 2018-2019
Total 9,870.60 11,710.50
(ix}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise

any moneys by way of initial public
instruments). During the year company
for the purpose for which it is raised.

(x)

offer, further public offer (including debt
has raised term loan which have been applied

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,

carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and

according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
by the Company or on the Company by its

or reported during the year,

across any instance of material fraud
officers or employees, noticed

informed of any such case by the Management.

(xi)

nor have we been
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(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable
to it the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with
the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section
133 of the Act,

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

(/P“’ J‘woW/

Vijay Napawaliya
Pariner
Membership No. 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27/05/2019

Continuation shest...
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Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requiremen ” of our report of even date to the members of the Arshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31*
March 2019.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the

ing of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Andit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
finaneial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management, directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
agsets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate. '

Continuation sheet..,
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Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit of test of
controls, in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31¢ March, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Andit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

P

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place; Mumbai
Date: 27/05/2019

Confinuation shest...



ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 44,322.37 47,856.82
() Intangible Assets 6 2,825.28 3,223.16
{d} Financial Assets
{i} Other Financial Assets 7 663,64 818.60
{e} Other Non-Current Assets 8 1,335.26 1,227.72
49,146.55 53,126.20
Current assets .
{a) Inventories 9 - 15.66
{b) Financial Assets
1) Trade Recelvables 10 1,323.33 " 666.59
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1n 120,24 375.35°]
(H1) Bank Batances Other than {If) above 12 267.30 386.16
{iv} Other Financial Assets 13 322.37 348.59
{c} Other Current Assets 14 133.81 308.46
2,167.05 2,100.81
TOTAL ASSETS 51,313.60 55,227.11
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 1
(a} Equity Share capital 15 4,238.44 4,238.44
(b) Other Equity 16 ~_ (1810713} {14,073.62
(13,958.69) (9,235.38)
Liabilities ¥
non Curvent Liabillties .
ta) Financial Uabilitles
{t} Borrowings 17 31,902.67 33,538,04
{b} Provisions is 120.52 ' - 1642
{c} Other Non-Current Liabilities 19 1,632.32 1,723.69
33,655.51 35,278.15
Current Liabillitles ‘o
{a) Financial Llabilities ,
(i) Borrowings 20 304.38 2,029.26,
{ii) Trade Payables 21
{A) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 15.77 5.24
{B)Total outstanding dues of creditors Other than Micro and : =
Small Enterprises 1,307.44. 620.88
{iii) Other Financial Liabllitles 22 28,103.68 25,206.84
(b) Other Current Liabllitles 23 1,874.90 1,918.23
{c) Provisions 24 10.61 3.69
31,616.78 29,784.14
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 51,313.60 55,227.11
Notes to the financlal statements 157
As per our Repork of even date 5
For Chaturveds & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of "‘"-:*-\
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rail Infrastructure timited ;;} f R ‘o\

Finm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

o

vija} Napawaliya
Partner
Membership Number. 109859

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019

Ajay S Mittal Nawnit Choudhary .
Director Director

DIN : 00226355 DIN ; 00613576

Am upta pakkumar Lakhani

Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

INCOME
Revenue from operations 25 13,614.83 13,598.32
Other income: 26 641.87 1,459.39
Total Income {I) : 14,256.70 15,057.71
EXPENSES
Cost of operations 27 11,400.27 11,507.38
Employee benefits expenses 28 1,121.91 826.79
finance costs 29 7.015.57 8,018.94
Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 4,099.64 4,130.61
QOther expenses 31 1,253.59 895.48
Total Expenses (It} 24,890.98 25,379.20
Loss before exceptional items and tax [1-11) {10,634.28} {10,321.49}
Exceptional items {Net) 32 {6,475.186) 424.26
Loss before tax (4,159.12) {10,745.75)
Tax expense: 45
Current tax . - -
Deferred tax - -
Loss for the year (4,159.12) {10,745.75}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OC1)
{tem not 1o be reclassified to profit and loss 3
Remeasurement of gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans 37 {24.39) 7.19
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {4,183.51) {10,738.56
Earnings per Equity shares {Face Value Rupeds 10 each) 33
Basic/ Diluted earnings per share (In Rupees) {9.81} {25.35)
Notes to the financlal statements 1-57
As per our Report of even date
Eor Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshlya Rail infrastructure Limited
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

A Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 15)

(Rupees in lakhs}

oy "

Equity Shares of Rupees 10 each issued, subscribed and paid up
As at Aprll 1, 2017

Equlty Shares 4,238.44
Issue of equity share during the year -
As at March 31, 2018 4,238.44
Equity Shares 4,238.44
Issue of equity share durlng the year -
As at March 31, 2019 4,238.44

B Other Equity {(Refer Note 16)

atAprll 1,2017

(43,189.57)]

{Ru ees in lakhs)

1,564.45 (3,330.44)
Loss for the year - {10,745.75) - - {10,745.75)
Other comprehenslve income - 7.19 - - 7.19
Total comprehensive income for the year - {10,738.56} - - {10,738.56})
Fair valuation of financial guarantees given - (4.62) - - (4.62}
As at March 31, 2013 38,123.31 {53,932.75) 1,564.45 171.37 {14,073.62)
Loss for the year - {4,159.12) - - {4,159.12)
Other comprehensive income - {24.39} - - {24.39)
Total comprehensive income for the year - {4,183.51) . - {1,183.51)
Fair valuation of financial guarantees given - - 60.00 - 60.00
As at March 31, 2019 38,123.31 {58,116.26) 1,624.45 171.37 {18,197.13)
Notes to the financial statements 1-57

As per our Report of even date
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss for the year befora tax (4,159.12) {10,745.75)
Adjustments for ;

Depreclation and amortization expenses 4,099.64 4,130.61
Interest Income {21.109 {29.38)
Loss on sale/discarded Property, plant and equipment - 182,79
Gain on sale of investment - {5.00)
Sundry Balances Written Back {net) (245.67) {614.53)
Finance Expense 7,015.57 8,018.94
Bad Debts Writtan off - 101.36
Settlement of Claims {6,475.16) 302.54
Unwinding of Interest on loan to related party - {476.14)
Eair value of financial Instruments (5.76) {1.28)
Government grant — income {365.49} {365.49)
Financial Guarantee income {3.85) {0.77}
Advance rent 6.13 145
OPERATING FROFIT / {LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES {154.81) 499,35
AdJustments for

Trade & other payables 640.92 {817.42)
Inventorles 15.66 0.067
Trade & other receivables {483.73) 1,532.56
CASH GENERATED FROM COPERATIONS 18.04 1,214.56
Direck Tax {Paid)/ Refunds {113.22) 24,58
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACT VITIES Total [A) i95.18} 11239.14
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {167.78} {295.31)
Purchase of intanglble assets - {500.00)
purchase of Investment {77.69) -
Proceeds from Sale of Investment 196.55 31.85
Proceeds from $ale of Property, Plant and Equipment 047 )
[mterest Income 21.10 29.38
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIITIES Total (8) {27.35) {734.08)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceads from borrowlngs - Non current 2,960.00 3,220.74
Repayment of borrowings - Non current {1,060.00) {3,756.60)
Borrowing - current {Net} {1,788.58} 1,402.08
Interest paid on borrowings {244.00) {1,172.85)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Total [C) {132.58) [306.63}
Net Increase/{Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents {A+8+C) {255.11) 198.43
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 375.35 176.92
Cash and Cash Equivalents st the beginning of the year 120.24 375.35
Cash and Cash Equivalents &t the end of the year 120.24 375,35
*Nota: Changes in liabilitles arlsing from financing activities :

Particulars March 31, 2018 Cash flow INDAS Impact Othar non cash March 31, 2019

adjustmant

Long term borrowing {Refer Note no. 17 & 22) 42,469.34 1,900.00 144.94 996,38 43517.90
Short term borrowing (Refer Note ne. 20) 2,020.26 {1,788.58) 63.70 - 304.38
Notes to the financlal statements 157
As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

CORPORATE INFORMATION:
Arshlya Rail Infrastructure Limited {CIN : U93000MH2008PLC180907) Is a public company domiciled in India and Is Incorporated on April 7, 2008 under

the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate
F-Black, Dr. Annle Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400 018. '

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (ARIL) Is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited (AL}, AL is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. In
April 2008, AL acquired a Category-l ficense to operate a pan-indla rail loglstic service, giving rise to ARIL. ARIL is a specialized entity of AL, offering
unprecedented rall infrastructure, including private modern rakes, customlzed contalners, Private Frelght Terminal {PFT), pan-India network and
superior connectivity. The company s engaged In Private Container Train Operator (PCTO) business and Is holding Category-l license which allows the
company to operate on Indian Rall network on pan Indla basls both Domestic and Exim Trafflc. ARIL's unique offering provide unparalleled efficiencies
with capabllity of large scale evacuation of cargo from Ports, Domestic Distriparks, Free Trade and Warehousing Zones , Inland Container Depot (ICD}
and customer Sidings.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were approved and adopted by board of directors in their meeting held
on 27th May 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies
{indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act").

The Company prepared its financlal statements in accordance the Indian Accounting Standards {IND A%} are notifled under the section 133 of the
Companles Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP),

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain financlal assets and liabilities, which are measured at
falr value/ amortised cost.

The financlal statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.}, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded
to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENT:

Proparty, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase
price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to the bringing the assets to its working condition for its Intended use.

Depreclation on the property, plant and equipment 1s provided using straight Hne method over the useful life of assets as specifled in schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013. Depreclation on property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed off durlng the year, Is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the date of addition / deletlon. Freehold land is not depreciated and under the previous GAAP land was revalued.

The asset's residual values, useful llves and method of depreclation are reviewed at each financial year end and are adjusted prospectively, If
appropriate. !

Capltal work-in-progress Includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation [ under development as at the halance sheet date.

Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the period of lease.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financlal statement, either on disposal or when retired from active use, Profits / losses arlsing in
the case of retirement / disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence,

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of Its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the Indian GAAP financial
staterments as deemed cost at the transition date Le. April 1, 2016.

Intangible Assets :

Intangible assets are carrled at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, If any. Cost includes expenditure that 1s
dlrectly attributable to the acquisition of the Intangible assets.

tdentifiable Intangible assets are recognised when it Is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the
cost of the asset ¢an be reliably measured.

Railways License fees is amortised over a period of twenty years being the license perlod as per agreemaent,

Computer softwares are capitalised at the amounts pald to acquire the respective license for use and are amertised over the period of five years. The
assets’ useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end. .

Gains or losses arsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the assetis derecognised.

The Company has opted to continue with the canrying values of all of its intangible assets as recognised In the Indlan GAAP financlal statements as
deemed cost at the transition date Le. April 1, 2016.

Leases:
A lease Is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to gwnership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

The Company as a lessee

Finance lease

Assets acquired under finance lease are capltalized and the corresponding lease llabliity Is recognised at lower of the fair value of the leased assets and
the present value of minimum lease payments at the Inception of the lease. initial costs directly attributable to lease are recognised with the asset
under lease.

Operating lease
Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classifled as operating lease. Lease payments
under operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basls In accordance with the respective lease agreements.

Tha Company a$ a lessor

Finance lgase

Whan assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments is recognised as a receivable, The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable Is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income Is recognised aver the
term of the lease using the net investment method before tax, which reflects a constant perlodic rate of return.

The lessor derecognises the leased assets and recognises the difference between the carrylng amount of the leased assets and the finance lease
recelvable In the statement of Profit and Loss when recognising the finance lease receivable.

Operating lease
Rental income from operating leases Is recoghised In the statement of profit and loss on a stralght line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless
another systematic basis is more rep resentative of the time pattern In which economic benefits from the leased assets is diminished.

Initial indirect costs Incurred in negotiating and arranging as operating lease are added to carrying value of the leased asset and recognlsed on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

inventories:
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventorles comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their respective present locatlon and conditlon, Cost is computed on the First in first out basls.

Cash and cash equivalants:
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposlts with an original maturity of three months
o less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equlvalents consist of cash and short-term deposlts, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are consldered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

impalrment of assets:

An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet, there are indlcations of impairment and the carrylng amount of the asset, or
where applicable, the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the net asset selling price and
value in use).The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction 1s recognized as an impairment loss In the statement of
profit and loss. The impairment loss recoghized in the prior accounting period is reversed If there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable
amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impalred asset over Its remaining useful life.

Financial instruments — Initlal recognition, subsequent measurement and Impairment:
A financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financlal llability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financlal assets -Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initlally recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financlal assets,
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Financlal assets are classifled, at Initial recognition,
as financial assets measured at fair value or as financlal assets measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement:
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
a) Financlal assets at fair value
Financial assets at amortlsed cost
m.assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss {i.e fair value through profit
recognised In other comprehensive Income {i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income).
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions Is measured at amortisad cost {net of any write down for impairment} unless the asset is
deslgnated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a} Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is ta hold the financial asset to coliect the contractual cash flow,
b} Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on speclfied dates to cash fiow that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions Is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the asset is designated
at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a) Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and
selling financial assets.

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Ali other financial asset Is measured at falr value through profit or loss.

Financlal assets - Equity Investment in subsidiarles
The Company has accounted for its equity investment in subsidlaries at cost.

Financial assets - Derecognition

A financlal assets {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (l.e. removed
from the Company's statement of financial position) when:

a) The rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have explred, or
b) The Company has transferred its rights to recelve cash flow from the asset,

Financlal Habilities - Initial recognition and measurement:
The financial llabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, In the case of loans and borrowings, net of direcdy attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabllitles - Subseguent measurement:
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effactlve interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one
year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are approximate at their fair value due to the short maturlty of these Instruments.

Financlal Liabllitles - Financial Guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss itincurs
because the specified debtor falls to make a payment when due In accordance with the terms of a debt instrurnent. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised Initlally as a liabllity at fair value, adjusted for transactlon costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liabllity is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation.

Financial Liabilities - Derecognition:

A financlal liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or explres. When an existing financlal liability 1s
replaced by another, from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabllity are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new llabllity. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Compound Instruments

An issued financlal Instrument that comprises of both the llabllity and equity components are accounted as compound financial instruments. The fair
value of the liability component is separated from the compound Instrument and the residual value is recognised as equity component of other
finandial instrument. The liability component is subsequently measured at amortised cost, whereas the equity component is not remeasured after
initial recognition. The transaction costs related to compound Instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in the proportion to the
allocation of gross proceeds. Transaction costs related to equity companent is recognised directly in equlty and the cost related to liability component
is included in the carrying amount of the liability componant and amortised using effectlve interest meathod.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Provisions, Contingent Llabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. It is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
vbligation. If the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period government securities interest rate.
Unwinding of the discount Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provislons are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
are ad]usted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilitles are disclosed when there s a possible obllgation arlsing from past events, the existence of which wlill be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where It is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made. Information on contingent llabllity ls disclosed In the Notes to the Financial Statements, However, when the realisation of Income Is virtually
certaln, then the related asset is no longer @ contingent asset, but it Is recognised as an asset,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of goods (equipment) or rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

Income from services Is recognized upon completion of services as per the terms of contracts with the customers.
Revenue Is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, price concesslons and Incentives, If any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers, ’

Amounts billed for services In accordance with contractual terms but where revenug is not recognized, have been classifled as unearned revenue and
disclosed under current liabliitles

Contract assats are recognized when there Is excess of revenue earned over blllings on contracts. Contract assets are classlfied as unbllted recelvables
(only act of invalcing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receilve cash, and only passage of time Is required, as per contractual terms.
Unearned revenue ("contract llabllity”) Is recognized when therg is billlng in excess of revenues.

Revenue Is measured at the amount of consideration which the company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or
services 1o a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties {for example taxes and dutles collected on
behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a recelvable is recognized when it
becomes uncenditlonal.

Revenue fron sale of sarvices e.g rail freight Income recognised as per the terms of contracts with customers based on stage of completion when the
outcome of the transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. For Fixed-price contract, revenue is recognised based on the
actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to provided (Percentage of completion method)

Measement of revenue : Estimates of revenues, cost or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change.Any resulting
increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period In which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by management.

Revenue from handling and other ancillary services Is recognised at the time of rendering of service which is at the time of loading/unloading of
container/cargo.

Contract balances
Trade receivables
A recelvable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract liabllities

A contract liability Is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made. Contract llabllities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Interest Income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can he measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective Interest rate
applicable, which (s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend Income:
Dividend Income |5 recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Forelgn currency relnstatement and translation:

Transactions In foreign currencles are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Subsequently monetary
[tems are transiated at closing exchange rates as on balance sheet date and the resulting exchange difference recognised in statement of profit and
loss. Differences arising on settiement of monetary items are also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction. Non-monetary items carried at falr value that are denominated in foreign currencles are translated at the exchange rates prevalling at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on Items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in 0C1 or profit or 10ss, respectively}.

Forelgn exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing casts are presented In the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All
other finance galns / losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Employee Benefits:
Shart term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related services are rendered.

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made In accordance with the statute, and Is recognised as an expense in the year in
which employees have rendered services.

Defined Benefit Plan

Leave encashment belng a defined benefit plan is accounted for using the projected unit credit method, on the basis of actuartal valuations carrled out
by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarlal gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive Income In the year in which they arlse. Other costs are accounted in statement of profit
and loss.

The cost of providing gratulty, a defined benefit plans, Is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the basis of actuarial valuations
carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date, Actuarlal gains and losses arlsing from experlence ad]ustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the perled In which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of
profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the other comprehensive income
In the year In which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Taxes on Income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax {including MAT and income tax for earlier years) and deferred tax . Tax is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to ltems recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the
tak Is also recognised directly in equity or In other comprehensive Income. Any subsequent change In direct tax on items initially recognised in equity
or other comprehenslve Income Is also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax provision Is computed for income calculated after considering allowances and exemptions under the provisions of the applicable Income
Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Deferred tax Is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet and the correspending tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it Is probable that future
taxable profits will be avallable against which thuse deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are measured at the applicable tax rates. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wili be avallable against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there Is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax during
the speclfied period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit Is allowed to be carvied forward, In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognised as an asset, the sald asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitiement. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the canrying amount of MAT credit entltlement to the extent there is no
longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified perled.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs specifically refating to the acquisition or constructlon of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantlal period of time to get
ready for its Intended use are capitalized {net of income on temporarily deployment of funds} as part of the cost of such assets. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that the Company incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borrowlng used for the purpose of
obtaining a gualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtalning a qualifylng asset. The amount of borrowing
costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowlng costs are expensed in
the period in which they occur.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share Is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the sha rehalders’ and welghted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity and
potentlal equity shares outstanding during the year including share options, convertitle preference shares and debentures, except where the result
would be anti-dilutive, Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are included In the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the
beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of converslon,

Current and non-current classification:

The Company presents assets and liabllities In statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification.

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current llabilities and current liabllitles in accordance with
schedule l1I, Division 1l of Companies Act, 2013,

An asset Is classified as current when it 1s:

a} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reporting perlod, or

d) Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricted from belng exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All ather assets are classified as non-current.

A llability 1s classified as current when It is:

a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabllity for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All ather liabilitles are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reallsation in cash or cash equivalents, Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The Company has identified twelve months as Its normal operating cycle,

Falr value measurement:

The Company measures financial Instruments at falr value at each balance sheet date.

Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabllity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Tiability takes place
elther:

2) In the prineipal market for the asset or llability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
Its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximlzing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable Inputs.

All assets and liabillties for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorized within the falr value hierarchy.

Off-setting financial Instrument:

Financial assets and Habilities are offset and the net amount Is reported In the balance sheet where there Is a legally enforceable rights to offset the

recognised amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneousty. The legally enforceable

rights must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
pishe Comparty or counterparty.
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Governmeant Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at thelr fair value where there 1s a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the company
wlll comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income,

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current llabilitles as deferred Income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

Segment Reporting - identification of Segments

An operating segment Is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose
operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating declslon maker to make decisions for which discrete financial information is
available. Based on the management approach as defined In Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company’s performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance Indicators by business segments and geographlc segments.

Contributed Equity
Equity Shares are classified as equity, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction
net of tax from the proceeds. )

Cash flow statemant

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the avallable information.

Dividend Distribution

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders Is recognised as a llability in the period In which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid Is recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised
directly In other equity.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS:

The preparation of the financlal statements reguires management to make Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabillties, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitles. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or llabilities affected in future
periods. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and llabilities within the next financlal year, are described below. The Company
based on its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However, exlsting circumstances and
assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arlsing that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are refiected In the assumptions when they occur,

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets:

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values as per schedule |l of the Companles Act, 2013 or are based on the Company’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.

Income Tax:
The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrylng amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used In estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to an adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Contingencies:
Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations agalnst the Company as it is not possible to predict the cutcome of pending matters with accuracy.

impairment of financial assats:

The Impairment provislons for financlal assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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Impalrment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether thare is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or Cash Generating Units {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and Its value in use. It is determined for an Individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent to those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the camrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds Its recoverable amount, the assetls considered impalred and Is written down to its recoverable amount.

in assessing value In use, the estimated future cash fiows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the tme value of money and the risks specific to the asset. !n determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. i no such transactions can be identifled, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other avallable falr value indicators.

Definad beneflts plans:

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligation are determined using actuarlal valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary Increases, mortallty rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved In the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined ‘henefit
obfigation Is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recoverabliity of trade recelvable:

Sudgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those recelvables is
required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticlpated future payments and any possible
actlons that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provisions:

Provisions are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events
and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change, Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisions and llabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances. '

Fair value measurement of financial Instruments :

when the fair value of financial assets and financial labllitles recorded In the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices In actlve
markets, their fair vaiue is measured using vaiuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow {DCF} model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this 1s not feasible, a degree of judgement is required In establishing falr values. Judgements
include conslderations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factars could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments. .
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-

“m.dma n!.l._...a Value ]

As at April 1, 2017 15,138.35 309.52 25,507.44 10.74 3591 2.21 14,283,94 55,288.61
Additions 204.81 40.92 - - - 49.60 295.33
|Disposals - {261.08) {3.80) - 1.1z} - {266.00)
Other Adjustments {8.32) - 832 - -

As at March 31, 2018 15,343.66 309.52 25,278.96 6.94 44.23 1.09 14,333.54 55,317.94
Additions 41.37 - - 072 55.03 70.66 167.78
Disposals - {8.33) - - {8.33)
Other Adjustments - -

As at March 31, 2019 15,343.66 309.52 25,320.33 6.94 35.90 181 14,388.57 70.66 55477.39
Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2017 63.11 2,546.51 1.95 707 0.02 1,154.50 3,773.16
Lcou_,mn.mnos for the year 5342 2,547.88 195 5.67 - 1,157.25 3,766.17
Deductions - (81.05) {1.14) 4,00 {0.02) - {78.21)
A at March 31, 2018 116.53 5,013.34 2.76 16.74 2,311.75 746112
Depreciation for the year 3.11 2,530.42 132 5.06 Q.12 1,159.97 1.76 3,701.76
Deductions - - - {7.86) - - - {7.86)
As at March 31, 2019 119.64 7,543.76 4.08 13.94 0.12 3,471.72 L.76 11,155.02
Net Qﬂil._.m.cﬁ_cm as at March 31, 2019 15,343.66 189.88 17,776.57 2.86 21.96 1.69 10,916.35 68.90 44,322.37
[Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 15,343.66 192.99 20,265.62 4.18 22.49 1.09 12,021.79 - 47,856.82

been impaired in accordance

Note :-In accordance with the tndian Accounting

g Stapgard (IND AS -36) on " Impaimment of Assets”, the mangement during the year carried out an exercise of identifying the assets that may have
SRR DRspy the management, there was no impairment loss of property, plant and equipment during the year ended March 31, 2019.




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
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Gross Carrying Value

As at April 1, 2017 213,31 3,208.33 3,421.64
Additions 500.00 - 500.00
Disposals - . .
As at March 31, 2018 713.31 3,208.33 3,921.64
Addltions - - -
Disposals . . ]
As at March 33, 2019 71331 3,208.33 3,921.64

| Accumutated Amortisation
As at April 1, 2017 84.03 250,00 334,03
Amortisation for the year 114.61 249.84 364.45
Deductlons - . )
As at March 31, 2018 198.64 499.84 698.48
Amortisatlon for the year 148.04 24984 397.88
Deductions - ) )
As at March 31, 2019 346.68 749.68 1,096.36
Net Camying value as at March 31, 2019 366.63 2,458.65 2,825.28

[Met Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 514.67 2,708.4% 3,223.16
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Financial assets carrled at amortised cost

57.88

Security Deposits 14.21
Financlal Guarantee 605.76 804,39
Total 663.64 818.60

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecred, considered good unless otherwise stated

{pees in lakhs)

Stores and Spares

Capiltal Advances 869.64 864.64
Advances other than Capital advances
- Other Advances - gratulty (Refer Note 37) - 10.05
- Prepaid Rent 1.89 3.79
- TOS Recelvable 458.59 345.37
- Service tax pald under protest 5.14 3.87
Total 1,335.26 1,227.72
INVENTORIES

_ {Rupees in Jakhs)

15.66

Total

15.66

Trade Recelvables consldered good - Secured - .

Trade Recelvables considered good - Unsecured 1,323.33 666,59

Trade Receivable which have Significant Increase in Credit Risk 29.11 4.39
Trade Receivable credit Impaired - .

1,352.44 670.98

Less: Provision for expected credit loss 29,11 439

29.11 4.39

Total 1,323.33 666.59
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satances with banks in current accounts 119.96 375.29
Cash on hand 0.28 0.06
Total 120.24 375.35

12 CURRENT ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCES

Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money 258,12 357.68
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit ' 9.18 28.48
Total 267.30 386.16

13 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security Deposits 73.44 111.83
Financial Guarantee 248.93 336.76
Total 322.37 348.59

14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advances other than Capital advances
- Advances to Related Parties . 0.23
- Advances to Suppllers 39.84 81.34
- Advances to Employees 2.87 . 16.58
-Others 16.54 15.55

Others

- Other recelvable 35.66 3566
- Prepaid expenses 1.54 2.02
- Balance with Government Authorlty 37.36 157.08
Total 133.81 308.46




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019

{Rupees In lakhs}
15

i} Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares
4,36,50,000 (As at March 31, 2018: 4,36,50,000) Equity shares of Rupees 10 each 4,365.00 4,365.00
Preference Shares
13,50,000 {As at March 31, 2018: 13,50,000) Preference Shares of Rupees 10 each 135.00 135.00
Total 4,500.00 4,500.00

i) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
4,23,84,417 (As at March 31, 2018: 4,23,84,417) Equity Shares of Rupees 10 each 4,238.44 4,238.44

Total 4,238.44 4,238.44

1i) Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year;

Equity $hare Capltal
Equity shares of Rupees 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully pald
At Aprll 1, 2017 4,23,84,417 4,238.44

Issued durlng the year - .

At March 31, 2018 4,23,84,417 4,238.44

tssued during the year - -
At March 31, 2019 4.23,84,417 4,238.44

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rupees 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share, The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting.

in the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

Jil. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

) qu shares of Rupees 10 each fully
paid
Arshiya Limited {(Holding Company } 4,23,83,817 4,23,83,817
Shares held by Nominee and jointly 100.00 100.00
shareholders 600 600
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Rupeas in lakhs)

Securitles Premium Account 38,123.31 38,123.31
Retained Earnings (58,116.26) {53,932.75)
Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company 1,624.45 1,564.45
Equity Component of lean from Parent Company 17137 171.37

Total (18,197.13) (14,073.62)

a) Securities Premium Account

Rupees in lakhs}

Openlng balance
Add: On Issue of Equity shares

Closing Balance

38,123.31

38,123.31

b) Retained Earning
Opening balance {53,932.75) (43,189.57)
Add/{Less):
Net Profit/{Loss) for the year (4,159.12) {10,745.75)
Other comprehensive income {24.39) 7.19
Equity component of Guarantee gliven - {4.62)
Closing halance {58,116.26) (53,932.75)
ponent of Guarantes g by Parent Company Rupees in lakhs)

Equity Component of Guarantee glven by Parent Company

Opening balance 1,564.45 1,564.45
Add/(Less): Transaction during the year 60.00 -
|_Closing balance 1,624.45 1,564.45

(d} Nature & purpose of Reserves

Securltles Premium Account:

Securities premium reserve represents the amount recelved in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation

of the securities premium reserve is governed by the Provision of Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings :

Retained Earnings are the profits/losses of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company:

The fair value of financlal guarantees given to the lenders of the Company by the Parent Company Is recognised as a

deemed equity component.

Equity Component of loan from Parent Company:

Bamed equity component by the Parent Company.

g pf considering complete market Interest rates adjusted to the facts and circumstances reld

mputation of the falr vaiue benefit, the Company has estimated the fair value of the fina J?k
i§
L)

e difference between the fair value of Interest free loans on the date of Issue and the transition price is recognised as a
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17 NON CURRENT BORROWINGS (Rupses in lakhs)

Secured

-Term Loans
Erom Others (refer note 17.1 below) 31,902.67 33,538.04

Total 31,902.67 33,538.04

17.1 Rupee term loan from other parties :-
- Rupee term loans {including current maturity) of Rupees 33,647.31 lakhs {March 31, 2018 : Rupees 33,538.04
lakhs) are secured by
{1) Details of Security
i. First charge on all movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipment's) and immovable properties of the
company both present and future on pari passu basis,
ii. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the company on pari passu basis.
jli. Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promoters.

iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company.
v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

{2} Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from others 10% p.a. compounded quarterly,

(3} Terms of repayment :-

ees Inlakhs) _

".'-.\.'-‘."!Fb':":!.-:.r!.; .

1,744.63 |

2015-2020

2020-2021 6,139.1%

2021-2022 2,276.52

2022-2023 23,954.16
Total 34,114.50

{4) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off of incidental cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees 467.19
lakhs for March 31, 2019 and Rupees 612.13 lakhs for March 31, 2018.
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18 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Provislon for employee benefits

Rupees In lakhs)

Gratuity {Refer Note 37) 72.03 -
Leave encashment {Refer Note 37) 48.49 16.42
Total 120.52 16.42

19 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Government Grants 1,632.32 1,723.69
Total 1,632.32 1,723.69

20 CURRENT BORROWINGS

I IPUTARE

{Rupees in lakhs)

"~ Unsecu
Loans from Holding Company (refer note 20.1 below & Note 41) 304.38 2,029.26
Total 304.38 2,029.26
20.1 Interest free loan upto 1 year and repayabie on demand.
=T
SN

LS
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21 CURRENT LIABILITIES- TRADE PAYABLES

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises {Refer note 39 & 52)
Total outstanding dues of creditors Other than Micro and Small Enterprises

{Refer Note 52)

15.77
1,307.44

Total

1,323.21

22  OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Finandal Liabilities at amortised cost
Current maturities of long term borrowlngs
Term Loans from banks (Refer Note 22.1)* 6,910.60 8,931.30
Term Loans from others {Refer Note 17.1 8 22.2) 4,704.64 .
Interest accrued and due on borrowings** 11,710.49 13,183.84
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3,280.15 1,370.35
Security Deposht 41.44 57.64
Financial Guarantee - 3.85
Others
Project Creditors{ Refer Note 35 & 52) 95828 1,054.01
Employee's Dues *** 216.98 103.55
Payable for Expenses 280.10 502.26
Total 28,103.68 25,206.84

* Include Loan aggregating to Rupees 6,910.60 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 8,931.30 lakhs} recalled by banks.
**|nclude Interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggregating to Rupees 8,289.98 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 11,893.70 lakhs)

recalled by bariks.
»¥nclude Interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggregating to Rupees 390.64 lakhs recalled by others.

s+*|nclude Full and Final settiement of Rupees 25,28 lakhs {(March31, 2018 Rupees 14,04 lakhs)

22.1 Rupee term loan from Banks :-
- Rupee term loans of Rupees 6910.60 lakhs {March 31, 2018 : Rupees 8931.30 lakhs} are secured by

{1} Details of Security
i. First charge on all movable assets {including rakes, contalners, equipment’s) and immovable properties of the company both

present and future on pari passu basis.

. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entlre current assets of the company on parl passu basls.
jii, Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promoters,

iv. Personal guarantees fram Promoters of Holding Company.

v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company/ Promoter.

{2) Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from Banks from 10.45% p.a - 16.25% p.a,

{3) Terms of repayment :-

{Rupees in Ikhs}

2012-2013
2013-2014

2014-2015

2015-2016 3,685.60

2018-2019* 2,840.00
Total 6,910.60
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(4) Amount and period of default In repayment of borrowings

{Rupees in lakhs

Current maturity of Rupee Term loans 22,50 2012-13
75.00 2013-14
277.50 2014-15
3,695.60 2015-16
2,840.00 2018-19
Total 6,910,60

22.2 Rupee term loan from Others :-
- Rupee term loans of Rupees 2,960.00 lakhs are secured by

(1) Details of Security

I. First pari passu charge on all present and future cash flows of the Company

ii.First parl passu charge on all movable assets and Immovable assets of the company.
ili. Charge on cash flows and movable assets by deed of Hypothecation.

Iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company.

v. Corporate Guarantee from Heolding Company.

{2) Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from others @ 20% p.a payable quarterly

(3} Terms of rapayment :-

_______ . 2,960.00
Total 2,960.00

* During the year the loan has been recalled by others.
4

{8) Amount and perlod of default in repayment of borrowlings

lRues in lakhs)

2,960.00 2018-19

Current maturity of Rupee Term loans

2,960.00

Tatal




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019

*+ Amount and period of default In payment of interest on borrowlngs**

{Rupees in lakhs)

Interest accrued & due on borrowing 2013-14 965.05 -
2014-15 876.51 -
2015-16 1,035.94 -
2016-17 1,287.23 -
2017-18 1,512,65 1,378.00
2018-19 2,612.60 2,042.51
Total 8,289.98 3,420,51

23 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

{Rupees in lakhs)

Advance recelved from Customers 107.02 151.12
Other Advances 0.51 1.74
Government Grants 365.49 639.61

Qthers
Statutory Liabilitles* 811.31 698.99
{nterest on Delayed payment of Statutory dues 590.57 426.77
Total 1,874.90 1,918.23

* Statutory liabllties include TDS,Goods & Service Tax, Service tax,PF,ESIC payable,Employee professional tax

GOVERNMENT GRANTS Rupees In lakhs)
Opening balance 2,363.30 2,728.79
Released to statement of profit and loss {365.49) {365.49)
Closing halance 1,997.81 2,363.30
Current 365.49 639.61
Non Current 1,632.32 1,723.69

24 CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Provision for employe benefits
Leave encashment {Refer Note 37)

{Rupees In lakhs)

Total
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25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Rupees in lakhs

Rall Frelght Income 12,098.57 12,338.16
Road Freight income 722.70 440.86
Handling Income 626.06 643.90
Terminal Income 167.50 175.40

Total 13,614.83 13,598.32

26 OTHER INCOME

(Rupees In [akhs)

Interest Income on Financial assets carrled at amortised cost
Unwinding of interest on loan to related party - 168.45
Unwinding of interest on Security deposit 5.76 1.28
Other interest income
Interest on Bank fixed deposits 21.10 29.38
interest income on income tax refund - 16.92
Income on derecognistion of related party loan - 307.69
Other Income
Government Grants 365.49 365.49
Financlal Guarantee Income 3.85 0.77
sundry Balance/ Excess provision Written Back 245.67 553.46
Gain on sale of investment . 5.00
Miscellaneous Income - 10.95
Total 641.87 1,459.39

27 COST OF OPERATIONS

Rail Freight Expenses 9,434.84 10,172.63
Road Freight Expenses 687.64 448.10
Handling Expenses 227.76 231.86
Terminal Expenses 357.55 304.26
Other operating expenses 692.48 350.53

Total 11,400.27 11,507.38
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

{Rupees In lakhs)

Salarles, wages and bonus 1,037.47 776.16
Contribution to provident and other funds 23.21 15.09
staff welfare expenses 61.23 35,54

Total 1,121.91 826.79

29 INANCE COST

Interest expense on Financial liabillties measured at amortised cost

(Rupees in lakhs

Interest expense on borrowings 6,476.99 7,451.08
Unwinding of interest for loan from related party (Refer Note 41} 63.70 56.88
Interest expense on Security Deposit 1.24 1.24
Interest expense others
interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 167.51 263.01
Interest on MSME vendors 0.50 ]
Other borrowlng costs
Guarantee Commission Expense 246.46 240.56
Interest Charges Others 53.33 _
Bank charges 5.84 6.17
Total 7,015.57 8,018.94

30 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

{Rupees in Iakhs

Depreciation on tangible assets 3,701.76 3,766.16
Amortisation on intangible assets 397.88 364.45
Total 4,099.64 4,130.61
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31 OTHER EXPENSES

Repalrs and maintenance
- Bullding 16.73 17.97
- Others 58.25 46.10
Advertlsement 35.62 38.79
Payments to Auditors (Refer note below) 12.50 8.50
Bad Debts written off - 101.36
Electricity charges 33381 28.54
Insurance 21.45 18.41
Legal and professional fees 176.32 75.54
Rates and taxes 15.89 7.36
Rent 472.99 374.08
Printing and Statlonary 15.08 7.82
Office Expenses 32.26 13.38
Security charges 59.11 45.14
Telephone and internet expenses 25.47 18.07
Travelling & conveyance expenses 185.37 46.98
Vehicle Expenses 44.54 28.18
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 24,71 .
Miscellanecus expenses 22.19 18.85
Loss on sale of scrap 0.3¢ -
Total 1,253.59 895.48
{a) Detalls of Payments to auditors {Rupees In lakhs)

As Statutory Auditor

Audit Fee 12.50 8.50
Total 12.50 8.50

32 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

gas In lakhs)

Sundry Balance / excess provision written back - {61.07)
Loss on sale/discarded of Property, plant and equipment - 182.79
Settlement of Claim {6,475.16) 302.54

Total (6,475.16) 424,26
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33 Earnings par share (Basic and Diluted)

Profit avaiiabla to equity sharchaklers

profit/{Loss} after tax {A) (Rupees In Lakhs} (4,159.12) (10,745.75)
Number of equity shares

Welghted average number of equlty shares outstanding {Baslc and Diluted} {B) 423,84 417 4,23,80,117
Baslc & Diluted earmings per shara{A/B} (Rupaes) {9.81) {25.35)
Nominal Value of an equity share {Rupees} 10 10

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENT
{To the axtent not provided for)

) capital Commitments
_{Rupaeas In lakhs}

[Estimated amount of contracts reiing be executed an :apl account and n\rlded for net
of advances pald)
Cash outflow expetted on execution on such capltal contracts

{1} Contingant abilitles:

{a) Carrler Bond (Bond bas been given to Principal of custom for the safeguarding duty liablitty on goods
movemant from respectlve ports to 1CD Khurja}
{ b) Bank Guarantee 101.25 162.00
{c] Letter of Credit { Letter of Credit given In favour of Railways for avalling e-frelght facifity for haulage 100.00 100,00
payment})
{d) Claims Aguinst the Company not acknowledged as Debt 23.39 23,39
{e} Service tax Demand 51.55 51,55
No Cash outflow ks expected In near future

35 Certaln creditors have initlated legal proceedings against the company and its directors and the company has defaulted In payment of instalments of
consent terms for which the company is in process of negotlating and flnalising the revised consent terms. Malority of the creditors have been settled
over the past faw years and some of the creditors have also shown interest and faith not only In logistics and infrastructure sector but also in the
Company and are belng allotted equlty shares of Holding Company.

36 Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee
The company has taken office on lease under non-cancellable cperating lease expiring at the end of 3 years. The leases have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.
The company has paid Rupees 340.65 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupeas 278.56 lakhs)during the year towards minimum lease payment.

Rupees In lakhs)

Commitments for minimum lease payments In refation to non cancellable operating leases are as
follows
Euture Lease Paymnt:
a) Within one Year 351.92 340.65
b} Later than one year but not |ater than five years 599,19 1,051.11
c} Later than five years - .

Total 3,051.11 1,391,76

[Lease rents recognised as expense in the year 340.65 | 27856 |

37 EMPLOYEE BENEFAT
37.1 Disclosure pursuant to Indlan Accounting Standard {IND AS5) 19— Employee Benafits

{a} Defined contribution plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the years are as under:

{Rupees In lakhs)

Epr's ontribtlon Provident Fund
Employer's Contributlon to Penslon Schame
Employer's Contribution to ESIC
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(b} Brigf desctiptions of the plans
The Company's defined contribution plans are Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance where the Company has no further obligation beyvond
making the contributions. The Company's definad benefit plans Include gratuity. The employees are also entitled to leave encashment as per the
€ompany’s policy.

{c } Leave Obligations

Prcwl for Leave encashment

Current

Non-Current 48.45 16.42
Total 59,10 20.11

{d} Defined banefit plan — Gratulty:
The employee's Gratulty fund Is managed by the Life Insurance Corparation of Indla. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarlal
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognisad each perlod of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
gntitlement and measures each unit sepearately to build up to final obligation.

Parilculars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1. Actuarial assumpiions
Mortality Table Indian  Assured lives|indian Assured lives
Mortality {2006-08) Ult|Mortality {2006-08) Ult
Discount rate 6.95% 7.40%
Expected return on plan assets 6.95% 7.40%
Salary Escalation Rate 9.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal Rate 17.00% 15.00%
Retirement Age 58 Years] 53 Years
1I. Change in Present value of dufined banefit cbligations
Liability as at the beginning of the year 47.31 37.19
Interest cost 3.50 2.30
Currant service cost 19.62 7.78
Benefits paid {2.95) {0.93}
Actuarial [galn)/loss on obligations 24.39 0.98
acquisition adjustment 41.75 -
Liability as at the end of the year 133.62 47.31
11l. Change in Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as at the beglnning of tha year 57.35 AB6.28
Expected return on plan assats 4.23 14.01
Actual Enterprise’s Contributions - 093
Benefits paid - {0.93)
Actuarlal gain/{loss} on plan assets - {2.93}
fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 651.58 57,35
V. Actual retum on plan assets
Expected return on plan assets 423 14.01
Actuarlal galnf{loss} on plan assets . {2.93}
Actual return on plan assets 4.23 11.08
V. Liabllity recognisad in the Balance Sheat
Liability as at the and of the year 133.62 47.31
fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 61.58 57.35
Liability/ {Asset} recognised in the Balance Sheet 72.03 {10.05)
V). Percantage of sach category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets
|Insurer managed funds 100% 100%|
VIl Amount recegnised In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 19.62 7.78
Intarest cost - 2,30
Expected return on plan assets {0.74) {14.01}
Nat actuarial {gain)/loss to be on obllgation . .
Expense/ {income} recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 18.88 {3.93)
Viit. Amount recognised In the Other Comprehenshva Income {OC1)
Amount recognised In OC), beginning of the yaar {7.29} {0.10)

ponents of actuarial galn/losses on abligations
te Change in financlal assumptions 16.19 {1.16)
Mo Change In demographic assumption {1.82) R
Change In experienca assumption 10.02 213

dlted return on plan assets I - {2.93
ge in Asset Ceiling /{ NPl - !
{2l remasurement recognised in OCI R S O 24.39 {7.19)
gnlsed in OCL, end of year Fod 17.10 {7.29)

N ST
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). Balance Shaet reconciliation
{pening net liability {10.05} {9.09)
Expenses racognised In Profit & Loss 18.88 7.16

Actual Employer Contribution : {2.94) {0.93)
Total Remeasuremeant recognised In OC1 2439 {7.19)
Acquisition adjustment 41.75 -
Closing net llability 72.03 {10.05)

Salary escalation assumption has been set in discussions with the enterprise based on their estimates of overall long-term salary growth rates after
taking into consideration expected earnings Inflation as well as performance and seniority related increases.

Sensithvity analysis:
Effect on Gratuity
Changes in
Particulars obligatton (Rupess in
as
sumptions fakhs)
For the year endad 31st March, 2018
Salary growth rate +0.50% 47.66
-0.50% 45.40
Discount rate +0.50% 45.41
-0.50% 47.66
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
Salary growth rate +0.1% 140,38
0.1% 127.32
Discount rate +0.1% 127.26
-0.1% 140.58

The above sensitivity anakysis is based on & change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In pratlce, this is unlikely to oceur,
and changes In some of the assumptiens may be correlated, In presenting the above sensitivity anaysls, the present value of defined benefit obligation
has been cateulated using the projected unit credit method at the end of reparting perlod, which Is the same as that applied in caleulating the defined
obligation llability recognised in the balance sheet.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarlal risks such as: longevity visk and salary risk.

Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase the plan ilabliity.
Longevlty risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan lability Is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during 2nd after their employment. An Increase in the [ife expectancy of the plan participants. As such, an increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk - The present value of the defined plan liability Is calculated by reference to the future salarles of plan participants. As such, as increase in the
salary of the plan participants wlll increase the plan's liahility.

The weightad average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting perled Is 5 years (31st March, 2018 - § years).
Disclosure pursuant to Indain Accounting Standard 108 - Operating Segment

The company Is engaged in Private Container Train Operator (PCTO) business and is holding Category-l license which allows the company to operate on
Indlan Rall network on pan India basls both Domestic and Exim Traffic. In the opinion of the company, the entire operations are governed by the same
sat of risks and returns and hence the same has been considered as representing a single primary segment.

The company provides services within indla and hence does not have any operation in aconomic environments with different risks and returns. Hence,
it is considered that the company is oparating In a single gecgraphical segment.

Customers individuatly contributes to more than 10% of revenue :-

There are 2 customers { March 31, 2018 -3 customers) aggregating to Rupees 8,179.24 lakhs { March 31, 2018 Rupees 8,619.29 lakhs} constituting 60% {
March 31, 2018- 64%) of Revenue.

DISCLOSURES UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 {MSMED ACT, 2006)
To the extent,the company has received intimation from the “suppliers' regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, the details are provided as under

Rupees [n lakhs

{[} Principal amount remaining unpaid 15.77 5.24]
{il} interest due thereon remaining unpaid 0.50 N
{Ili} Interest paki by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - .
Develapment Act 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

Kiv) Interest due and payable for the period of detay in making payment (which have been paid but - .

f:;\ nd the appolnted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro,

il and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
e rest accrued and remaining unpaid (net of tax deducted at source} 0.50

f¥erest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest -

Ls above are actually paid to the small enterprise.
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A0 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
oOn March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} has notified Ind AS 116 - Leases and certaln amendment to existing Ind AS. These
amendmaents shall be applicable to the Company fram April 01, 2015. i

A) ISSUE OF IND AS 116 - LEASES
ind AS 116 wili supersede the current standard on leases i.e. Ind AS 17- Leases. As per Ind AS 116, the lessor will have to bring to books all the non-
cancellable portion of leasing arrangement.

B) AMENDIMENT TO EXISTING STANDARD

The MCA has also carried out amendmants of the following accou nting standards
. ind AS 101- First tima adoption of Indlan Accounting Standards

1l Ing AS 102 — Business Combinations

IIl, Ind AS 109 - Financlal Instruments

iv. Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements

v. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

Wi. Ind AS 19 - Employae Benefits

vii. ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

vili. Ind AS 28 - Investment In Assoclates and Jolnt Ventures

Application of above standards are not axpected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financlal statements.
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41  REIATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

{1l Ustofrelated parties as par the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Arshiya Linlted

Hdd]nspanv L

HH

Arshiya Rali Skding and infrastructure Limited {tlll February 3, 2018} Subsitiary india
Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited {til March 21, 2018}
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

3 Arshiya ldustrial & Distribution Hub Limited Fellow Subsldiarles lindia

Arshiva Logistics Services Limited {formerly known as Laxmipat] Batajl Exlm Trading Limited}

Mr. Ajay 5. Mittal - Director

Mr. Navmit Choudhary - Director

Mr, Ashlsh Kumar Baivagra - Independent Director

Mr. Rishabh Pankaj Shah - Independent Director

M. Siddarth Kasturia - Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. March 26, 2019)

Ms. Avani Dipakkumar Lakhani - Company Secretary {w.e.f. March 26, 2019}
Mr. Vinod Jaln - Chief Finandial Officer [¢ill March 25, 2019)

Mr. Amacdeep Gupts - Chief Financial Officey (w.e.f. March 26, 2018}

Key Managerial Parsonnel {KMP}

5  |Mrs. Archana A Mittal
Mr. Ananya A Mittal

Relative of Key Managesial
Personnel

(I)  The nature and amount of transactlons with tha above related parties are as foflows

Loans given - 376.05
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hu Limited [ Loan repayments™ . (1,312 83},
| Rall Fraight income 749.45 23.48
Unwinded Interest Income on - 67.20
Loan to subsidiaries
Leans glven - 943.84
Arshiya Northern Umnited Loan rapayments** - {2,354.81)
Frwe Unnwingded interest Income on - 101.22
Loan to subskdlaries
Loans taken** {788.31) [4.831.75)
Loan repayments 2,996.44 3,751.60
Allocation of cost and common {419.55) {418.25)
| expenses by Holding Company®
Arshlya Limited
Unwinded interest expense on (63.70) (56.88)
Loan from helding company
Financlal Guarantees 246,46 {240.56]
Arshiya Supply Chaln Management Private Limitexd Loans given - 1181
Loan repayments®* - {11.81)
Arshiva Logistics Services Umited (formerly known as Laxmipat Balali Exim Teading Umited) | Loans given - 0.23
Loan re| ents 0.23 .

* During the year, the Holding Company has allocated certain commen cost and expenses incurred by it, 1o the company aggregating to Rupees 419.55 lakhs (315t March, 2018 - Rupees
418.25 lakhs} based on Helding Company’s estimates of such cost and expenses attributable to the company. Hence, Employee benefit expenses ( Refer Note No. 28} and certain expenses
stated undler other expenses (Refer Note No, 31) ave presented as Inclusive of such allocation of certain common costs and expenses.

** The Company has adjusted balance recelvable amount of Arshiya Industrial, Distribution & Hub Limited {AIDHL) on March 31, 2019 Rupees NIL {March 31, 2018 Rupees 1,269.42 lakhg),
receivable amount of Arshiya Northermn FTWZ Limited [ANFTWZ) on March 31, 2019 Rupees NIL {March 31, 2018 Rupees 2,026.74 lakhs), receivable amount of Atshlva Supply Chain
Management Private Limited (ASCM) on March 31, 2019 Rupeas NIL [March 31, 2018 Rupwes 4.45 fakhs ) with Arshiya Limited.
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Closing n lakhs
Arshiya Loglstics Services Umited {formerty known as Lasanipat] Batajl Exim Trading Limited) - 0.23

[Arshiya Uimited ___ 30438 2,029.26 |
285.58 -

854.69 1.041.15

54,120.00 51,120.00

54,120.00 51,120.00

Arshiya Limited 51,200.19 48,200.19
Lrshi!a Limited l 550.00 -

Key managerisl personnel compensation
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42 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

{} Financlal Instruments by Catego

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amortised cost
Trade Receivables 1,323.33 666.59 1,323.33 666.59
Cash and Cash Equivalents 120.24 375.35 120.24 37535
Securlty Deposits 131.32 126.04 131.32 126.04
Other Bank Balances 267.30 386.16 267.30 386.16
Financial Guarantee 854.69 1,041.15 854.69 1,041.15

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Ameortised cost
Borrowings 43,822.29 44,498.60 43,822,29 44,498.60
Trade Payables 1,323.21 626.12 1,323.21 626.12
Other financial liabilities 16,488.44 16,275.54 16,488.44 16,275.54

(i} Fair Valuation techniques used to determine falr value
The Company maintains procedures to value financial assets or financiai liabilities using the best and most relevant data available,
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a llability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The foliowIng methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

{a) The Company assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equlvalent, trade recelvables, trade payables, and other current financial
assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these [nstruments.

{b} The falr values for security deposits and other financlal llabilities were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current
lending rate. They are classified as level 3 falr values in the Falr value hierarchy due to the Inclusion of unobservable inputs including
counterparty credit risk.

{c} The fair values of non current borrowlngs are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as
level 3 fair values in the falr value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

{iii) Fairvalue hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financlal Instruments that are
recognised and measure at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determing fair value, the
company has classified its financlal instruments Into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

(a) Level1-Level1hierarchy includes financial Instruments measured using quoted prices.

(b} Level 2 - The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded In an active market (for example, traded bonds, over the counter
derivatives} is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

{¢) Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on cbservable market data, the Instrument is included in level 3. This is
thesRsefaDpRIked equity shares, contingent consideration and indemnification assets included in level 3, / Tl
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Financial Risk Management
The Company's principal financial liabllitles comprises of borrowlngs, trade and other payables and financlal guarantees contracts. The main purpose of

these financlal liabilities is to manage for the Company's operations. The Company's financial assets comprises of trade and other receivables, cash and
deposits that arises directly from lts operations.

The company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's risks management
assessment, management and processes are established to identlfy and analyze the risks faced by the Company to set up appropriate risks limits and
controls and to monitor such risks and compliances with the same. Risks assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the company's actlvitles.

Cash and cash Ageing analysis Regular review of
equivalents, trade credit limlts
receivables and
Flnanclal assets
measured at amortised
cost.
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other [Rolling cash flow Availabillty of
'!labilities farecasts financial support from
parent company
Market rlsk - interest rate Long-term borrowings [Sensitivity analysis Unhedged
atvariable rates

The Company’s risk management is carrled out by a corporate finance team under the policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management as well as pollcies covering speclfic areas, such as credit risk, Interest rate risk.

{A) Cradit risk
The Company Is exposed to credit risk, which is risk that caunterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting In a financial loss to the
Company. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures to trade customers including outstanding receivables.

Trade receivables are typlcally unsecured and are derlved from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed
by the company through continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. Outstanding customer recelvables are regularly monltored and any further services to major customers are approved by the senlor
management. Credit risk is high as only few customers’ account for majority of the revenue in the year presented. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109,
the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impalrment less or gain.

{8} Licquldity risk .
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral cbligations without Incurring unacceptable
losses, The Company’s objective is to, at all times; maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements, The Company limits
its liquidity risk by ensuring funds from trade receivables. The Company relies on operating cash flows and funding from holding company to meet its
needs for funds.

The table below pravides undiscounted cash flows towards financial liabilities Into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
to the contractual maturity date.
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilitles

I

March 31, 2019

Borrowings 11,919.62 32,369.86 -
Trade payables 1,323.21 - .
Other financlal liabillties 16,489.00 - -
Total Finandial llabilities 29,731.83 32,369.86 -
March 31, 2018

Borrowings 11,024.26 34,150.17 .
Trade payables 626.12 - -
Qther financlal liabilities 16,276.91 - -
Total Flnancial llabilitles 27,927.29 34,150.17 .
{C) Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of volatllity of prices in the financial
markets. Market risk can be further segregated as: 1) Forelgn currency risk and 2} Interest rate risk

1) Forelgn currency risk
1} Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates.
However, the Company does not have any forelgn currency exposure.

2} interest rate risk

\nterest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk,
During the 31st March, 2019 the Company's borrowlngs at the varlable rate were mainly denominated in Rupees,

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to Interest rate risk as defined In IND AS- 107, since
nefther the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market Interest rates.

Interest rate risk axposure
The exposure of the company's borrowing to Interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:-

{Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
variable rate borrowings 6,910.60 §,931.30

Interest sensitivity
Proflt or loss Is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowlngs as a result of changes in Interest rates.

Particulars Impact on profit before tax
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2013
Interest sensitivity
50 bps increase the profit before tax by* {34.55} {44.656)
50 bps decrease the profit before tax by* 34.55 44.66
* Holding all other variable constant
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the company's objective when managing capitzl is to safaguard the company's ability to continue going concern In order to
provide the return for shareholders and benefit to other stakeholders and to maintain an optional capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital, Capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders
of the company.

The company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or Issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a Debt equity ratlo.

ps in lakhs)

Borrowings 43,822.29 44,498.60
Other Financial Liabllities {Interest accrued) 14,990.64 14,554.19
Total Debt 58,812.93 59,052.79
Equity 4,238.44 4,238.44
Other equity (18,197.13) (14,073.62)
Total Equity {13,958.69) {9,835.18)
Notes:-

{i} Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings Including current maturities and interest.
(ii) Total equity (as shown in balance sheet) includes Issued capital and all other equity.

As stated In Notes to accounts, the company Is also having scheme of arrangements to reorganise the capital structure,

Debt Covenants

Under the terms of Restructuring Agreement, the company Is required to comply with followIng financial covenants:-

Without prior approval of lender, the company shall not:

Loans, debenture 8 charge - Issue or subscribe to any debentures, shares, raise any loans, deposit from public, issue equity or
preference capital, change its capital structure or create any charge on Its assets Including its cash flow or give any guarantees.

Dividend on equity shares - declare/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwlise approved by the Lender/Business Monitoring
Committee and subject to the payment of recompense amount payable by the borrower to the lender in accordance with the
provisions of RA.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Capital Management, amongst other thing, aims to ensure that it meets Financlal

covenants attached to the Interest bearing Loans and borrowings that define Capital structure requirements, there have been
breaches in the Financial covenants of interest bearing loans and borrowing in the Current pericd and previous perlod.

The Company has not proposed any dividend in last two years in view of losses Incurred.

S ra———



ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

45 Taxation

1) in view of loss for the year, no provislon for current tax has been made.

ii) The Company has not recognised any deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses as It is not probable
that the Company will have sufficlent future taxable profit which can be avallable against the available tax losses.
iii) Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

{Rupees in lakhs)

2014-2015 14,739.87 2022-2023 6,512.68
2015-2016 - 2023-2024 5,536.76
2016-2017 - 2024-2025 3,192.80
2017-2018 13,093.10 2025-2026 3,717.69
2018-2019 431.07 2026-2027 3,199.58
2019-2020 - 2027-2028 2,104.24

Total 28,264.04 24,263.74

Unused deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2019 Rupees 9,217.76 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 - Rupees 13,290.59 Lakhs) has not been
recognised, as there is no convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the unadjusted tax losses
will be utillsed by the Company.

Details of Deferred tax assets are mentloned below:- (Rupees in lakhs
Property plant equipment 4,268.76 4,084.31
Unabsorbed depreciation {6,308.57) (5,773.59)
£xpense allowable on payments under section {166.12) {3,651.00)
Unahsorbed loss (7,348.65) (8,397.44)
Financial Instruments 336.82 447.13
Total Deferred Tax Assets {9,217.76) {13,290.59)

46 Preparation of financial statements on # Going Concern” basis

The company has Incurred net loss of Rupeds 4,183.51 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2019 and as of that date, the company's
current liabilities exceeded by its current assets by Rupees 29,449.72 lakhs. Accumulated losses have also resulted into more than net
worth of the company. Some of Its lenders have recalled their loans and the company Is in the process of negotiating the revised
payment terms with the lenders.
The Company is EBIDTA positive and with the commencement of the two dedicated freight corrlders, the said company will benefit
immensely. Moreover, a unique contract entered into with one of the largest global shipping lines has already started to improve the
profitabllity. Also, the proposed merger of Fellow subsidiary with the company as mentioned in note no, 51, would make thelr
operations not only complementary, but enhance their profitability.

In view of the focussed emphasis of the Government on logistics infrastructure sector, the proposed restructuring and considering the
fact that the facilities are yet to achieve full operational potential besides the strategic locations of the facilities, the management’s
future outlook of its businesses is very promising. Accordingly the financials have been prepared on going concern basls, based on
financial support from the Parent Company.

The management of the company is in the process of restructuring its business operations and steps are as under :

i Focus on long term contracts with corporate clients for stable revenues,

i Focus on reduction of empty haulage / return business in different sectors to increase In revenue and margins,
ii Diversified focus from only Steel industry to Cement, Agro and Tlles also so as to have a balance of product mix.
v Increased focus gnKha as a distribution hub post GST implementation
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Government focus on Multi-modal logistic and transport services to Increase the throughput of the Infrastructure already created by
the company;

Government focus on the revamping of the Rallway Boards and Increasing clarity on regulatory aspects to support resolution of the
regulatory Issues;

Two Dedicated Freight Corridor(s) (DFC) along the Western and Eastern part of India to support increase in the business volume,

Government announcement of Jewar Airport and Merut Highway connecting Jewar via Khurja and thereby connecting to Yamuna
Expressway( i.e. Delhl to Agra).

The above steps shall enable the Company to improve Company’s Net worth and its ability to discharge its debts/liabilities in near
future.

As per debt covenant, the Company are required to adhere to repayment schedule and any short payment gives Edelwelss Asset
Reconstructlon Company (EARC) the right to convert whole of the outstanding amount of restructured rupee loan and/or part of the
default amount into fully paid up equity shares of the Company. No such notice of conversion in writing has been given by EARC and the
Company continues to disclose the amount as current and non-current as per repayment schedule, in the Balance Sheet.

The company had entered into one-time settlement (OTS) with a lender during the year. The company had paid partlal amount against
0TS and the effect was taken as an exceptional item during the year ended March 31, 2019, However, the Company has defaulted In
payment as per the terms of the OTS. As a result, the Company needs to reverse the exceptional gain recorded during the year and
needs to recognise Interest on the entire liability as per the original terms. The Company is in discussion with the lender for additional
time to repay. Accordingly, the company continues to reflect the outstanding amount of loan as per OTS In the financlal statements.

The Company has not reversed the galn, nor provided for additional interest. Had the Company reversed the gain and provided for
additional interest, exceptional item would have been lower by Rs. 6,604.55 Lakhs and finance cost would have been higher by Rs.
3,500.76 Lakhs having consequential impact on total comprehenslive income, liabilities and other Equity for the year ended 31st March,
2019.

The Company has procured certain capital goods under EPCG scheme at concessional rate of duty. On non fulfiliment of certain
conditions, the company may become liable to pay differential custom duty along with interest thereon such procurement. The
management is hopeful of completing the expected obligation within the stipulated time.

The scheme of arrangement ufs 230 to 232 is scheme of merger of the Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited and Arshiya
Transport & Handling Limited into the company, which Is pending with NCLT. The scheme is conditional on various approval / sanctions
and is effective thereafter; accordingly no effect of the sald Scheme Is given In the financlal statement. The Creditors meeting of the
respective companies was held on 6th May 2019. No accounting impact and disclosures is considered and necessary at this stage
pending requisite regulatory approvals.

In addition to above, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company at their meeting held on 24th May, 2018, has approved a scheme to
reorganize corporate structure i.e. demerger of “Domestic warehousing business” of the Parent Company into the company. This
proposed scheme of arrangement is conditional upon approval of above scheme {refer note no. 50}. No accounting impact and
disclosures is considered and necessary at this stage pending requisite regulatory approvals.

The Company has sent request letters/ emails to various parties for confirmations of balances under borrowings, trade receivables
trade payables etc, loans and advances to which only few parties have responded. Accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required
in the financial statements will be accounted as and when the same is determinable.

Corporation Bank has filed a suit with Debt Recovery Tribunal, New Delhi, towards recovery against Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited,
Arshiya Limited as a Corporate Guarantor and two promoter directors of the holding company as Guaranters, for Rupees 8,012.60
lakhs. The same is pending before the DRT Delhi. The matter is sub-Judice,
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54 The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of products and services, geography and timing of revenue

55
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recognition.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The effect on adoption of Ind AS
115 was insignificant.

Revenue disaggregation by type of goods and services is given note no. 25

Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

{Rupees in lakhs)
Geography For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2019 31" March 2018
In India 13,596.16 13,560.32
Outside india 18.67 38.00

Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of the customers,
Revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue recognition Is as follows:

{Rupees In lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
Geograph
ography 31" March 2019 31* March 2018
Goods transferred at a point in time - R
Service transferred over time 13,614.83 13,598.32

Based on recent Supreme court judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 there are various interpretive issues including
its applicabllity thus prospective provision w.e.f. March 01, 2019 been considered of Rs. 0.44 lakhs.

The Company's borrowings have been asslgned by bankers to an ARC/ restructured with banks under CDR Package. Certain lenders had
invoked the CDR package. The ARC/ CDR lenders have charged interest/ penal interest/additional Interest amounting to Rs. 511.89
lakhs upto the year ended March 31, 2018, which was not accepted by the Company and hence Is under negotiation. In light of audit
qualifications In previous year as a matter of prudence, the company has recognised the sald interest/ additional interest/ penal
interest and has accordingly restated the finance cost and other consequentlal impacts in respective year.

Further, during the year ended March 31, 2018 reported figure of finance cost, other Equity and Interest Accrued on borrowings was
Rs. 7,507.05 lakhs, Rs. {13,561.72) lakhs and Rs, 12,671.96 lakhs respectively. Restated figures of flnance cost, other equity and Interest
Accrued on Borrowings are Rs. 8,018.94 lakhs, Rs. (14,073.62) lakhs and Rs. 13,183.84 lakhs respectively. Earning Per Share (EPS) also
recalculated based on the restated figures.

The figures for the previous year have been re-grouped /re-arranged, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current year’s
classification/disclosure.

Notes to the financial statements 1-57

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited /{{ﬂf!':jsﬁ‘é
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Arshiya Northern FTWZ
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31* March 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter
referred to as “the Financial Statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the
financial position of the Company as at 31%t March 2019, and its financial performance
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are rclevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requiremenis and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the Note no. 49 of the statement regarding the balance confirmations
of borrowings, trade receivables, trade payables and loans and advances. During the course
of preparation of financial statements, e-mails/letters have been sent to various parties by
the respective companies with a request to confirm their balances directly to us cut of which
only few parties have respondel, accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required in the
financial statements will be accounted as and when the same is determinable. Our Opinion ig
not modified in respect of the said matter.

- \ e
Head Office: 714-715, Tulsiani Chambers, 212, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel.: +91 22 3021 8500 « Fax :+91 \\(i:» 8505V
Other Dificas: 44 - 46, “C” Wing, Mittal Court, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel.: +91 22 4510 9700 « Fax: +91 22 WS>
URL : www.cas.ind.in -

Branch : Bengaturu
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the director report (but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon), which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

When we read the director report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and deiecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. :
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That Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
Professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

s  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

¢  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the
Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as
we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

5.  Further to our comment in the Annexure A, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act,
we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules there under;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Company as on 31% March, 2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we
report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

£, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the provisions of section 197 of the act is not applicable to the company
since no managerial remuneration is paid / provided.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

Continuation sheet...
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company, as detailed in Note no. 34 to the financial statement has
disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position.

ii. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

iii. There is no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

Jj c,/)e!f)qlkﬂ/ A

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner \
Membership No. 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27/05/2019

Continuation sheet...
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year

ended 31* March 2019)
(i) In respect of fixed assets:-

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of the fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the Company has physically verified fixed assets, in
accordance with a phased program of verification, which in our opinion is
reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification as
compared with the available records.

(¢) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us and
on the basis of our examination of available records of the Company, the title
deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(i) The Company does not have any Inventories; hence the provisions of Clause (ii)
of paragraph 3 of the said order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) In respect of unsecured loans granted by the Company to companies, firms,
Limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. According to the information and explanations given
to us:

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to
us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are prima facie not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated for the loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular.

(¢) There are no overdue amounts as at the year-end in respect of both principal
and interest.

(ivy  In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of providing guarantees. The company has not
given any loan, made investment and securities.

Gontinuation sheet...
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1)) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning
of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified. During the year, no order has been passed by the Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court
or any other Tribunal.

(vi)  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is
not required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act,
the Provisions of Clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations
given to us, the Company has generally been regular except slight delays in few
cases, in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, goods
and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities
as applicable during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such statutory dues
were outstanding as at 31st March, 2019 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable except Tax deducted at Source amounting to
Rs. 22.80 Lakh and interest on tax deducted at source amounting to Rs. 47.34
Lakh.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and goods and service tax, which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank as at balance sheet date
except as mentioned below. There are no dues to debenture holders and
government as at the balance sheet date.

Gontinuation sheet...
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Defaults in respect of bank and financial institutions are as under:- (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars Amount of continuing default Period of Default
as on 31st March, 2019
Principal Interest
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction - 529.67 | Financial Year 2017-2018
Company Limited-through
Various trust
- 938.91 | Financial Year 2018-2019
Punjab National Bank
402.69 - | Financial Year 2012-2013
9,37.04 1,364.42 | Financial Year 2013-2014
1,116.80 1,105.21 | Financial Year 2014-2015
5,586.63 1,348.49 | Financial Year 2015-2016
- 1,515.62 | Financial Year 2016-2017
- 1,858.75 | Financial Year 2017-2018
2.919.20 | Financial Year 2018-2019
State Bank of India 203.12 - | Financial Year 2012-2013
473.18 708.93 | Financial Year 2013-2014
563.95 583.71 | Financial Year 2014-2015
2,820.75 680.94 | Financial Year 2015-2016
- 765.33 { Financial Year 2016-2017
- 938.71 | Financial Year 2017-2018
1,068.29 | Financial Year 2018-2019
Punjab National Bank — Cash 263.30 51.03 | Financial Year 2014-2015
Credit - 58.31 | Financial Year 2015-2016
- 60.17 | Financial Year 2016-2017
- 64.64 | Financial Year 2017-2018
175.16 | Financial Year 2018-2019
Total 12,367.46 16,825.49

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not
raise any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such case by the Management.

Continuation sheet...



m
CHATURVEDI EASHAH ..»

Chartered Accountants
]

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ]
To the Members of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Page g of 12

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year.

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to it the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance
with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) under Section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

quhj 0:' 'Lf' s 3 SHM,

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27/05/2019

Gontinyation shest...



|
CHATURVEDI! EA SHAH .-

Chartered Accountants
]

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT u
To the Members of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 317 March 2019

Page 10 0f 12

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
g1+ March 2019.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Northern
FTWZ Limited (“the Company”) as of 31% March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
fnancial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
«Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. T
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management, directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Continuation sheet...
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Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit of test of
controls, in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31* March, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100

[}Tc,pw”""f

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27/05/2019

Continuation sheet...
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ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a] Property, Plant and Equipment 5 74,149.70 75,025.42
{b] Intanglble Assets @ 453.82 577.62
{c) Finantial Asseis
(i} Other Financlak Assets 7 168.15 241.80
{d} Other Non-Current Assets 8 66.40 39.84
74,838.07 75,884.68
Current assets
{a} Financial Assets
{i} Trade Receivables 9 102.02 40,29
{11} Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 35.98 18.53
{iii} Loans 11 325.87 -
{Iv] Other financial Assets 12 91.14 152.56
{b} Other Current Assets 13 370.80 357.31
925.81 568.69
TOTAL ASSETS 75iﬁ3.SE 76|453.3?
EQUITY AND LIABIUTIES
Equity
{a} Equity Share capital 14 1,086.87 1,086.87
{b) Other Equity 15 18,337.19 26,300.12
19,424.06 27,386.99
Labilitles
Non Current Lisbilities
{a} Finandial Llablilities
{1} Borrowings 16 8,513.95 10,447.22
{ii) Other Financial Uabilities 17 21.44 -
{b} Provisions 18 2.73 14.90
8,543.12 10,462.12
Current Llabilltias
{a} Financial Uabilitles
{1} Borrowings 19 10,163.80 7,848.79
{il} Trade Payables 20 i
{A) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 8.56 ' 4.20
{B)Total outstanding dues of creditors Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 96.87 101.95
{Ili) Other Finandial Liabllities 21 37,370.85 30,557.08
{b} Other Current Liabllities 22 155.91 83.54
{c) Pravisions : 3 0.61 8.70
47,796.70 38,604.26
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABIUTIES 75,763.88 ?§,453.3?
Notes to the financial statements 156
As per our Report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Northarn FTWZ Limited

flrmn Registratlon Number 101720W/W100355

(/ﬂj‘o’ﬁcua\lﬂf
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Vijay Napawakiya Navnit Choudhary
Partner Dlrector Director & Chief Financiat Officer
Membership Number. 109859 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place : Mumbal
Date: May 27, 2019




ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

ees In lakhs)

Income
Revenue from operations 24 460.80 308.40
Other Income 25 262.90 100.25
Total Income (1) 723.70 408.65
EXPENSES
Cost of operations 26 8.99 9.70
Employee benefits expenses 27 400.31 666,93
Finance costs 28 5,805.25 4,753.54
Depreciation and amortization expenses 29 1,609.79 1,579.07
. Other expenses 30 327.54 1,255.28
Total Expenses (i} 8,151.88 8,264.52
Loss before exceptional items and tax (I-1} {7,428.18) {7,855.87)
Exceptional kems 31 527.34 1,451.42
Loss before tax (7,955.52) {9,307.29)
Tax expense: 37
Current tax - -
Deferred tax ] X
; Loss for the year (7,955.52) {9,307.29)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{tems not to be reclassifled to profit and loss:

Remeasurement of Ipsses on defined beneflt plans 35 (7.41) {9.65)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (7,962.93) {9,316.94)
Earnings per Equity shares (Face value Rupees 10 sach}

Basic/ Diluted earnings per share {In Rupees} 32 {73.20) {85.63)
Notes to the financial statements 1-56

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturved! & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

Gﬂcﬂq‘)h’/

Vija¥ Napawaliya
Partner
tembership Number, 109853

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

¥

Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
LY
sl Ot wa O,
S e
Ajay § Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Director & Chlef Financial Officer
DIN: 00226355  DIN : 00613576




ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

A Equity Shara Capital (Rafer Note 14)

. Shares of Rup aach issue , ed and pald up
As at April 3, 2017
Equity Shares

1,086.
Issue of equity share during the year ’086_3?
As at March 33, 2018

1
Equity Shares 1 g‘;g’sa;
Issue of equity share during the year ’
As at March 31,2019 108687

B OtherEquity (Refer Note 15}
R in lakh:
=T

As at April 1, 2017 42,885.95 (7,925.85) 35.617.0
|Loss far the year {9,307.29) (9,307.29)
Other comprehengive income {9.65} ’ (9'55)
Total comprehansive Income for the yeaar (9,316.94) ) 315'94)
As at March 31, 2018 41,845.95 {17,242.79) 643.01 53.95 | 26,300.12
Loss for the year - {7,955.52) -
. - 7,955.
Other comprehensive income - {7.41) - - [ 'gig :ﬂ
Totat comprehensiva income for the year {7,962.93) {7 952-93}
,962.
As at March 31, 2019 42,845,95 {25,205.72) 643.01 53.95 18,337.19
Notes to the financlal statemnents 1-56
As per our Report of even date
for Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited '
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355
% u & )J(& -
‘Q‘.\_‘\\ 25 th CuJ AM A OIS
Vijay Napawaliya Ajay 3 Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director & Chief Financlal Officer
Membership Number, 109859 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019




Arshlya Northern FTWZ Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Rupees In lakhs}

Particulars Notes Year Ended Year Ended

_ Morch31, 2019 | March3l, 2018
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year bafore tax (7.955.52} 9.307.29)
Adjustments for
Sundry Balances / Excess grovision Written Back (Met) {221.29) (219.52)
Settlement of Claims 527 34 408I 2
Loss on sale of investment 3 101. 21
Property, Plant and Equipment Written off B ' 85'56
Depreciatich and amortization expenses 1,609.79 1 5?9'07
Unwinding of Interest for loan to related parties B ' {7‘251
Finance Expense . 5,805.25 4 753' 54
OPERATING LOSS BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (234.43) (1‘506'35}
Adjustments for
Trade & other payables (854.84)

d 823.27
Trade & other receivables (392.82} 1(509 15)
CASH USED IN DPERATIONS 1.452.08 s
Direct Tax (Paid)/ Refunds o ai fi;g-;;l
MET CASH FLOW USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES i) [1.508.65) IQSI'OQL
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 461.52) (4,108.76)
Purchase of Intangible Asset _ iBIBIDG}
Sale of Investment ) 47b33
NET CASH FLOW [USED IN}/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {8} (36152 m 5?9&1
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings - Hon current . 126319
Repayment of borrowings - Non current (242.01) 12'685-28}
Barrowing - current (Net} 2.295.06 ?'359' ”
Interest paicl on borrowings (65.42) 5311.39}
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACT! IVITIES Q) LIEF 62 5 E?ﬁ‘i
Net Increasef{Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 17.45 (4.66)
Cash and cash equivalents at tha beginning of the year 18.53 23‘19
Cash and Cash Equivatents at the end of the year 35.98 53
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 35.08 Y
Nate:- Changes in flabilities ansing from financing activities : i 893 |
Particulars March 31, 2018 Cash flow INDAS Impact Other non cash March 31, 2019
adjustment
Long term borrowing {Refer Note no. 16 & 21 22,751.41 {242.01) 179.87 22.01 3773138
Shart term borrowing {Refer Note no. 19) 7,848.79 2,295.05 20.06 - 10,163.90
Nates to the financial statements 1-56
As per our Report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Agcountants Arshiya Morthern FTWZ Limited

Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

n,ncu‘“tﬁ

Director
DIM : DD226355

Vljay Napawallya
Partner
Membership Number, 109859

Place : Mumbal
Date: May 27, 2019

NMHI:"""‘DJ,

Navolt Choudhary
Directar & Chief Finan
DIN: QDB13576

cial Officer



ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

1

31

3.2

33

Corporate Information

Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited {CIN : U5110SMH2008PLC183555) Is a public company domiciled in India and is Incorporated on June 15, 2008 under
the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar
Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worll, Mumbai- 400 018,

asshiya Northern FTWZ Limited {ANFTWZ} Is a subsidiary of Arshiva Limited (AL}, AL Is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and Natignal Stock
Exchange.The Company is principally engaged in the business of development, operations and malntenance of Free Trade and Warehousing Zone
{FTW2z).

The Company has developed a Free Trade & Warehousing Zone at Khurja, District Bulandshahar in the state of Uttar Pradesh and the Government of
Indla vide is Notification No. S. O. 2793{€) dated 16th November, 2010 has notifled the aforesaid area as a Free Trade & Warehousing Zone under
the provisions of The Special Economic Zone Act, 2005.

The financlal statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were approved and adopted by board of directors in their meeting
held on 27th May 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The financlal statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indlan Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) and the relevant provislons of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act"),

The Company prepared its financial statements in accordance the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) are notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indlan GAAPR).

The financlal statements have been prepared on a historical ¢ost convention, except for certain financial assets and Nabilities, which are measured
at fair value.

The financlal statements are presented in Indian Rupees {Rs.), which is the Company’s functional and presentatlon currency and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indlcated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENT:

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are carrled at cost kess accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses, if any. Cost Includes purchase
price, borrowling cost and any cost directly attributable to the bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided using stralght line method over the usaful lIfe of assets as speclfied in schedule il to
the Companles Act, 2013. Depreclation on property, plant and equipment which are added / dispesed off during the year, is provided on pro-rata
basis with reference to the date of addition / deletlon. Freehold kand is not depreclated and under the preivous GAAP land was revalued.

The ascets' residual values, useful lives and method of depreclation are reviewad at each financial year end and are adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate,

Capital work-in-progress Includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.

Property, plant and equlpment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from active use. Profits / losses arising in
the case of retirement / disposal of preperty, piant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of Its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the Indian GAAP financial
statements as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. Agpril 1, 2016.

Intangible Assets :

intangible assets are carvied at cost jess accumulated amortisation and accumutated Impairment Josses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acqulsition of the intangible assets.

\dentifiable Intangible assets are recognised when It Is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and
the cost of the asset can be rellably measured.

Computer softwares are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortlsed over the period of five years.
The assets’ useful lives are reviewed at each financtal year end.

Galns ot losses arising from dere<ognltion of an intanglble asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of alt of Its ntangible assets as recognised In the Indlan GAAP financlal statements as
deamed cost at the transition date Le. April 1, 2016,

Leases:
A lease Is classified at the inception date as a flnance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantiaily all the risks and rewards
Incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.
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The Company 35 a lessed

Finance lease

Assets acquired under finance lease are capltalized and the corresponding lease liability 1s recognised at lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of minimum lease payments at the Inception of the lease. Initial costs directly attributsble to lease are recognised with the
asset under lease.

Operating lease
Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classifled as operating fease. Lease
payments under operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

The Company as a lessor

Finance lease

Whan assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments |s recognlsed as a recelvable. The difference
between the gross recelvable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income, Lease income Is recognised over
the term of the lease using the net Investment methad before tax, which reflects a constant pericdic rate of return,

The lessor derecognises the leased assets and recognises the difference between the carrying amount of the leased assets and the finance lease
receivable in the statement of Profit and Loss when recognising the finance lease receivable.

Operating lease
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basls over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets is diminished.

Initial indirect costs incurrad In negotlating and arranging as operating lease sre added to carrying value of the leased asset and recognised on a
stralght line basis over the lease term.

inventories:
inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventorles comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and
other costs incurred In bringing the inventories 1o thair respective present locatlon and condltlon. Cost s computed on the First In first out basis.

Cash and cash equlvalents:
Cash and cash equivalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and shori-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or fess, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents conslst of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Impairment of assets:

An asset is consldered as impaired when at the date of Balance sheet, there are [ndications of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset, or
where applicable, the cash generating unlt to which the asset belongs, exceads its recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the net asset selling price
and value in use).The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction Is recognized as an impalrment lpss in the statement
of profit and loss. The impalrment loss recognized in the prlor accounting perlod ks reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful Ufe.

Financial Instruments - Inftial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment;
Afinanclal instrument Is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabllity or equity Instrument of anather entity.

Financlal assets -initlal recognition and measurement:

Al financlal assets are Initlaly recognized at falr value. Transa ction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financlal assets,
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Financial assets are classified, at Initial
recognition, as financlal assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortlsed cost.

Financlal assets - Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-

a) Financlal assets at falr value

b) Financlal assets at amortised cost

where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss {i.e fair value through
profit or loss), or recognised In other comprehensive Income (l.e. fair value through other comprehensive Income).
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A financial asset that meets the following two conditions Is measured at amortised cost (net of any weite down for Impairment) unless the asset is
deslgnated at fair value through profit or loss under the falr value option.

a) Business modal test: The objective of the Company's business model Is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flow.

b) Cash flow characterlstics test: The contractual tarms of the financial asset glve rise on specified dates to cash fiow that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount autstanding.

A financlaf asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprahensive income unless the asset is
deslgnated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a) Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and
selling financlal assets.

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rlse en specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financlal asset is measured at fair value through proflt or Joss.

Financial assets - Daracognition

A financial assets (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simllar financlal assets) Is primarily derecognised {i.e.
removed form the Company's statement of financial position) when:

a) The rights to recelve cash fiows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred Its rights to receive cash flow from the asset.

Financial Uabilities - Initial recognition and measurement:
The financial Nabillties are recognised initlally at fair value and, In the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
{ransaction costs.

Financial liabilities - Subsequent maasurament:
Financlal liabilitles are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within onée
year frorn the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are approximate at their fair value due to the short maturity of these Instruments.

Financial Liabilities - Financlal Guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee tontracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made ta reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specifled debtor fails to make a payrment when due If accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initlalty as a liabllity at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. subsequently, the Nabillty is measured at the higher of the amount of joss allowance determined and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisatlon.

Financial Uabilities - Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or explres. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another, from the same lender on substantially different termns, or the terms of an existing Yiability are substantiatly modified, such an
exchange or modlification is reated as the derecognition of the original liabllity and the recognition of a new Yability. The difference In the
respective carrylng amounts is recognised In the statement of profit and loss.

Compound Instruments

An issued financlal instrument that comprises of both the llabllity and equity components are accounted as compound financial instruments. The
falr value of the llabitity compenent is separated from the compound Instrument and the residual value is recognised as equity component of other
financlat instrument. The liabllity component Is subsequently measured at amortlsed cost, whareas the equity component is not remeasured after
jnitial recognition. The transaction costs related to compound instruments are sllocated to the liabllity and equity components in the proportion to
the allocation of gross proceeds. Transaction costs related to equity component Is recognised directly in equity and the cost refated to liability
compongnt is Included In the carrying amount of the llability component and amortised using effective Interest method.

Provisions, Contingent Liabllities, Contingent Assets and Commltmants:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a result of a past event. It is probable that an
outflow of resources embuodying economic beneflts will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. If the effect of the time value of maney is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent perlod government securities interest
rate. Unwinding of the discount |s recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisigns are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and are adjusted to reflect the current best astimate.
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Contingent llabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obllgation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
accurtence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arlses from past events where it is elther not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a refiable estimate of the amount
cannat be made. Information on contingent liability is disciosed in the Notes to the Financlal Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised.
However, when the realisation of income s virtualy certain, then the related asset Is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

Rewanue recognition
Revenue Is recognized upon transfer of control of goods (equipment) of rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the
conslderation which the Company expects to recelve In exchange for those goods or services.

Perlod based services are accrued and recognized pro-rata over the contractual perlod

Revenue Is measured at the amourit of conslderation which the company expects to be entitled to In exchange for transferring distinct goods or
services to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties [for example taxes and duties collected on

behalf of the government). Conslderation Is generally due upon satisfagtion of performance cbllgations and a receivable Is recognized when it
becomes unconditional.

Contract balances
Trade receivables
A recelvable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional,

Contract labilitles

A contract llabllity 15 the obligation to transfer goods or services 1o a customer for which the Company has recelived conslderation {or an amaunt of
consideration is due} from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract Nabllity is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabillties are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract.

Tha following are the specific revenua recognition critaria:

Free Trade and Warehousing Zone operations
Revenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area for use is accounted on accrual basis as per agreed terms.

Export benefits under Forelgn Trade Pollcy are recognised when utilized.

Interest income
|nterest income from a financial asset Is recognised when it is probable that the économic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. \nterest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest

rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrylng amount on initial recognitlon.

Dividend income
Dividend Income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

Foreign currency reinstatament and translation:

Transactions In foreign currencies are initlally recorded by the Company at rates prevailing at tha date of the transaction. Subsaguently monetary
itemns are translated at closing exchange rates ason balance sheet date and the resulting exchange difference recognised in statement of profit and
loss. Differences arising on settlement of monetary ltems are also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary Items that are measured in terms of historical cost In a forelgn currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction, Non-monetary Items carried at falr value that are denominated In foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary ftems measured at falr value 1s treated in fine
with the recognitlon of the galn or loss on the change in falr value of the ftem {i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value galn or loss Is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are atso recognised In OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Forelgn exchange differences regarded as an adustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs.
All other finance gains / losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Employee Banefits:
Short term employee beneflts are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year In which the related services are
rendered.
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Definad Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution pian, is made in accordance with the statute, and |s recognised as an expense in the yearin
which employees have rendered services.

Defined Benefit Plan

Leave encashment being a defined benefit plan Is accounted for using the projected unit credit method, on the basis of actuarial valuations carvied
out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial galns and losses arising from experlence adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive Income In the year in which they arise, Other costs are accounted In statement of
profit and loss.

The cost of providing gratulty, a defined benefit plans, Is determined using the Projected Unit credit Method, on the basis of actuarlal valuatlons
carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arlsing from experience adjustrnents and changes In
actuarlal assurnptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive Income in the period In which they arise. Other costs are accounted in
statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employrment and other long term benefits are charged to the other comprehensive
income in the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods,

Taxes on Income:

Income 1ax expense represents the sum of current tax {including MAT and Income tax for earller years) and deferred tax . Tax is recognised in the
statemnent of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other coniprehenslve income, In such cases
the tax is also recognised directly in equity or In other comprehensive income. Any subsequent change In direct tax on ltems Initially recognised in
equity or other comprehensive Income Is also recognised In equity or other comprehensive Income.

Current tax pravision Is computed for income calculated after consldering allowances and exemptions under the provislons of the applicable Income
Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

peferred tax is recognlsed on differences hetween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabllities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and defesred
1ax assets are generally recognised for alt deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that It is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be
utllised. Deferred tax assets and liabllities are measured at the applicable tax rates. The carrying amouny of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it Is no tonger probable that sufficlent taxable profits will be avallable against which the
temporary differences can be utillsed.

Credit of MAT is recognlsed as an asset only when and to the extent there Is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax
durlng the specifled period, le., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carrled forward, In the year In which the MAT credit becomes
eliglble to ke recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the staternent of profit 2nd loss and shown as MAT credit
entitlernent, The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credlt entitlement to the
extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay norma! income tax during the specified pericd.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of qualifylng assets that necessarily takes a subistantial perled of time to get
ready for its Intended use are capltalized {net of Income on temporarily deployment of funds} as part of the cost of such assets. Borrowing costs
conslst of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borrowing used for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capltalization is determined by applying a capitallzation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate (s the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowlngs made specifically for the purpose of obtaining 3 qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing
costs capitalized during a period does not excaed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowing costs are expensed
In the perlod In which they occur.

Eamings par share:
Basic earnings per share Is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. .

Diluted eamings per share is computed using the nat profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity
and potential equity shares outstanding during the year including share options, convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the
result would be antl-dilutive. Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are Included in the calculation of dlluted earnings per share,

from the beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of converslon. '

Current and non-current classification;

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statemnent of financlal position basad on current/non-current classification,

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non~current abilities and current liabilities in accordance with
schedule tll, Division Il of Companies Act, 2013 notifled by MCA.
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An asset is classifled as current whaen K is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b} Held primarlly for the purpose of trading,

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to sattle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
Al other assets are classlfied as non-current. ’

A liability is classified as cutrent when it Is:

a} Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

Iz) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢} Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting perlod, or

d} There is no unconditional right to defer the settiernent of the liabllity for at Jeast twelve months after the reporting period.

Al other llabilitles are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle ls the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisatlon in cash or ¢ash equivalents. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabliities. The Company has identified twelve months as its normal operating cycle.

Falr value measurement:

‘The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Bability takes
plage either:

a) 1n the principal market for the asset or llability, or

b} in the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

A falr value measurement of 3 non-financial asset takes Into account a market participant’s abllity to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selfing It to another market particlpant that would use the asset In its highest and best use.

The Company uses vatuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suffictent data are avallable to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unohservabla inputs. '
All assets and liabiiities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the falr value hierarchy.

Off-getting financial Instrument:

Financial assets and llabilities are offset and the net amount s reported In the balance sheet where there Is a legally enforceable rights to oftset the
recognised amounts and there Is an Intentlon to settte on a net basls or realise the asset and settle the liabiity simultaneously. The legally
enforceable rights must not ba contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and In the event of default

Insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or counterparty, ’

Segment Reporting - identification of Segments

An operating segment 5 a component of the Company that engages in businass activities from which It may earn revenues and incur expenses,
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating declsion maker to make dacisions for which discrete ﬂnaru:lai
Information is avallable. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating declsion maker evaluates the Company’s
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segrments.

Contributed Equity
Equity Shares are classified as equity, incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction
net of tax from the proceeds. B

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the efffects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past o future cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activites of the Company
are segregated based on the available Information.

Dividend Distrlbution
Annual dividend distribution o the shareholders|ls recognised as a Kability In the perlod in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders.

Any interim dividend paid is recognlsed on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is
recognised directly in other equity.
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS:

The preparation of the financial statements requires managerment to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabiilties, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disciosure of contingent liabllities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result In outcomes that require a material adjustment to the camying amount of assets or liabllities
affected In future perlods. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a signiflcant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Nabllities within the next financlal year, are described
below. The Company based on Its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However,
exlsting circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets:

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be
recorded durlng any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values as per schedufe Il of the Companies Act, 2013 or are based on the
Company's historical experience with similar assets and taking Into account anticipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.

Income Tax:
The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrylng amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used In estimates may differ from actual
outeome which could lead to an adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Contingencies:
Management has estimated the possible outflow of respurces at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any, in respect of
oontingenclesfclaimﬂltlgations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment of financlal assets:

The impairment provisions for financlal assets are based on assumptlons about risk of defautt and expected cash Loss, The Company uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the Impalrment caleulation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditlons as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting pericd.

Impairment of non-financial assats:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impalrment testing for an asset1s required, the Company estimates the asset’s recovera ble amount. An asset’s recoverable amount Is the higher of
an asset’s or Cash Generating Units {CGU) fair value Jess costs of disposal and Its value in use. it is determined for an individual asset, ynless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely Independent to those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impalred and is written down 1o its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
rmarket assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. in determining falr value less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken Into account. If no such transactlons can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other avallable falr value indicators.

Defined benefits plans:

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present vaiue of such obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments In the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities Invotved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptlons. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date,

Provisions:

Provisions an¢ Wabilities are recognized In the perlod when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past
operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be rallably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liabllity require
the appiication of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years
In the future, the carrying amaunts of provisions and Nabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and
circumstances.

Fair value measurement of flnanclal instruments ;

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabllitles recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices In active
markets, thelr fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement Is required In establishing fair values.
ludgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatllity. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

Computer
Software

Gross Carrying Value [at deemed cost)
As at April 1, 2017 203.93
Additions 619.00
Disposals {203.93)
As at March 31, 2018 619.00
Additions
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2019 619.00
Accumulated Amortisation
As at April 1, 2017 203.93
Amortisation for the year 41.38
Deductions (203.93)
As at March 31, 2018 41.38
Amortisation for the year 123.80
Deductions -
As at March 31, 2019 165,18
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 453,82

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2018

577.62
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As at

Particulars
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Authorised Share Capltal
2,40,00,000 {As at March 31, 2018: 2,40,00,000) Equity shares of Rupees 10 each
2,400.00 2,400.00
10,00,000 (As at March 31, 2018: 10,00,000) Preference Shares of Rupees 10 each 100.00 100.00
Total 2,500.00 2,500.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
1,08,68,677 (As at March 31, 2018: 1,08,68,677) Equity Shares of Rupees 10 each 1,086.87 1.086.87
Total 1,086.87 1,086.87
ii} Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars In humbers Amaunt

{Rupees in lakhs)

Equity Share Capital
Eguity shares of Rupees 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At April 1, 2017 1,08,68,677 1,086.87
Issued during the year - B
At March 31, 2018 1,08,68,677 1,086.87
Issued during the year " .
At March 31, 2019 1,08,68,677 1,086.87

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rupees 10 per share. Each hoider of equity share is entitled to one vote per
<hare. The shareholders wha held shares on the record date are entitled to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to

approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied ta receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

jii. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
: Number % holding Number % holding
Equity shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid
Arshiya Limited (Holding Company ] 1,08,68,077 N 1,08,68,077
Shares held by Nominee and jointly shareholders 600 o0 600 100
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FINANCIAL ASSETS
7 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS {Rupees in lakhs)
P_articui_a'_rﬁ ] As at As at
’ March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Non Current
Financlal assets carried at amortised cost
Financial Guarantee 168.15% 241.80
Total 168.15 241,80
8 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS {Rupees In lakhs)
Particuldrs As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Others
- TD5 Receivable 56.40 35.84
Total 66.40 39.84
9 CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES {Rupees In lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
ke March 31, 2019 Mavch 31, 2018
Trade Receivables cansidered good - Secured _ ;
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecurad® 102.02 40,28
Trade Recejvable which have Significant increasa in Credit Risk . B
Trade Receivable credit Impaired - -
Total 102.02 40.29

Note: There Is no impairment of ECL since major amount are reclevable from related party.

*Includes Rupees 53.28 lakhs In March 31,2012 (Ruppes 38.80 lakhs in March 31, 2018} due from Arshiya Logistics Services Limited

{formerly known as Laxmipatl Balaji Exim Trading Limited) .

Note: In the opinion of the Management, the dues from Arshiva Loglstics Services Limitad, a fellow subsidiary, are goad for recovery in view
of long term business plans and future strategles of the Company which shall eventually improve its ability to pay its debts.

10 CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

{Rupees in lakhs)

Partlculars

Asat
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

On current accounts:

Balances with banks 3306 18.53
Cash on hand 292 .
Total 35.98 18.53
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11 CURRENT ASSETS - LOANS

{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Loans to Related Parties [Refer note 40} 325.87 -
Total 325.87 -
12 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS {Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at .
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2018
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stoted
Security Deposits 17.49 17.49
Cther Recelvable - 8.27
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Financial Guarantee 7365 126.80
Total 91.14 152.56
13 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS {Rupees in kakhs)
particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
Current
Prepaid expenses 4.05 2.25
{ndirect Tax refund receivable [Refer Note 47) 355.06 355.06
Balance with Govt. Authority 1.02 -
TDS Receivable 1067
Total 370.80 357,31
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20

CURRENT LIABILITIES- TRADE PAYABLES {Rupegs In |akh5’
Particuiars As at As at
. . March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total cutstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 33 & 49) 856 420
Total outstanding dues of creditors Gther than Micro and Small Enterprises
{Refer Note 49) %6.87 101.95
Total 105.43 106.15
21 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 M .
Financial Liabi%ities at amortised cost arch 91, 2018
Current maturities of long term borrowings
Term Loans from banks® {Refer Note 21.1 below) 12,104.18 12,104.18
Tertn Loans from others {Refer Note 21.2 below & 16.1) 2,113.15 '200.00
interest accrued and due on borrowings ** 16,825.49 12,481.06
Interast accrued but not due on borrowings 691.87 '355‘?5
Security Deposit 45.35 slsg
Advance warehouse rent 5.79 I
Others
Project Creditors {Refer Note 34 and 45) 5,510.23 5338.11
Employee's Dues**™ 65.71 ‘ 53'55
Payahble for Expenses 9.08 1}"83
Total 37,370.85 30,557.08

* include Loan aggregating to Rupees 12,104.18 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 12,104.18 lakhs) racalled by banks.

211

**|nelude interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggregating to Rupees 14,547.59 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 11,638.50 lakhs)
recalled by banks.
+¥ Include Interest accrued and due on cash credit facility aggregating to Rupees 409.32 lakhs {March 31, 2018 Rupees 323.49 lakhs)

recalled by bank.
»+# include Full and Final settlement of Rupees 32.05 takhs {March 31, 2018 Rupees 17.43 lakhs)

Rupee term loan from Banks :-

{a) Rupee term loans {including current maturity) of Rupees 12,104,18 lakhs {March 31, 2018 ; Rupees 12,104.18 lakhs) are secured by

{1) Detalls of Securlty
i, First Pari Passu charge on flxed assets of the Company - both present and future

ii.First Pari Passu chargefassignment/security interest on the Company's rights under the project documents, contracts (including

guarantees) and all licenses, permits, approvals, consents and insurance policies.

jii, Assignment of contractor guarantees, liquidated damages, letter of credit, guarantee or performance under any project agréemant or

contract in favour of the Company.

iv. Second charge on current assets.

v. Personal guarantee from Promoters of the Holding Company.

vi. Pledge of 4,052,778 Equity Shares of the Company heid by the Holding Comgpany.
vii.Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company.

{2) Terms of Interest rate:
.an Term Loans from Banks 13 % p.a.,

{3} Terms of repayment i~

[Rupees in lakhs)

Financlal Year Term Loans fram
Banks
2012-2013 60422
2013-2014 1,41023
2014-2015 1,680.76
2015-2016 8,408.97
Total 12,104.18
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{4) Amount and period of defaultin repayment of borrowings

{Rupees in lakhs]

As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Amount Pariod of Default
Current maturity of Rupee Term loans 604.22 2012-13
1,410.23 2013-14
1,680.76 2014-15
8,408.97 2015-16
Total 12,104.18

21.2 (b} Rupee term loans from NBFC {Including current maturity) of Rupees NIL {March 31, 2018 : Rupees 200.00 lakhs) are secured by

1. Personal Guarantee of a promoter of the Holding Company.

ii. Charge on movable property has been registered and an immaovable property .e. land admeasuring 1.88 acres is to be registered.

{2) Terms of Interest rate:
.on Term Loan from NBFC 11% p.a.

**+ Amount and perlod of default In payment of Interest on borrowlngs

{Rupees In lakhs)

particulars March 31, 2015
Banks Others Period of Default
Interest accrued & due on borrowing 2,073.35 2013-14
1,778.91 2014-15
2,025.42 - 2015-16
2,280.95 - 2016-17
2,797 47 529.67 201718
3,5987.49 938.91 2018-1%9
Total 13,947.59 1,368.58

The amortised cost disclose above s net off interest cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees 194.02 lakhs for Marcl

2018 Rupees 292.17 lakhs).

»* pAmount and perlod of default in payment of Interest on Cash Credit from Banks

{Rupees In kakhs}

h 31, 2019 { March 31,

particulars March 31, 2019
Banks Perlod of Default

Interest accrued & due on Cash Credit - 2013-14

51.04 2014-15

58.31 2015-16

60.17 2016-17

64.64 2017-18

175.16 2013-18

Total 409,32 :
22 OTHER CURRENT UABILITIES {Rupees in lakhs})
Ia As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Statutory Liabilitias® 106.98 40.40
Interest on delayed payment on statutory dues 48.53 43.14
Total 155.91 83.54
* Statutory liablities include TDS, PF,ESIC payable,Employee professionat tax
23 CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS {Rupees In lakhs)
: As at As at
Particutars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note 35) - 6.13
Leave encashment {Refer Note 35} 061 257
Total 0.61 8.70
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15

__{Rupees in lakhs}

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Securities Premium Account 42,845.95 42.845.95
Retained Earnings (25,205.72) (17,242.79)
Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company 643.01 e43.01
Equity Component of loan from Parent Company 53.95 53.95
Total 18,337.19 26,300.12
{a) Securities Premium Account {Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
openlng balance 42,845<95 42 845,95
Closing Balance 42,845.95 42,845.95
{b) Retained Earnings {Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening balance {17,242.79)
,242. 7,925.85
Add/(Less): { |
Net Profit/{Loss) for the year {7,955.52) (9,307.29)
Other comprehensive income (7.41) J [9’65]
Closing balance {25,205.72) (17,242,79)

{c} Nature & purpose of Reserves

Securities Premium Account:
Securities premium reserve represents the amount received in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation of the
securities premium reserve is governed by the Provision of Companies Act, 2013,

Retained Earnings :
Retained Earnings are the profits/losses of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

Equity Component of Guarantee glven by Parent Company:
The fair value of financial guarantees given to the lenders of the Company by the Parent Company is recognised as a deemed
equity component.

Equity Component of loan from Parent Company:
The difference between the fair value of interest free loans on the date of issue and the transition price is recognised as a deemed
equity component by the Parent Company.

For computation of the fair value benefit, the Company has estimated the fair value of the financial fiabitity on the daste of issue of
considering complete market interest rates adjusted to the facts and circumstances relevant the Company.
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16 NOMN CURRENT BORROWINGS

16.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

{a} Term Loans
Erem Others {Refer note 16,1 below) 8,513.95 10,447.22
Total 8,513.95 10&7.22

Rupee term loan from other partias -

{8} Rupge tarm loans {including currant maturity} of Rupees 10,627.10 lakhs {March 31, 2018 : Rupess 10,447.22 lakhs) are secured by
{1) Datulls of Security

i First Parl Passu charge on fixed ass
ji. First Pari Passu charge/assignment/security Intere

approvals, consents and Insurance policles.
li. Assignment of contractor guarantees, liquidated damages, letter of credit, guarantee or performance under any project agreement or contract In favour of the Company.

ets of the Company - both present and future
st on the Company's rights under the project documents, contracts (Including guarantees) and all licenses, permits

. Seconl charge on current assets.
v. Personal guarantee from Promatess of the Holding Company.
vi. Pledge of 4,052,778 Equity Shares of the Company held by the Holding Company.

vil.Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company.

{2) Terms of Interest rate:
on Term Loan from others 10% p.a.compaunded quarterly,

{3) Terms of rapayment :-

2019-2020 2,113.15

2020-2021 323,92

2021-2022 3,385.55

2022-2023 5.223.64

e

Tatal 11,146.26

[4) The amartised cost disclosed above is net off of Incidental cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees £19.15 lakhs for March 31, 2019 and Rupees 699.02 lakhs for March

31, 2018

Rupees in lakhs

R NON CRRE‘NT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financlal Liabllities at amortised cost

Security Deposit 11.14

Advance warehguse rent 10:30 )
Total 2144 -

18 NON CURRENT LLABILITIES - PROVISIONS

i X n
Tb i

Provision for employee benefits
Gratulty (Refer Note 35) 73
Leave encashment [Refer Note 35) 300 gg;
Total 7.73 13.90
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19 CURRENT BORROWINGS _

‘Secured
{a) Cash Credit Loan from bank [refer note 18.1 below)

263.30 263.34

Unsacured
{b) Loans from Holding Company {refer note 19.2 below & Note 40} ,900.60 7 585.45
Total 10,163.9¢ 7,848.79

49.1 (a) Cash Cradit kian of Rupwes 263,30 lakhs {(March 31, 2018 : Rupeaes 263.34 lakhs) ara securad by

{1) Detalls of Sacurity
- First Pari Passu charge on entire current assets of the Company - both present and future.

. Sacond Pari Passu charge on the assets charged for Terrn Loan on first pari passu charge to lender,

- Personal guarantee from Promoters of the Holding Company.
- Pledge of 4,052,778 Equity Shares of tha Company heid by the Helding Company.

- Corporate Guarantes of the Holding Company.

(2) Terms of Interest rate:
Rate of interest on Cash Credit Loan ; 14 % p.a.

{3) Amount and perlod of default in rapayment of borrowings
Continuing default in repayment of Cash credit loan as at March 31, 2019 is Rupees 263.30 lakhs since FY 2014-2015.

19.2  b) Unsecurad Loan fram Holding Company
Interest free loan upta 1year and repayable on demand.
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24 _REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Storage Income 457.24 304.64
Materiat Handling and other services 3.56 3'75
460.80 308.40

25 OTHER INCOME

Interest income on Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Unwinding of interest on loan to related party

(Rupees in lakhs)

- 7.26
Other interest income
Interest income on income tax refund 1.14 .
Interest income on loan given 0.12 i
Other income
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain - 1.08
Sundry Balance/ Excess provision Written Back 221.29 75.83
Lease Income 33,76 8.44
Miscellaneous Income 6.59 7'6 4

262.90 100.25

26 COST OF OPERATION

_(Rupees In lakhs)

MHE Labour - Skilled

5.69 5.87
Equipment Hire and other charges 3.30 3.83
8.99 9.70
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Salaries, wages and bonus 381.44 643.72
Contribution to provident and other funds 7.10 6.03
staff welfare expenses 11.77 17.18

400.31 666.93

27 EMPLOVEEBENEFITSEXPENSE _______________ Rupees in lakhs)

28 FINANCE COST

_{Rupees in lakhs)

Interest expense on Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest expense on borrowings 4,886.00 4,291.53

Unwinding of interest on loan from related party 20.06 304.06

Interest on Security deposits 2.03 ]

Interest expense others

Interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 552 28.87

(nterest on MSME vendors 0.45 -

Interest on others 763.31 )

Others

Guarantee Commission Expense 126.80 126.80

Bank charges 1.08 228
5,805.25 4,753.54

Depreciation on tangible assetls 1,485.99 1,537.69
Amortisation on intangible assets 123.80 41.38
1,609.79 1,579.07

Rupees in lakhs}
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30 OTHER EXPENSES

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Repairs and maintenance

- Building 25.32 678.71
- Others 114 0.71
Advertisement 3.91 37.90
Payments to Auditors (Refer note below) 6.00 6.00
Electricity charges 32.03 31.28
Insurance 9.82 15.57
Legal and professional fees 32.86 54.75
Rates and taxes 2.84 5.37
Rent 3.36 14.21
Printing and Stationary 261 5.92
Security charges 59.21 63.19
Telephone and internet expenses 41.45 9.63
Travelling & conveyance expenses 103.33 280.57
vehicle Expenses 8.02 18.30
Miscellanegus expenses 32.64 33.66
Totat 327.54 1,255.28
(a) Details of _l-‘a_vmerlts to auditors {Rupees in lakhs}
G : _ 2018-19 2017-18
As Statutory Auditor
Audit Fee 6.00 6.00
31 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (Rupees in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Property, plant and Equipment Written off
Loss on sale of Investment {Refer Note no. 48}
Sundry Balance Written Back

Settlement of Claim

- 85.56
- 1,101.21
- {143.69)
527.34 408.34
527.34 1,451.42
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32  Earnings per share [Basic and Diluted)

P_a:rllc_ulaljs_ . Asat As at
' - March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Proflt avallable to equity shareholders
Loss after tax (A} [Rupees in Lakhs) 7,955.52)
. . g .
Number of equity shares {9,307 .29}
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Basic and Diluted) (B) 1,08,68,677 1 08.68.677
Basi¢ & Diluted earnings per share{A/B) {Rupees) (r3.20) e
Nominal Value of an equity share (Rupees} : 10 (85.613;
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
{To the extent not provided for}
[Rupees in lakhs)
particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2019
Bond cum legal undertaking YToET March 31,2018
L : 3,830.21

|N_ocas!1 outflow Is expected in near future

34  Certain creditors have initiated legal proceedings against the company and its directors and the company has defaulted in payment of instalments of
terms for which the campany is in process of negotlating and finalising the revised consent terms, Majerity of the creditors have bean settled over the m:&:m
years and seme of the creditors have alsc shown interest and faith not only In logistics and infrastructure sector but afso in the Company and are beingp:llsot:gt

equity shares of Holding Company.

35  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
5.1 Disclosure pursuant to indian Accounting Standard {IND AS} 19 — Employee Benefits

{a} Defined contribution plans

Contribution ta Cefined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the years are as under:

particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, Z01E
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 2.12 2.89
Employer's Contribution to Pensian Scheme 482 6.56
Employer's Contribution to ESIC 017 0.15

{1} Brief descriptions of the plans

The Company's defined contribution plans are Provident Fund and Empioyees State Insurance where the Company has no further obligation beyond mak h
contributions. The Company's defined benefit plans include gratuity. The employees are also entitled to leave encashment as per the Company's policy ing the

{c) leave Obligations

[Rupees in lakhs)

—

Particulars

¥ear ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

provislons for Leave encashment

Current 0.61 257
Non Current 3.00 503
Total Employee Banefit Ohligation 361 7.60

{d} Defined benefit plan - Gratulty:

The employee's Gratuity fund is managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The present value of obligation is determined based on acluarial valuati
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognised each period of services as giving rise to additlonal unit of employee banefit entitlement ang me: sulroe"
5

each unit separately to build up to final obligation,
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Particulars .

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

1. Actuarial assumptions
Mortality Table

indian  Assured lives

Indian  Assured lives
Mortality {2006-08} Ult |Mortality  (2006-08)
ult
Discount rate 6.95% 7.40%
Expected return on plan assets 7.40% 7.40%
Salary Escalation Rate 9.00% 7.00%
withdrawal Rate 17.00% 15.00%
Retirement Age 58 Years S8 Years
1l. Change in Present value of defined benefit obllgations
Liability as at the beginning of the year 16.76 13.46
Intgrast cast 1.24 0.72
Current service cost 1.71 244
Benefits paid (13.64) {9.51}
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 7.41 960
Acquisition adjustment (7.93) -
Liability as at the end of the year 555 16.76
11l. Change in Falr value of plan assets
Fair value of pian assets as at the beginning of the year 0.76 0.76
Expected return on plan assets 0.06 0.05
Actual Enterprise’s Contributions . 9.51
Benefits paid {9.51)
Actuarial gain/{loss} on plan assets - {0.05)
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 0.82 0.76
V. Actual return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assets 0.06 0,05
Actuarial gain/iloss) on plan assets - {0.05)
Actual return on plan assets 0.06 -0.00
V. Liabllity recognised in the Balance Sheet
Liability as at the end of the year 555 16.76
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 0.8z 0.76
Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 4.73 16.00
VI, Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets
insurer managed funds 100% 100%
VIL. Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Currant service cost 1.71 2.49
Interest cost - 0.72
gxpected returnan plan assets - {0.05)
Net actuarial {gain)/loss to be on obligation 118 i
Expense racognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 2.89 3.16
VI, Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income {acy
Amount recagnised in OCI, beginning of the year 17.78 8.13
Components of actuarial galn/losses on obligations
Due to Change in financial assumptions 0.88 0.34)
Due to Change in demographic assumption 0.21) .
Due to Change in experience assumption . 6.74 994
Expected return on plan assets - {0.05}
Total measurement recognised in QCl 7.41 9.65
25.19 17.78

Amount recognised in 0c|, end of year
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|X. Balance Sheet recancillation
Opening net llah].hl\r . 16.00 12.70
Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss
L Empl buti 2.89 3.16

Actual Employer Cantribution . {13.64) (3.51)
Net transfer by group companies A
Net transfer to group companies ) ’
Tntalll?._e‘measqrement recognised in OC! 7.41 965
Acquisition adjustment (7.93)

losing net liabilit ' )
Closing net liability 4.73 16.00

{e} Salary escalation assumption has been set in discussions with the enterprise based on their estimates of overall long-term salary growth rates after taking int
INg into

consideration expected earnings infiation as well as performance and seniority related increases.

35.2 Seqsitivlty analysis:

[Pa’rtii’:iila_r':s : R Changes in Effect on Gratuity

s ) . assumptions bligati

For the year ended 31st March, 2018 : obligation

Salary growth rate +0.50% 17.11

. -0.50% 1 5:44

Discount rate +0.50% 16.44
-0.50% 17.11

For the year ended 315t March, 2019

salary growth rate +1.50% 5.74
0.50% .

Discount rate +0.50% :;3
-0.50% 5,74

The abn\{e sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice this is unfikely to occ d
changes in some of the .assurnptpns rn::w be correlated. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit Obli;ation ha'-'sr,b an

calcutated using the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined obligati ‘-??n
recognised In the balance sheet. obligation lability

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: longevity risk and salary risk.
Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase the plan liability.
Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan partici b
during and after their employment. An increase In the lifa expectancy of the plan participants. As such, an increase the plan's liability pasticipants both
Salary risk - The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, as increase in the sal

. . e salary

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 6 years (315t March, 2018 - 6 years)

(A
(8]
{cl
of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.
35.3
36

Disclosure pursuant to Indlan Accounting Standard 108 - Operating Segment

The Company is primarily engaged in the warehousing and handling business. In the apinion of the company, the entire cperations are governed by th

st of risks and returns and hence the same has been considered as representing a single primary segment. The Company provides services within :rnd-: sa;n.e

does not have any operation in economic environments with different risks and returns. Hen: i i 1 ana it
. ce It i= considered that the Com i [P .

geographical segment. pany is operating in a single

Customers individually contributes to more than 10% of revenue :-

There are 2 customers { March 31 2018 - 4 customers) aggregating to Rupees 394.61 lakhs ( March 21, 201
’ - . 2 Rupees 2303611 ituti
31, 2018- 98%]} of Revenue, P 1 lakhs) canstituting 79% { March
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37  Taxatlon
37.01 in view of boss for the year, no provision for current tax has been made,

37,02 The Company has not recognised any deferred tax assets on deductible temparary differences, unused tax losses as it Is not probable that the Company will
have sufficient future taxable profit which can be available against the avaliable tax losses.

17,03 Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

2012-2013 - 2020-2021 2,068.28
2013-2014 - 2021-2022 2,379.39
2014-2015 - 2022-2023 3,650.45
2015-2016 315.21 2023-2024 3,113.82
2016-2017 1,088.82 2024-2025 271875
2017-2018 9,797.57 2025-2026 2,401.62
2018-2019 2,879.08 2026-2027 2,206.62
2019-2020 1,689.58 2027-2028 2,148.62

Total 15,770.26 20,687.55

Deferred tax assets as at 31st March, 2019 Rupees 7,520.43 Lakhs {31st March, 2018 - Rupees 8,016.33 Lakhs) has not been recognised, as there is no
convicting evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available agalnst which the unadjusted tax losses will be utilised by the Company.

Details of Deferred tax assets are mentioned below:- Rupees In lakhs}
Property plant equipment 2,900.62 2,859.46

Financial instruments 187.53 282.80

Unabsorbed depreclation {5,378.76} {4,801.59)
Expense allowable on payments under section 43B and 40(a}{ia) {1,129.55} (3,136.25)
Unabsorbed loss {4,100.27) (3,220.75)
Total Deferred Tax Assets {7,520.43) {8,016.33}

38 DISCLOSURES UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 200€)

To the extent,the company has received intimation feom the *suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006, the details are provided as under

{i} Principal amount remalning unpaid B 8.56 4.20
{ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid 0.45

{ilt) Interest pald by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises -
Development Act 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the year.

{iv) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micre,
small and Medium Enterprises Developmaent Act, 2006.

(v} interest accrued and remalning unpaid (net of tax deducted at source} 0.45
{vl} Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest| -
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise.
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39 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 - Leases and certain amendment 1o existing Ind AS. These amendments
shall be applicable to the Company from April 01, 2012,

A) ISSUE OF IND AS 115 - LEASES

Ind AS 116 will supersede the current standard on leases Le. Ind AS 17-"Leases. As per Ind AS 118, the lessor will have to bring to books all the non-
cancellzble portion of leasing arrangement.

B) AMENDMENT TO EXISTING STANDARD

The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards
i. Ind AS 101- First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

ii. Ind AS 103 — Busingss Combinations

il Ind AS 108 - Financial Instruments

. Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements

v. Ind AS 12 — Income Taxas

vi. Ind AS 15 — Employee Benefits

vii. Ind AS 23 — Borrowing Costs

viil. Ind AS 28 - Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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40  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

i) Uist of related partles as per the requirements of nd-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Sr. Np. |Name of Related Party

Nature of Relatieaship % of equity intergst  |Country of Incorporation
1 _|arshiya Limited Holding Company 100 India
Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited (till March 21, 2018)
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Arshiys Industrial & Distribution Hub Limitad
. Fi .
2 |arshiya Northern Projects Private Limited ellow Subsidlarles India
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited [formerly known as Laxmlpati Balaji Exim Trading
Limitadi
Mr. Ajay 5. Miital - Director
Mrs. Archana A Mittal - Director
a Mr. Navnit Choud hary - Director & Chief Financial Officer Kev Man il P . R
Mr. Siddarth Kasturia - Chief Executive Officer {w.e.f. March 26, 2019) ¥ agerial Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Ashish Xumar Bairagra - Directar
r. Rishabh Pankaj Shah - Director
4 ‘Noval FTWZ Limited {Formaly known as Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited) Controlied or Jaintly controlled entities
5 |Mr. Ananya A Mittal Relative of Key Managerial Fersannel
(I} The nature and amount of transactions with the above related parties ars a5 follows
{Rupees in lakhs}
Name Nature of Transaction March 31, 2019 Msarch 31, 2018
‘arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited Storage Income B &0.00
Handling Incoma - 032
Arshiya Logistics Secvices Umited Storage Income 322.88 14564
Hand|Ing income 2.07 - l‘ 13
Interest expense on Securlty deposit 177 -_
Warehousing Rent income 1,11 N
Arshiya Limited Lease rent income 33.76 544
Arshiya [ndustrial & Distribiution Hub Limited Loans glven . 54.99
Loan repsy fad] d*” z {50.B0)
unwinded [nterest Income on Loan 1o fellow - 126
subsidiary '
Sale of aquity shares of ASCM ** 4787
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited Loans taken 1943 aﬁi‘
Loan repay t f adj d** 1354,31
Unwinded intarest expense on Loan from fellow - (301.22)
subsidiary )
Arshiya Northern Projects Private Limited Loans piven 0.75
Noval FTWZ Limited (Fermaly known as Arshlys Cantral FTWZ Limited} Loans glven 325 00
nterest Income 0.12 -
Arshiya Limited {oans taken** 12,533.34) 17.188.87)
Loan repayments 280.19 '337' 26
allocation of cost and common sxpenses by (41,95) |566.71)
Helding Company* S
Unwinded Interest expense an Loan from holding [20.06) {17.911
company ’
Financial Guarantess (126.80) (12680

* During the year, the Holding Company has alliocated certain common cost and expenses incurred by it, ta the company aggregating to Rupees 41,95 lakhs [31st March, 2018 - Rupees 566.71

loxhs) based on Holding Cormpany's astimates of such cast and axpenses attributable to the company. Hence, Employes benefit expanses | Refer Note No. 27) and cartain sxpenses stated
under other axpenses {Refer Note Na. 30) are presantad as inclusive of such allocation of certain common costs and expenses,

»* puring the previous year, the Company has adjusted balance payable amount of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (ARAIL) Rupees 2,026.74 |akhs, baiance payable amaunt of Arshiya Supply
Chain Management Private Limited [ASCM} Rupees 262.38 Iakhs and receivable amount of Arshiys industrial, Bistribution & Hub Limited [AIDHL) on Rupees 90.18 Iakhs with Arshiya Limited

** Puring the pravious year, AIDHL has made payment of Rupees 47.87 lakhs on behalf of the comp

any 1@ Arshiya Limited for equity share purchase of ASCM.
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Closing Balances

[Rupees in iakhs)

Mame

march 31, 2013

Tride Recelyahies:

March 31 2018 _

Arshiya Limited

Arshiya Logistics Serylces Limits

53.28

30.83

8.44

Lovins reloted porties

Arshiya Limited

9.900.60

7,585.4%

toan to Related parties

Arshlya Northern Projects P

075

Noval FTWZ Limil

ted (Formaly known as Arshiya Cantral FTWZ Limited]

335.12

vetaived

Arshlys Loglstics Services Limited

22.08

Advonce wirghouse rent’

Arshiya Loglstics Services Limitad

12,38

Finonclal Guarantee

Arshiya Limited

24180

36880

Arghlya Limited

Cormﬁmmmnwkm

28,450.00

28,450.00

porate Guerantag
Arshiya Limited

350.00

Ajay 5 Mittal

Personal Gugrantee token: - -

31.421.00

31,816.00

Archana A Mittal

31,421.00

31,421.00
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i}

{ii)

(a)

{b)

ic)

{iii}

(a)
(b)

ic)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial Instruments by Category {Rupees in lakhs)
Carrylng Amount Fair Value
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amortised cost

Trade Receivables 102.02 40.29 102.02 40,29
Loans 325.87 - 325.87 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 35.98 18.53 35.98 18.53
Security Deposits 17.49 17.49 17.49 17.49
Financial Guarantee 241.80 376.88 241.80 376.88
Total 723.16 453.19 723.16 453.19

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost

Borrowings 32,895.18 30,600.20 32,895.18 30,600.20
Trade Payables 105.43 106.15 105.43 106.15
Other financial fiabilities 23,153.52 18,252.20 23,153.52 18,252.90

Total 56,154.13 48,959.25 56,154.13 48,959.25

Fair Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

The Company maintains procedures o value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. The
fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to translfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between ma rket participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The Company assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial
assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values for loans to subsidiaries, security deposits and other financial liabilities were calculated based on cash flows discounted
using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the Fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable
inputs including counterparty credit risk.

The fair values of non current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. Thay are classified as
iavel 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unohservable inputs, including own credit risk,

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised
and measure at fair value, To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determing fair value, the company has
classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, traded bonds, over the counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techiniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs reguired to fair value an Instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level
2.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpase of these financial liabilities is to manage for the Company's
operations. The Company's financizl assets comprises of loans, trade and other receivables, cash and deposits that arises directly from its operations.

The company’s activities expase it to variety of financial risks including credit risk, liguidity risk and market risk. The Company's risks management assessment, management and
processes are established to Identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company to set up appropriate risks limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliances with
the same. Risks assessment and managment policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the comapny's activities.

risk Exp e arising from Megsurement Management
Cradit risk Cash and cash equivalents, |Ageing analysis Regular review of credit
trade receivables and limits

Financlal assets measured gt
amortised cost.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of financial
liahilities support from parent
company
Market risk — foreign exchange Recopnised financial assets | Sensitivity analysis Unhedged

and liabillties not
denaminated in indian rupee
{INR}

wWarket risk — interest ratg Long-term borrowings at Sensitivity analysis Unhedged
|variable rates

The Company's risk management i5 carried out by a corporate finance team under the policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides wrillen principles for
averall risk management as weil as policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk, interest rate risk.

{A) Credit risk
The Company Is exposed to credit risk, which is risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises from
cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures 1o trade customers including outstanding receivables.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed by the company through
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Outstanding customer receivables are
reguiarly monitored. Credit risk is high as only few customers’ account for mejority of the revenue in the year presented. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the campany
uses expected credit loss model to assess the Impairment lass or gain.

{B) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present 2nd future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceplable 1osses. The Compisny's
objective Is to, at all times; mgintain optimurn levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company limits its liquidity risk by ensuring funds from trade
receivables. The Company relies on operating cash flows and funding from holding company to meet Its needs for funds.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flaws towards financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet 16 the tontractual
maturity date.
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities {Rupees In lakhs}
l_ Between 1 year and 5

Particulars Less than 1 year yenrs More than 5 year
March 31, 2019

Borrowings 24,381.24 9,033.10

Trade payables 105.43 .

Other financial liabllities 23,170.00 . .
‘Total Financial labillties q7,656.67 9,033.10 N
March 31, 2018

Borrowings 20,173.03 11,146.25

Trade payables 106.15 -

Other financial liabillties 18,252.90 - .
Total Financial lfabiiities 38,532.08 11,146.25 -
{C) Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of volatility of prices in the financlal markets. Market risk can be
further segregated as: 1) Foreign curréncy risk and 2) Interest rate risk
1 Eoreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's expusure Lo the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily 1o the Company's eperating activities.

1.1 Foreign currency risk expasure
Details of foreign currency transactions/baiances not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise ara as undar:

(Rupees in lzkhs)

Particulars Currency FInancial Year Ended Foreign currency amount !E::;vale mt amaunt (in
Trade receivables Usoh March 31, 2019 0.66 46.86
March 31, 2018 0.10 6.32

EURO March 31, 2019 0.04 277

March 31, 2018 0.04 3.20
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1.2 Sensithvity

The Sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rate arises malnly fram foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

{Rupees in lakhs)

Increase/(decrease} in profit before tax

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018

FX rate - Increase by 1% on closing rate of reporting date 0.50 0.10
T rate - {decrease) by 1% on closing rate of reporting 10.50) 10107
date

The above amounts have been disclosed based on the accounting palicy for exchange differences.

{iit) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s mai
Interest rate risk arises from long term barrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During the March 31, 3019 lh:co‘:’“p:’:n
’ 5

borrowings at the variabie rate were mainly denominated in Rupees.

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in IND AS- 107, since neither the carrying

amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rata risk exposurs

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:-

[Rupees in lakhs)

|Particulars

March 31, 2019 tWarch 31, 2018

variable rate borrowings

12,367.48

12,367.52

interest sensitivity

Profit or Joss |s sensitive 1o higher/ lower Interest expense from borrowings as a result of changas In interest rates.

Particulars Impact on profit before tax

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest sensiivity
50 bps increase the profit befare tax by* {61.84) (61.84]
50 bps decrease the profit before tax by* 61.84 61.84
* Holding all other variable constant
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a3

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the company's ability to continue going concern in order to i

the‘retlfrn for sh_areho!ders and benefit to other stakeholders and to maintain an optional capital structure 1o reduce the cost of Eam'\: |e

capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the connpanpl o
Y.

The comp?nv manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the reguirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareh?)rllds -
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital usi i i ich i ; ers.
equity. Y pital using a gearing ratio, which is debt divided by total

{Rupees in 1akhs)

Particular March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Borrowings
3
Other Financial Liabilities (interest accrued) 132??;2 ?222020
. . .836.81
Total Debt 50,412.55 43,437.01
Equity
. 1,086.87 4.088.87
Other eguity 18,337.19 26,300.12
Total Equity 19,424.06 27,386.99
Total debt to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 2.60
. 1.59
Notes:-

(i) Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings including current maturities and interest.
(i) Total equity (as shownin balance sheet) includes issued capital and all other equity.

Debt Covenants

Under the terms of Restructuring Agreement, the company is required to comply with following financial covenants:-

Without prior approval of lender, the company shall not: '

6.2 {il] - Loans, debenture & charge - Issue or subscribe to any debentures, shares, raise any lcans, deposit from public, issue equit
preference capital, change its capital structure or create any charge on its assets including its cash flow or glve any gua;anteesq e

6.2 (xiv] - Dividend on equity shares - declare/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwise approved by the Lender/BM Committ
and subject to the payment of recompense amount payable by the borrower to the lender in accordance with the provisions of RA ee

in order to achieve this overall ohjective, the Capital Mangement, amongst other thing, aims to ensure that it meets Financial covenant
attached to the interest bearing Loans and borrowings that define Capital structure requirements, there have been breaches i h5
Financial covenants of interest bearing loans and borrowing in the Current period and previous period. 3in the

The Company has not proposed any dividend in last twa years in view of losses incurred.
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a5

47

48

49

50

51

Preparation of financial statements on “Going Concern” basis

The company has Incurred net loss of Rupees 7,962.93 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2019 and as of that date, the company's cur liabiliti
exceeded by Its current assets by Rupees 46,870.89 lakhs. The Company have accumulated losses of Rupees 25,205.72 |akhs’as at March ;’1 201’;"; ia ||mle,-,
lenders have recalled their loans and the company is In the process of negotizting the revised payment terms with the lenders. In Vie:.v o tlh o;ne of its
emphasis of the Government on logistics infrastructure sector, considering the fact that the facilities are yet to achieve full operatin;nal potential : Zcusse‘j
strategic locations of the facilities, the management's future outlook of its businesses is very promising. Accordingly the financials have b asides t.he
coneern basis, based on financial support from the Parent Company. een prapared on going

The management of the company 15 in the process of restructuring its business operations and steps are as under :

Competitive advantage of the FTWZ with easily accessible to two most Important retall market in NCR- Gurgaon and Delhi to increase utilization;

The existing rail infrastructure in another fellow subsidiary besldes being adjacent to the ICD will ease the movement of EXIM containers and the FTw
create a pull for cargo requiring FTWZ specific services; € Z would
Aligning wareghouse and distribution center loglstics 1o support companies in alignment with business str. i

. ategy and provide a competiti i i
Logistics P petitive edge in Multi-modal

As per debt covenant, the Company are required to adhere to repayment schedule and any short payment gives Edebweiss Asset Reconstruction ¢ :

{EARC) the right to convert whole of the outstanding amount of restructured rupee laan and/or part of the default amount into fully paid u l; I '” Emﬂdﬂv
the Company. No such notice of conversion in writing has been given by EARC and the Company continues to discliose the amount as curr D et
theCompam. e A urrent and non-current

The Company's borrowings have been assigned by bankers to an ARC/ restructured with banks under CDR Package. i

package. The ARC/ COR lenders have charged interest/ penal intarest/additional interest amounting to Rs. 774.37 |:i:scn$: I:h.:_-e::aerr se:::dm:::: 3t1h s
which was not accepted by the Company and hence is under negotiaticn. In light of audit gualifications In previous year as a matter of prudence, th . 2018,
has recognised the said Interest/ additional interest/ penal interest and has accordingly restated the finance cost and other consequential m & company
respective year, Above amount include interest/ penal interest/ additional interest amounting to Rs. 655.89 lakhs which is pertaining to period L: tpa::s e
2017, Therefore this is adjusted in retained earning as on April 1, 2017. Due to this reported figure of opening retained earning was Rs. (7.2 pte March 31,
now restated figure of opening retained earning Is Rs. {7,925.86]) lakhs. & 5. {7.269.96} lakhs and
Further, during the year ended March 31, 2018 reported figure of finance cost, other Equity and Interest Accrued on borrawings was Rs. 4,635.07 lakh
27,074.48 lakhs and Rs. 11,706.75 lakhs respectively. Restated figures of finance cost, cther equity and Interest Accrued on Borrowings aré R’s f;l -}'53 ;4 '5, Rs.
Rs. 26,300.12 lakhs and Rs. 12,481.06 1akhs respectively. Earning Per Share {EPS) also recalcutated based on the restated figures. 4753 54 lakbs,

Indirect Tax Refund Recefvable

Refunds recelvabie in respect of VAT, Service Tax, Local Entry Tax and Service Tax for which appeals are pending with respective Appellate Authorities. Th
Management is of the view that the refunds claimed as above aggregating to Rupees 355.06 lakhs are considered good for recovery on account of f— e
belng received by other SEZ developers on similar grounds. of refunds

During the previous year, the company have divested its entire investment in Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited {ASCM) on January & 2014
e & A I

way transfer of 4,78,787 equity shares at face value to the other fellow subsidiary Loss of Rupees 1,101.21 takhs on this transfer has been de;.: 1 i by

statement of Profit & Loss as an exceptional item in respective years. ed w e

The Company has sent request letters{ emails to various parties for confirmations of balances under borrowings, trade receivables, trade payables and lo

j 1 A * an
and advances to which only few parties have responded. Accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required in the financial statements will be accour ; 5
and when the same is determinable ounted as

invoking of Corporate Guarantee of Promoters and Holding Company
Punjab Natienal Bank (Lead Bank} (PNB} & State bank of (ndia (SBI}, have invoked corporate guarantee issued by Holding company and personal guarantee b
two promoters directors of the holding company, since the company had defaulted in seevicing its borrowings towards principal and interest =

Original application filed before appropriate Forum

{a} Pun]ab National Bank {PNB) and State Bank of India {SBI)

PNB 8 SBI has filed a suit with Debt Recovery Tribunal, New Delhl, towards recovery against Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited. Arshiya Limited as a C
Guarantor and two promoter directars of the holding company as Guarantars, for Rupaes 27,724.43 lakhs. The same is pending before the DRT-Ii New gﬁﬁ:me
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{b) Axls Bank

fxis Bank has filed a suit with Debt Recovery Tribunal, New Delhi, towards recovery against Arshiva Northern FTWZ Limited, Arshiya Limited as a Corporate
Guarantor and two promoter directors of the holding company as Guarantors, for Rupees 3,288.69 lakhs. The same is pending before the DRT-Il New Dethi.
Auls Bank has assigned their loan to EARC. Now the case in the name of EARC and EARC shall accordingly take necessary steps for disposal of the case in light of
the Master Restructuring Agreement executed with Arshiya,

As per Provisions of sub section 1 of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 (w.e.f. 1st April,2014} the company is required to appeint a Company Secretary.
However, the company has not complied with the said requirement and is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for this role.

Corporate Guarantee Is given jointly and severally by Holding Company {Arshiya Limitad) and the company for Mira supply chain Management Private Limited
{Formally known as Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited Jto NBFC to secure the term loan of Rupees 18,500 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rupees
18,500 akhs) and the same has been recognised in the books of Parent company as per IND AS 109. The amount outstanding of loan as on March 31, 2019 s
Rupees 2965.11 lakhs (March 21, 2018: Rupees 2,965.11 lakhs),

The Company disaggregates revenue from cantracts with customers by type of products and services, geography and timing of revenue recognition.
Effective April 1, 2018, tha Campany adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.
Revenue disaggregation by type of goods and services is given note no, 24

Revenue disaggregation by geography 15 as follows:
|Rupees in lakhs}

For the year ended For the year ended

Geograph
phy 31" March 2019 31" March 2018

In India 460.80 308.40

Qutside India ~

Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of the customars.
Revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue recognitian is as follows:

{Rupees in lakhs)

For the year ended For the
Geography . year ende o’rlt year ended
31" March 2019 31" March 2018
Goods transferred at a point In time . B
Service transferred over time 460.80 308.40

Based on recent Supreme court judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 there are various interpretive issues including its applicability thus
prospective provision w.e.f. March 01, 2019 been considered of Rs, 0.08 lakhs.

The figures for the previous year have been re-grouped / re-arranged, wherever necessary, 10 correspond with the current year’s classification/disclosure.

Notes to the financial statements 1-56
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Arshiya Industrial &
Distribution Hub Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
g1¢t March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter
referred to as “the Financial Statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its financial performance including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the Note no. 48 of the statement regarding the balance confirmations of
borrowings, trade receivables, trade payables and loans and advances. During the course of
preparation of financial statements, e-mails/letters have been sent to various parties by the
respective companies with a request to confirm their balances directly to us out of which only
few parties have responded, accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required in the
financial statements will be accounted as and when the same is determinable. Qur Opinion is
not modified in respect of the said matter. -

Head Office: 714-715, Tulsiani Chambers, 212, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel.: +91 22 3021 8500 B &
Other Oifices: 44 - 46, “C” Wing, Mittal Court, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel.. +91 22 4510 8700 » Fax™"
URL : www.cas.ind.in

01 22 45109722
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the director report (but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon), which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

¥, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the director report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued
there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and cstimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

> 7 .
\ *
N umﬂ““éa Continuation sheet...
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Anditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
Professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with 4 statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order™),
and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Further to our comment in the Annexure A, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we
report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account; : _

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules there under;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company
as on 31 March, 2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31# March, 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the provisions of section 197 of the act is not applicable to the company since
no managerial remuneration is paid / provided.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”;

Continuation sheet...
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company, as detailed in in Note no. 33 to the financial statement has
disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial statements.

ji. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

iii. 'There is no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

%
(/LJ\O’PCMC -

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 100859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27/05/2019

Continuation shest...
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited on the financial statements for the
year ended 31t March 2019)

(i) Inrespect of fixed assets:-

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of the fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the Company has physically verified fixed assets, in
accordance with a phased program of verification, which in our opinion is
reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification as
compared with the available records.

(¢) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us and on
the basis of our examination of available records of the Company, the title deeds
of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(i) The Company is engaged in providing facility of warehousing including temperature
controlled storage and other cargo / logistics related activities through Inland Container
Depot (ICD) and does not have any inventory during the year therefore considering the
nature of services, the Provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provision of paragraph 3 (iii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) During the year, the Company has not made any loan, investment, guarantees and
securities to any person specified under section 185 and section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Hence Provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(v) 'The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
notified. During the year, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal -or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other
Tribunal.

Continuation shest...
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(vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act, the
Provisions of Clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the records of the company and information and explanations given to
us, the Company has generally been regular except slight delays in few cases, in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, goods and service tax, cess and
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities as applicable during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of such statutory dues were outstanding as at 3ist March, 2019 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable except Tax deducted
at Source amounting to Rs. 180.66 Lakh and interest on tax deducted at source
/PF/Service Tax amounting to Rs. 292.36 Lakh.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax and goods and service tax, which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings to any financial institution or bank as at balance sheet date except as
mentioned below. There are no dues to debenture holders and government as at the

balance sheet date.
Defaults in respect of financial institution are as under :- (Rs. In Lakh)
Amount of continuing default
Particulars as ox 31 March, 2019 Period of Default
Principal Interest

Edelweiss Assets Reconstruction - 526.72 | Financial year 2017-2018
Company Limited-through Various
trust ' - 2419.05 | Financial year 2018-2019
Edelweiss Assets Reconstruction
Company Limited-Short Term ~ 3000.00 630.04 | Financial year 2018-2019
Priority Loan
Total i 3000.00 3575.81

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise
any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India.and according
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to the information and explanations given t6 us, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the Management.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year.

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to
it the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures. Therefore, the provisions
of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any nor}-gash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
'éherefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the

ompany. :

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 101720W/ W100355
eperlely

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27/05/2019

Continuation sheet...
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Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited on the Ind AS financial statements
for the year ended 31%t March 2019.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Industrial
& Distribution Hub Limited (“the Company”) as of 31* March, 2019 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Andit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. TN
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial conirols system over financial

reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management, directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial staterents.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Continuation sheet...
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Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit of test of
controls, in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

(/ﬂjwcw

Vijay Napawaliya
Pariner
Membership No. 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27/05/2019

Continuation sheet..,



ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION KUB LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, P1ant and Equipment 5 63,951.03 66.070.03
(c) Other Flnancial Assets 6 403.06 508.11
() Other Non-Current Assets T 122.64 17.04
£4,476.73 66,692.18
Currant assets
(&) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Recelvables 8 316.66 2115
(Ih Cash and Cash Equivalents ] 8.40 4.47
{iify Bank Balances Other than {jiy above 10 118.92 112.34
(Iv} Other Financlal Assets 11 1,661.714 1,693.19
(b} Other Current Assets 12 1,032.40 1,076.34
3,138.09 2,807.48
TOTAL ASSETS £7,614.82 69,499.67
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 13 1,723.72 1,723.72
(b} Other Equity 14 13,203.43 19,628.22
15,017.15 21,351.94
Liabillties
Non Current Liabliltles »
{a) Financial Liabilitles
{i} Borrowings 15 25.468.87 27.270.47
{il) Other Financial Liabilities 186 2211 -
{b) Provisiona 17 2.61 2.48
25,493.59 27,272.96
Current Llabilltles
(a) Financial Liabilities S
(i Barrowings 18 18,202.13 T 1747117
(ii) Trade Payables 19 :
{A) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 773 5.35
(B)Total autstanding dues of creditors Other than Micto and 469,12 183.19
Small Enterprises
(iiiy Other Financial Liabilities 20 7.854.37 2,781.12
(b) Other Current Liabilities 21 570.12 '433.46
{t) Provisions 22 0.61 0.48
27,104.08 20,874.77
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 67,614.82 £9,499.67
Notes to the financial statsments 1-55

~ Asperour Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Ragistration Number 101720WANV1 00355

(})‘c_ﬂcb’c"%

Vijay Napawallya
Partner
Membership Number. 109858

Place | Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Ajay S Mittal
Director
DIN : 00228355

Dzador
Dinesh Kumar Sodani
Chief Financial Offlcar

MOt DI 9
R ———

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00613576




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

EEENE T
INCOME
Revenue from operations 23 1,192.12 78.38
Other inceme 24 264.81 172.48
Totat Income (1) 1,458.93 2580.86
EXPENSES
Cost of operations 25 883.35 111.61
Employse benefils expenses 26 303.80 467.50
Finance costs 27 4,078.54 3,933.71
Depreciation 28 2,225.55 2,369.61
Other expenses 29 218.76 285,93
Total Expenses (I} 7,710.00 7.168.36
Loss before exceptional items and tax (I-11) (6,253.07) (6,917.50)
Exceptional ltems (Net) 30 80.02 (7.947.93)
Profiti{loss} before tax (6,333.09) 1,030.43
Tax expense:
Current tax - .
Deferred tax 36 - -
Profiti{loss) for the year (6,333.09} 1,030.43
Profiti{loss) for the period
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)
Itemn not to be reclassified to profit and loss :

Remeasurement of gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 34 {1.70) 0.14
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (6,334.79) 1,030.57
Earnings per Equity shares (Face Value Rupees 10 each) 31
Basic @arnings per share (In Rupees) (36.74) 5.08
Diluted eamings per share {In Rupees) (36.74) 507

Notes to the financial statements

1-56

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturved| 8 Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membarship Number. 109859

Place : Mumbai
Date; May 27, 2019

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

!%, \ . gl mNGuyrwiuD
a———

Ajay 8 Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Director Director
DIN ; 00226355 DIN : 00613576

A" -
Dinesh Kumar Sodani
Chief Financial Officer




Arghlya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit ! (Loss) for the year before tax (8,233.09) 1,030.43
Adjustment for

Depreciation 2,225.55 2,369.81
Interest [ncome (7.31} (6.78)
Reconclliation of Laan Accounts (net) . (562.39)
Lose on sale of Zere coupon unsscured Gompuiserlly and fully Convertible Debenture ({CCDY . 19 350'00
Property, Plant and Equipment writen off . '2 ‘?'30
Finance Expanse 4.078.54 3937
Gain dus to seftlement with banks _ {18.189.88)
Sundry balanes writtsn back ) ' ( 4?'33}
Seitlement of Claims B0.02 254' 17
OPERATING LOSS BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES BT {sza‘“)
Adjustments for

Trade and aother payables (20117} (568.04)
Trade and other receivables {316.75) {1,561.23)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS "Iz 2.760.23)
Direct Tax Paid (40.42) (1.08)
NET CASH FLOW USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES *) 1514.63) TXLED)
CASH FLOW FROM [NVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (93.60) (88.23)
Purchase of Equity shares . (373'?0)
Purchasa of Investment (6.58) (12.34)
Salw of Equity shares . a78.70
Purchage of Zerd coupan unsacured Compulsorily and Convartibie Debenture _ m 500‘00
Sale of Zera coupen unsecured Compulsorlly and Convertible Debenture ) 1-150-00)
interast recaived 7.51 ' B‘TB
NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (8} (52:37} 0 443'?9]
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procesds from borrowinga - Non current _ 535,19
Rapayment of borrowings - Non curent R @ 434I?5)
Borrowing - current {Nat} 719.36 16,951.46
Intgresgt pald {107.93) 218.77)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ) 611.43 ERITEL)
Nel increase/{decraasa) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 3.93 9.97)
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year 447 14.44
Cash ang Cash Equivatents at the end of the ysar .40 w
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year .40 34T
*Nole:- Changes In liabilities arising from finandin aclivities :

| Partlculars March 31, 2018 Cash flow INDAS Impact | March 31

| Partlculars = _

[ Cong term bomowing (Refer Note no. 15 & 20) 2._,_2'?0_ res - %:t.og Marg 3% s'io;:
Shorl term borrowing (Refer Note no. 18)_ 747147 1556 150 o
Noles to the financial statements 155
Aa per our Report of aven date
For Chaturvedi & th LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accourtal Arshlya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Firm Registration Number 101720WrwW100355

e Lie
-
Q:‘:v\\__ﬂl LT it
b
Vljay Napawallys Alay 8 Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director

Membership Number. 108858 DIM : 00226355 DIN

Place : Munbai

Date: May 27, 2018 Chief Financial Officer

1 00813576

,D’Svolaw;

Dinesh Kumar Sodanl




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Statement of Changes In Equity
A Equity Share Capltal {Refer Nots 13}

Equity Sharss of Rupees 10 each issued, subsacribed and pald up

As at April 1, 2017

Equity Shares 172372
Issue of equity share during the year .
As at March 31, 2018 1.723.12
Equity Shares 1,723.72
Issue of equity share dusing the year -
As &t March 31, 2018 1,723.72

A8 at April 1, 207 ' 49,775.15 (32,813.08) 16,074 86

Profil for the year - 1,030.43 - -

Other comprenensive income 0.14 ! .mg.:::
Totai comprehenslve Incoms for the year 1,030.57 103057

S aleation of Finandel Guarantse 3 - 3.70 - =

Issue of Zero% aplionally convertible raceemable 70

preferance ehares (OCRPE) - 510.08 519.09
As at March 31, 2018 49,778.18 {31,782.61 1,085.28 . 51%.08 19,628.22

{Loss) for the year - (6,333.09) - - -

Other compfehentive ncome - {1.70) R ) {3-3:::15-22:
Total comprehensive Income for the year (8,334.79) N - - 0 334.?9)
As at March 3, 2018 #9,778.15 {38,117.30} 1,085.25 3.21 519.09 FERTEYE
Notes to the financial statements 1-55
As por our Report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshlya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Firm Registration Numbar 101 720W/W100355

c,ﬁedcu' (&\M Y TR R T8
N e—_

Vijay Napawallya Ajay S Mittal Havnlt Choudhary

Partner Cirector Director

Membership Numbser. 106859 DIN : 00226355 DIN . 00613576

P%C‘qu‘
Place : Mumbai Dinesh Kumar Sodani -

Date: hay 27, 2019 Chief Financial Officer
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ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Cormparate Information
Arghiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited (CIN : UB3000MH2008PLL182928), @ public company domiciled in India and is incorporated on M
y h . M ay 30, 2008 under

the provisions of the Companias Acl applicable in India. The registerad office of the company ia located et 302, Level 3, Cesj Saga
Dr. Annie Sesant Road, Worl, Mumbai- 400 018. ' 2y House. Shiv " Estate, F-Block.
Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limied (AIDHL) Is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limiled (AL), a company listed in Bombay Stock Exchan: atio!

. . ' pe and Natienal Stock
Exchenge. The Company is engaged in providing facllity of warehousing including temperature controlled atorage and other cargo/ logistics rel viti
oy e priy rag rgo/f logistics related aclivities through

;ﬂh:gﬂnaﬂciai statemants of the Company for the year snded 31st March, 2019 were approved and adopted by hoard of directors in their meeting held on 27th May

Basis of preparation
The financial siatements of tha Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) netified und i i
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 {as amended) and the relavant provisians of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act")(. ] under the Companies (incian

Eztﬁnancial staternants have bean preparsd on a historical coat basis, axcept for cerlain financial assets and liabilties, which are measured at falr value / amortised

The financial staiemenis are presenied in indian Rupses {Rupees), which i3 the Company’s functional and preseniation currency and
nesrest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated. Pre Y ol values are founded to the

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENT:

Property, Plant and Equipment;

Proparty, plant and equipment are carrled at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment Yosses, if any. Costincludes ) rrowi
cost ard any cost directly attributable to the bringing the assets to its warking condition for its intended use. y purchase price, bo "9
Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment |5 provided using straight lire method over the usefut e of assets as specified in schedule |l to the Companies

Act, 2013, Depreciation on property, plant and equipment which are addad / disposed off during the year, is ided on pro-rata basis with refese
addition / detetion. Freehakd land is not depreciated and under the provious GAAP land was revalued. ’ o rioe to the dats of

The assets' residual valuss, usaful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under Installation / under development as at the balance sheet dale.

Legashald Improvements are depraciated over the period of lease,

Propeity. plant and equipment are sliminated from financlal statemant, elther on disposal or when retired from active use. Profits / losses

retirament / disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statsment of profit and koss In the year of occurrence. aMeing in the case of

The Company has opted 1o continue with the camying values of all of its property, piant and equipmant as recognised in the Indian GAAP
desmad cost ot the transilion data i.e. Aprk 1, 2018. 1an financial stelements as

Intangible Assets ;
Intangible assets are caried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulatad impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure i i
to the scquisition of the intangible assets. Y ee that s ditecty stioutable

Ideniifiable intangible asseta ars recognised when it is probable that future sconomic benafits attibuled to the assel will flow 1o the Col
aseet can be relisbly measured. mparty and the cost of the

Computer softwares are capftalised at the amounts paid o acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over tha riod of !
Ives are raviewed at sach financial year end. peai five yaar. The assets’ usseful

Galns or losses afising from derecognition of an intangible assat are measured as the differance between the net disposal proceeds and th
asset and are racognised in the statement of profit and koss when the asset is deracognised. @ canmying amount of the

The Company has opted to continue with the carmying valuss of ol of Its intangible assets as recognised in the Indian GAAF financial
the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016. stalemants &3 deemad cost at

Loases:

A \ease 1s classified at the inception date as & finance lease of an opsrating loasa. A lsase that transfers substantially all the risks an< rewal awnershi
to the Campany |s classified as a finance lease. v ra8 Incldsmial o renie

The Company as a lessee
Finance lease

Agsets aoqu_lmd urwder finance lease are ‘capita‘lizad and the comesponding lease liabikty is recognised at lower of the fair value of the leased assels and the present
yalus of minimum lease payments at the inception of the |ease. Initial costa directly sttributable to lease are recognised with the asset under lease.

Operating ledse

Lease of assets urdler which all risks and rewards of ownershiy are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating wase. Laase payments under
operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the espective lease agreements.
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Tha Company as 2 lessor
Finance lease
When assels are lsased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments i3 recognised as a recaivable, The difference between the

qross receivable ard the present vatus of the receivable is recognised as uneamed finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the i
net investment method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rale of retum. ¢ leaga weing the

The lessor deracognises the leased assets and recognises the difference between the carrying amount of the loased asseis and the finance lease recaivabie in the
staternent of Profit and Loss whan recognising the finance lease raceivable.

Operating krase

Rental Income from opersting leases is recognised in the stalement of profit and loss on a siraight kne basig over the term of the relevant lease unless another
systematic basla is more representative of the ime pattern in which economic benefits from the lessed aszets is diminished,

Inftial indiract costs ncumed in nagotiating and amanging as operaling lease are addad to canying value of the leassd asset and recognised on a straight line basis
over the leasa term.

Inventories:
Inventories are veiued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventorles comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and cther costs
incurred in bringing the invantories 10 their respeciive present location and condition. Gost Is computed on the First in first oul basis.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Gash end cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at hanks, cash on hand and short-termn deposits with an original maturity of three
which are subjeci to an Insignificant risk of changes In value. Y months of less.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and sher-term deposits, as defined above, net i
bank overdrafts 8s they are considersd an Integral part of the Company's cash management. poait » et of outstanding

impalment of assets:

An asset is congidersd as impaired when at the date of Balance Shest, there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset, or where applicabl
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, axcesds its recoverable amaunt {l.a. ihe higher of the net asset saling prica and valua in use).ThapprL?rayinaé
amount i3 reduced to the recoverabis amount and the reduction is racognized as an impairment joss in the statement of profit and koss. The impairment loss
recognized In the prior accounting period is reversad if there has been a change in the estimale of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depraciation is provided on
the revised carmying value of the impaired assst over its remaining ussful ife.

Financlal Instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and Impaiment:
A financial Instrument is mny contract that gives rise to 8 financis!l asast of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another antity.

Financlal assets -Infal recognition and measurement:
All financiel assets ars initlaly recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are diractly attribuiabke to the acquisition or issue of financial aseets, which are nol at

fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recogniion. Financiet assels are classified, al initial recognition, as financial assels measured st
fair value or @3 financial assats measured at amortised cost,

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assats are clasaified in twe broad categories:-

a) Financial assets at fair value

b) Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assels are measured at fair value, gains and osses are sither recognisad entirely in the statemnent of grofit and loss (i.e fair value through profil

recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income). ( on profl of loss). or

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any wiite down for impairment) unless the asset is desh i
value thraugh profit or ksss under the fair valua option. 8 designated at fair

2} Business model test: Tha objective of the Company's business model i3 to hold the financial assel to collect the contractuel cash flow.

b} Cash fiow characteristics test: The contractual lerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flow that are scle ment i
interast on he principal amount outstanding. Iy payments of pricipal and

A financial asset that meels the following two condiions I3 measured el fair value through other comprehensive income unless the asset Is d ed
valug through profit o loss undes the fair value option. Selgnated at fai

a) Business model test: The financial asset is held within @ busineas model whose objective is achioved by both collecting contractual cash flow and selling financial
assols,

b} Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Al other fimancial aseet is measured al fair valus through profil or loss.

Flnancial assets - Equity investment in subsidiaries
The Company has accounied for its equity invesiment in subsidiaries at cost.




38

39

4]

ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARGH 31, 2019

Financial assets - Dervcognition
A financlal assstz (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primary d i i
it o e pasiion) when: ) is pri y derecognised {i.e. removed form the

a) The rights to recaive cash flows from the assat have expired, or
b} The Company has transferred its rights to recsive cash fiow from the assel.

Financial llakliities - Initlal recognition and measurement:
The financial fiabiliies are recognised initially &t fair value and, in the case of joans and borrawings and payables, nei of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial labllities - Subsequent measurement:

Financlal liabilies are subssquently camied &t amoriized cost using the affeciive interest method. For trade and other payables maduring with
balance sheet date, the carrying amaunts are approximate at their fai value dus to the short maturity of these Im;trumtarm;p.a!|r ™ 17 one year from the

Financlal Llabilities - Financlal Guarsntee contracts:

Financial gusrantes contracts issuad by the Company are thase contracts that require a payment to be made to reimbursa the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make & payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as o
liability at fair valua, sdjusted for transaction costs ihat are directly aftributaple 1o the issuance of the guaraniee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss aliowance determired and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial Liabilities - Derecognition:

A financial iabiity is derecognised when the obigstion under the ¥abiity is dischargad or canceled or sxpires. YWhen an existing financial Sabilty is replaced
ancther, fro;:! ﬂ:‘e same :;da;f omn ’"m"'.‘i‘.'g’{,. fger:rst thorrns. ar thmzntsnm of an existing liabilty are substantialiy modified, such an aﬂangsi;yr mnr:;oationt::
treated as arecagnition o onginal kability and the recognition of a new liabllity. The difference in the respective cal j iamd i
statement of profit and loss. pe rrying amounts is recognised in the

Compound Instruments

An issued financial instrument that camprisss of both the liakilty and equity components are accounted as compound financial inst i

liabilty component is separated from the compound instrument end the residual value is recognised as equity oo?no:onent of other fm“;;n;:ﬁﬁ;zrrr::tv?;: I;fb::;t;
component is subsaquently measured at amortised cost, whereas the equity component is not remessured after initial recognition. The iransaction costs related to
compound instruments are allocated to the kability and aquity companents in the propoition te the allocation of gross procesds. Transaction costs related to equit
componerit is recognised directly in aquity and the cost related to liability component is inciuded [n the carrying amount of the liabiity component and amortised usiny
effective interest method. ’

Provisions, Contingent Liabllities, Contingent Assets and Commitmenta:

Provisions are recognised whan the Comgany has & present obligation {legal or construciive) as a result of a past event. it is probable that an oulow of re:
embodying aoon_omic Im"leﬂls wil_l be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the obligation. If the effect of t’}.u."{f.ﬁ:
valua of monay is maieral, provisions are dlscou_nted using equivalent pariod government securiies Interest rate. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the
staternent of profit and loss as a flnance cost. Provisions are reviewad at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent abiities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confimed only by the occumrence or non-
accurrence of one OF more yrcertain future avents not wholly within the control of tha Company or & present obligation thet arisea from past events where it is sither
not probable thet an utflow of resourcas wih be required to seftle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannol be made. Informaticn cn contingent liability I8 disclosad
in the Notes to the Financiai Stetements. Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when the realsation of income is virtually certain, then the releted asset is
no longar a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an assat. '

Revenus recognition
Ravenus is recognized upon transfer of control of goods (aquipment) or rendering of services to custemers in an amount that reflacts the consi i i
Company expects 1o recsive in exchange for thase goods or sarvices nsideration which the

income from ssrvices is recognized upon completion of services as per the terms of contracts with the customers. Period based servi .
pro-rata over the contractual period. sarvices are acorued and recognized

Revenue is measured et the amount of consideration which the company expecis to be enfitied to in sxchange for iransferring distinct goods or service

i t
customer as specified in the contract, axcluding amounts caliscted an behalf of third parties {for sxemple laxes and dulies colscied on beh?alf of the gnvem:m:n?
Conskderation is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a receivabie is recognized when the it bacomes unconditionsl. '

The following are the specific revenue recognition criteria:

Inland Contalner Depot {ICD)

Income from Container handing, storage and Rail & Road transportation are recognisad on properiionate completion of the movement and delivery of geods to the
party/ designated piace.
Incathe from Ground rent Is recognised for the pericd tha container Is lying in the LCD area.
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Domaestic Warehousing
Revenue frorn alotment of warehousing space and cpen yard area for use is accounted en accrual basis as per agreed temms of contract.

Interast Income
Interest income, including income arising from other financlal ingtruments measured at amorilzed cost, is recognized using the effective Interest rate mathod

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognisad when the company's right (o receive the payment is established, which is generally whea sharehoklers approve the dividend.

Contract balances
Trade recelvables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is uncanditional.

Contract llabllitles
A contract iablity is the obligstion to transfer goods or services to & custamer for which the Company has received consideration {or an
. . amount of 2id
dus) fmrr! the customer. Iif & cus_ther pays consideration befors the Company ransfers goads or services to the customer, a contract liability is recogici’:ed :;a;l:rt\'::
payment is made. Contract Rabilities ase recegnised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Foreign currency reinstatement and transiation;

Transactions in foreign curencies ara Initially recorded by the Company &t rates prevaiing at the date of the transaction. Subsequently moneta

gt closing exchange rates as on balance sheel daie and the resuling exchange differance recognised in staternent of profd a:d loss. g#:::o::e ::;:at:d
settlernant of monetary flems ars alse recagnised in statement of profit and loss. g on

Nor-monelary Rems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates at the dates of the :

L . . : t action. -
munaia_ry itema carfed at fair vqlqe that are dsn_ommated in foreign currencies ase translated at the exchange rates prevailng at the date when thr:r:’:ir VEII:IBN\I::S
g;.;arrmr:ecilr. _Trualglaigf ; Io:: a::smg trgn u:ﬁna&agnn of non-monstary itens messured at fair value is trested In line wilh the recogniion of the gain or kss on the

nga In fair value a item {i.e., ranslation differences on tams whose falr value gain of loss is recognised in OCI or profit nised

profit o loss, respectively). profit or loss are aiec recogrised in GCI or
Foreign exchiange differances regarded as an adjustment 10 borrowing costs are presentad in the alatement of profit and loss, withi oosts,

gains / losses are presented in the statoment of profit and foss on a net basis. " +witin fivance Al other finance

Employee Benofits:
Short term employee benefits are recognized 83 Bn axpense in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related ssrvices are rendered.
Defined Contribution Plan

Gontribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribuion plan, is made in accordance h the statut i i in whi
have rendered services. pla with the », and is recognised as an expensa in the year in which employess

Defined Benafit Plan
Laave encashment beirng a defined benefit pian s aceounted for by using the projected unit credit method, on the basis of actuadal valuation i i
; ' ed
pan,_r actuaries at each Belance sheat date. Actuarial geing and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes In actuaral assump?ioc:;n arec:::tagal; ILdr
credited to ather comprahansive incoma in the year in which they arise. Cther costs are accountad in staterment of profit and koss.

The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projecied Unit Credit Method, on the basls of actuarial valuation i i
18, h ' d

partyl' actuaries at each Balance Sheet date, Actuarial gaing and losses arsing from experence adjustments and changes in acluarial assump:i::;n :rn i:tezet: ?r

credited 1o other comprehensive income in the period in which thay arise, Other cosis are accounted in statement of prafil and loss.

Rameasurements of definad bensft pian in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the other compreh:
which they cocur. Remeasuremants are not reciassified to statement of profit and Joss in aubsequent periods. prehensiva income n the year n

Taxes on Income:
Income tax expanse representis the sum of current tax {including MAT and income tax for earlier years} and geforred tax . Tax is recognisad |

2 1 4 ) . - n the statem.
and'::ss. excapt to the e:d:':l that ni relates t: ftlems recognised directly in squity or other comprenensive income, In such cases the tgax is also racogmse:ﬂ;igcgl;a::
agquity or in other comprehensive income. ARy subsequent change In direct tax on items inilially recognised in equity or othe ive | i
recognisad i equity or other comprehensive income. Y Squlty or F comprehensive income s alo

Current lax provision is computed for income calculated after considering allowances and exempiions under the pravisions of th i Laws
Current tax assats and current tax ligkilitiss ara off ast, and presented as net, Pl P ® applicable Income Tax '

Deforved tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of @sgets and liabilties in the Balance sheel and the carre: I

computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax Jiabiliies are generaly recognised for all taxabis lemporary differences, and deferred tax :ml?remut::::ﬁ; L:::(;:;;::
for all daductibla temporasy differences, cany forward tex leses and allowances o the exient that 1 Is probabis that future taxable profits will be avaiable against
whic_h those deductible temporary differences, camy forward i5x lossas and sllowances can be utiised. Deferred tax assets and liabilties are measured gt the
applicable tax rates. The carrying amount of defarred 1ax assets Is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the axtent thal it is no longer probabla th
sufficient taxable profiia will be avaiable ageinat which the temporary differances can ba utilised. 9ere o that

Credit of MAT s recognised as an asset only when and 10 the exient thera |5 convincing evidenca that the Company will pay nermal income { i

a ; p . ax during th

pepod, t.8., the periad for which MAT c._redn is alicwed to be caried forward, (n the year in which the MAT cradit bacomas eligible to be recognised :g a::s';ﬂﬁg
ssadaf:saet: is nmm I;y wayof a creldn to the st:tfemant of profit and Ipss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company raviews the same at each balénoe
8 a ites down the carrylng amount of MAT credit entitiement to the extent there is rvo longer convincing evidence io the effi

normal income tax during the specified period. " " = o sectthat the Companty wil pay
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Bomowing Costs:

Borowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition of construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantial peried of & i
intended use are ca_pﬂal‘m_d {nst of income on temporarly deployment of funds} as part of the cost of such aﬁsets. Borrowing mﬂspzonshtofofmi:s? :.t-.umﬁﬂﬁrfgs'::
thal the Company incurs i connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borewing used for the purpose of cttaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
pormowing costs eligible for capitalization Is detarmined by applying a capitalizetion rate 1o the expendilures on that asset. The capitalization rate.is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that are outstanding during the period, other ihan bomowings made specificaly for the
purpose of chitaining a quallfying asset. The amount of borowing costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that
period, AT other borrawing costa are expansed in the period In which they ocour, n

Eamings por share:
Basic eamings per share |s computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the sharsholkders’ and weighted a e num 1
during the year, ig vareg ber of equity shares outstanding

Diluted eamings per share is complted using the net profit for the year attributable 1o the sheraholders' and weighiad average number of squi d potenti i
Sharit.; %mm::l:tg o oo "’?;33%’ Irrl‘nduf;re'g — °fu;"" converiible preference shares and debentures, except where the result would T acticiive, Potenta
equity sheras are convel uring year are included in the caiculation of diuted eaminga per share, from tha inning of the year or dale -

such potential equity shares, to the dale of conversion. ¢ beginniag of the o of tssuance of

Current and non-current clhasstiication:
The Company presents assets and liabikties in statsment of financial position besed on currentnon-curent classification,

The Company has presarited non-currant assets and current asasts before equity, non-current liabilities and current iablities in accordal i
11 of Comparies Act, 2013 nofified by MCA, e with Scheduls (I, Division

An asset ls classified as curvent when It ls:

a) Expected to be realised or intended 1 be soid or congsumed in normal oparaling cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Expacted 10 be realised within tweive moviths after tha reporting period, or

@) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for al laast twetve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current. ’
A Nabllity is classified as current when ltis:

a) Expactsd to be settled in normal cparating cycle,

b} Held primarily for the purposa of trading,

¢) Due to ba setiled within twatve months after the reporting period, of

d) There is no uncenditionel right to defer the sattisment of the Sabilty for at [sast twelve months after the reporing period.

All other Gablitles ars classified as non-current.

The opereting cycla is the time betwaen the acquisilion of aseats for proceasing and their realisation n cash or cash equivalents. Deferred
are cdlassiied as non-current assets and liabikties. The Company has identfiad twelve months as it nomal operating c:je. ' fax sssets and labilies

Falr value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments at fair velue ot sach balance sheel date.
Fair value ia the price that woukl be received to sell an aaaet or pakl to transfer a liabillty in an ordery trensaction betwesn market parficipants ot re
d pa th
date. The felr value measurement is basad on the presumpilon that the transaction to sefl the asset or transfer the (lakility takes plampeithen ® messurement

a) In the principal market for the asset o liability, or
b} In the absance of @ principat rarket, in the most sdvantagecus market for the assel or kability.

A fair value measuremant of & non-financial assst takes into account & market participant’s abilty to generate sconcmic benefits by using th I
best use or by seling it to another market participant that would use the asset in s highest and best use. By using the assat In ke highest and

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriats i the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avatable to mes i isi
use of relovani obsarvakle inputs and minimising the use of unabservable inputs. sure fair value, maximising the

All assets and llabilties for which fair value is meagured or disclosed in the financlal statemants are categorised within the fair valus hierarchy.

Off-getting financlal Instrument:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount Is reporied In the balance shest where there is a legally enforceabie rights 1o offsel tha recogni
amounts and ihere is an intention to setie on a net basis o resliise the asset and setile the iabiity simultaneausly. The lagally en?omeable rightsemusl n&s::
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, inscivancy or bankrupicy of the Company or
counterpany.

Contributed Equity

queu“y sn:dres ara clasaified as equity, incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares o options are shown in equity as deduction, nel of tax from
proceeds, '

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any 4
accnl;alb; of past of future cash recelpts or paymerits. The cash flaws from operaling, invasting and financing activitiea of the Company are segregatea)::a:;edn:;st:er
avai information.
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Segment Reporting - identification of Segmants
An operating sagment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which [t may sam revenues and Incur ex| i

. . . 845, who!
sesulls are regularly reviewed by the company's chief operating decision maksr to make decisions for which discrets financial information Imalabla. B?s:g eor:t:.:g
manageman! approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief oparating decision maker eveluates the Company's periformance and alccates resources based on an
analyais of various performance indicators by business sagments and geographic segmernts.

SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS:

The preparation of the financlal sistementa requiras management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the

axpenses, a’sets and liabilities, and the amqmpanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent Iiabllules‘pl‘.i!noertainty about th;::m atﬂ;mpt:unfzrﬁ r:svﬁer::;sé
could result in outcomes that require a_matanal adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or kabilties affected In future pericds. The key assumptions concernin
the future and other key sources of estimation uncartainty at the reparting date, that have a significant risk of causing & meterial adjustment to the camying a.mumi
of msssls and Yabiities within the next financiel year, are described below. The Company based on its assumptions and sstimates on parameters avellable when the
financial statema_nts wers prepared. Howsver, exsting crcumstances and assumptions about future developmentis may change dus to market changes
dreumstancas anising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions whan they eccur. ges of

Property, plant and eguipment;
Management reviews the estimaled ugelut lives and residual values of the assats annually in order o delarmine the amount of depreciafi i
: . preciation to be recorded
raporiing penof.!. The useful fives and residual values as per schedula |l of the Companies Act, 2013 are based on the Company's historical experience ::ITI;?R:E;
assets and taking into account anticipated technokegical changes, whichaves is more appropriate,

income Tax:
The Company reviews at sach balance sheet date the carying amount of defarred tax assets. The factors usad in eslimate:
could Iead 10 an adjustment to the amounis reporied i the financial statemants. s may difer from actusl outcome which

Contingencles:
Management has estinated the possikle outficww of resources at the and of each annuad reporting financial , if any, in respact i issiclaim/litigat
against the Company 88 it is not possible to predict the oulcome of pending matters with accuracy. yoar v pact of cantingencie mifigations

Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are paged on assumplions about risk of default and expected cash loss. The Company uses j i i
a ; i ts are A 1 . y uses judgment in making these
assumpiions and sslecting the inputs to the impairment calculetion, hased an Company's past history, existing market conditions i i
) o ) y 0 &s well a3 forward locking @simates

impalment of non-financial assets:
The Company assesses at each reporiing date whether there is an indicedlon that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exista, or when im pai

. " : I
testing for an asset is requirsd, the Company estimates the asset's recaverable amount. An asset's recaverable amount is the higher of a:":::a;??}"g::ﬁ
C;eneratrlzg UnitT gCGU) l;rninrt\«ta;l-.:ue‘ mfmotor:e diaposal and Its value in use. it is determinad for sn Individual asset, unless the agset does not generate cash Inflows
that are langely independe! ose from r assets or groups of asaets. Whers the camying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
asset is considered impalred and is written down to ks recoverable amount, rCaU ex 8 its recoverabie amount, tho

In assessing value in use, the estimaled future cash flows are discounted fo their presant value using @ pre-tax discount rate that refle manl
. : ct
assessnlt'nel;l!s Gftheh t{n;n: value of rm:me;we aizd the r:ks spacific to the asset. In determining falr value less cost of disposal, recent market transacti:n: :ra lalk:l: m
account. If no suc nsactions can entified, an appropriate valuation modet is used. These calculations are corfol
o 1 s nd ‘ borated by veluation multiples or other

Defined benefits plans:
The Cost of the defined benefit plan and other posi-empicyment benefits and the present value of such obligation are determined usin

= uR . . " actuarial val .
actuarial valuation involves making various assumplions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include tha detenntngation ;f!l'n;'dai;;:;I';:'l-r:t’;r:;te;n
fulure salary increases, mortaliy rales and attrition rate. Due to the compledties involved in the valuation and its long-tesm nature, a defined beneflt obligation s
highly senaitive to changes in these assumptions. All 8ssumptions are reviewed at aach reporting date.

Recoverabllity of trade receivable:

Judgements are raquired in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those recel

; 7} " o e akles is required,
Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the mmount and timing of anlicipated fulure payments and any possibie acti ’

mitigate the risk of non-payment. ¥ I ons that can be taken to

Provisions:

Provisions and liabiliies are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will ba a future outfiow of funda resultin j

- g - p from past operations o
and the amourt of cash outfiow can be rell_abty estimated, The liming of racognition and quaniification of the liability require the applicatio: of jl.?ggement torei\ir:ﬂ;
facts and circurastances, which can he subject to changs. Since tha cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrving amounts of provislons and
liabiities are raviewed regulary and adjustad to take account of changlng facts and circumstancas.

Falr value measuromant of financlal instruments ;

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilties recorded in tha talance sheel canno! ke measured based on guoted prices |

\ =]
value is measured using vall.!atlon techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) modsl. The inputs to these mogals areplakanr;r:m ?mﬁ x::'rk::
where pogsible, but where this I rot feasible, & degree of judgement Is requirad in esteblishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit sk and volatiity. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

ross Carying

As at April 1, 2017 20,370.57 4382385 43143 639.50 8.3 31339 108.86 1,456.36 - 71,050.09
Additions §8.23 - - - - - - - . 8833
Disposats - - {55.31) (263.46) - {0.03) 1.89) - - (320.63)
[As at March 31, 2018 2045760 43,623.85 4,266.12 376.18 823 313.38 106.97 1,456.36 - 70,518.50
Addtions - - - 131 - 235 - - 90.49 106.55
As at March 31, 2019 20,457 .60 A3 82285 4,206.12 389.81 8.23 31571 106.97 1,456.36 20.4% 70,925.14
" laccumulated Depreciation
As at Aprit 1, 217 - 159474 34970 50.33 102 173.65 36.74 206.00 - 2.452.27
Depracistion for the year - 1,504.74 MBT2 81.16 102 10t.23 3674 206.00 - 2,369.61
Daductions duing the year - - 791 (65.21) - {0.03) 017 - - {73.32)
[As at March 31, 2018 - 3,180.48 690.60 106.28 2064 274.85 7351 M200 - 4,748.56
Depreciation for the year - 1.554.07 345,44 55.07 1.02 0.23 2147 206.00 225 2,22555
[As at March 31, 2019 - 4,783.56 1,036.04 161.36 3.06 275.08 .78 618.00 225 €,974.11
]
20,467.60 36,040.30 3,230.08 22548 517 40.83 12.18 §38.26 58.24 63,951.08
20,467.60 40,634.37 3,675.52 269.82 8.19 3851 3366 1,044.38 . 66,070.03

Eﬁ.!%s&:?_ﬂggmﬁiﬂaezo.pm.msoz.gﬁsﬁg.?g%gaiiigmansnnwoa___am_ﬁi:nEanw«aw__ﬂg:oﬁE:g!mgaisﬁnum&_zoﬁ.o:?cmﬁﬁﬁw;gﬁg
J.__..wg!:oa_5&«!33ggﬂi.%aﬁn%&?ﬁﬁ%;gwrnoﬁ




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Financlal Guarantes

403.08

Total

403.06

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

nsu, considered good unless otherwise stated

Capital Advances 74.00 10.00
TODS Raceivabile 42 60 2.18
Other advances- gratuity (Refer Note 34) 6.04 4.86

Total 122.64 17.04

ETS - TRADERECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured

Trade Recelvables considered good - Unsecured 316.86
Trada Recelvable which have Significant Increase in Credit Risk - .
Trade Recaivable -cradit Impalred . )
316.66 21.18

Less: Provision for expected cradit loss . .
Total 318.66 21.15




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

9 CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

on CcoouNts:

4.94

-Balances with banks
-Cash on hand 3.46 .
Total 8.40 4.47
10 CURRENT ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCES Rupe
Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 18.92 1234
Total 118.82 112.34
1 NANIAL SETS

OTHER CURRENT FI
RS li‘i

i o

9 3 R
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Financlal assets carried at amortised cost

Financial Guarantee 133.00 164.48

Other receivable 1.528.71 1,528.71
Total 1,661.71 1,853.19

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
at.
Prepald expenses 68.15 6.97
Balance with Govt. Authority {(Refer Nota 50) 1,026.25 1,068.37
Total 1,032.40 1,076.34

8 in lakhs




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENGED MARCH 31, 201#

1} Authorised Share Capital
(,78,00,000 {As ut March 31, 2048: 1,78,00,000) Equity shares. of Rupees 10 sach 1,780.00 1 780.00
22 00,000 (Ag ot March 31, 2018: 22,00,000) Prafererice Sh Rupsss 10 sach 220.00 220,00
Tatal 2,000.00 000,
1) lss0ed; Subscribad & Fubly Paid up S 200000
1,72.37.152 (A8 st March 81, 2018: 1,72,37,152 ) Equity Shares of R wach
¢ ) Equity upaan 10 172272 1723.72
Total 1722 172372

nning and at the sad of the year:

Equity Shars Capital
shgres of B 10

Issued cribad and ful id

and end of the year

Reconcillation of Zero% optionally convertibde radesrmable preforance shares outstanding as at the baginn|

At March 31, 2018
| b
ad during the year 1,7237 *52 1,723.72
At March 31, 2619 1,72,37162 1,723.72

Prefarence Share Capltal

Zero Percent onal amable Preference Shares (OC R 5 10 each

At April 1, 2017,

[ Isausc duving the year

Termairights attached t0 equity shares

1,20,000 12.00
At March 31, 2013 FAIRLLLL
| e
tssued ouring the year '-1°.=_W° 12.00
At March 3, 2019 128,000 500

The company has only one class of equity sharss having par value of Rupassi0 per share, Esch holder of aquity shares is entitled 1o one vote per share. The shareholders who held shares on

the record data are antifled to dividend as may be prop

d by ihe Board of Direclors and ls subject ko approval of iha Shareolders at the ansuing Genaral Mesting.

In the event of iquidstion of the company, tha hokders of equily shares wil ba entitied to recelve remaining assats of the company. sher distribution of all preferantial amounts. The distribution wil

be in propartion to the numbar of stuity shares held by the sharghoidars.

Termairights attached to prefarence shares

During the previous year, the Company hag isenad & aNotted 1.20,000 Zerc % OCRPS of Rupean 10 sach at a pramium of Rupees 830 per OCRPS aggregating to Rupess 1,200.00 lakha,

Tenure of QCRPS: 6 years,

Convarsion option: Tha right of convarsion shail he exercised at the last dey of sixth year from ihe dats of allotment of the DCRPS, anly in event uf fallure on part of the Company 1o redesm the

OCRFS or Inability of the Prometers to buyback tha CCRPS.

Redemption: The OCRPS Sedes 1 shal be radeamed in one single Instaliment of Rupaes 1200 lakh (nching pramium) at the end of 8th year from the date of alictment of JCRPS - Senes |,

L. Detalls of sharehokders hokding more than 5% shares in the company

i

Equity shares of Rupeas 10 each fully pald
Arshiya Limited (Holding Company }
Shares held by Nominae and jointly sharsholdsrs
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ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Securitles Premium Account 48,775.15 49,775.15
Retained Eamings (38.117.30) (31,782.51)
Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company 1,085.28 P
Equity Component of loan from Parent Company ' 31:21 1102?‘2?
Equity Gomponent of Zero% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares (OCRPS) 519.00 519‘09
Total 13,293.43 19,628.22

in lakhs

CQpening balance 48.775.15 49,775.15

Closing Balance 49,775.15 28,775.16

{b) Ratained Eamings

Opening balance 31 1
Add/(Less): (31.782.51) (32,813.08}

Net Profit{Loss) for the year 6331.00
Other comprehansive income @, p :70; 1.033.:3
Closing balance {38,117.30) {31,782.51)

ges in lakhs

Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company

Openlng balance 1.0
Add/{Less): Transaction during the year I 85.?8 1I0813'?'3
Closing balance 1,086.28 1,085.28

{d) Nature & purpese of Reserve

Securities Fremlum Account:

Securities premium reserve represents the amount received in excess of the face value of the egulty shares. The utilisation of the 5
. ecurities premium
governed by the Provision of Companies Act, 2013, premium reserve Is

Retained Earnings :
Retained Earnings are the profits/losses of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

Equity Component of Guarantae glven by Parent Company:
The fair value of financial guarantees given to the lenders of the Company by the Parent Company is recognised as a deemed equity component.

£quity Component of loan from Parent Company:
The difference between the fair value of interest free loans on the date of issue and the transition price is recognised as a deemed equlty component by the Parent
Company.

For computation of the fair value benefit, the Company has estimated the falr value of the financial liabillty on the date of issue of considering complete market
interest rates adjusted to the facts and circumstances relevant to the Company.

Equity Component of Zero% Optionally Convertible Preferance shares {OCRPS)

‘I'he fair value of liabltity component is deducted from the fair value of Instruments as a whole, with the resulting residual amount being recognised as the equity
component.




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

URRENT BORROWINGS

Secured
(a) Term Loans
- From Others {Refer Note 15.1 & 45} 24,706.25 26,580.58
Liability Componant of Compound Financial Instruments 762.82 680.91
Total 26,468.87 27,270.47

151 Rupee term loan from othar partles :-

{1} Rupee term loans (including current maturity) of Rupeas 26,591.94 lakhs {March 31, 2018 : Rupees 26,589.56 lakhs) are secured by

{a} Detalle of Security

I First charge on all movable assets and immovable assets of the company both present and future on parl passu basis.

ii. First charge by way of Hypothecation of the entlre currant assets of the company on pari passu basis.

iii. Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promoter
iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Helding Company.
v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

{b} Rate of Interest :
- on Tenm Loans frem others 10% p.a.compounded quarterly,

{c} Repayment Schedule of above Torm loans as on March 31, 2019 Is as follows :-

Total

31-Mar-20 5585 65
31-Mar-21 4,034.74
31-Mar-22 2,209.30
31-Mar-23 18,470.27

26,600.00

(d} The amortised cost disclose above Is net off Interest cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees 8.06 lakhs for March 31, 2019 and Rupees

10.44 lakhs for March 31, 2018,

16 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financlal Liabilities at amortised cost

{Rupees In lakhs)

Advance warehouse rent 10.52 -
Sacurity Daposit 11.59 -
Total 22.11 -

17

T N n i

Provision for employea bene
Leave encashment (Refer Note 34)

(I’iupees i lakhs}

CSEpETY

Total




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

{Rupees in lakhs}

) M 2018 . .
Secured
(a} Loan from other party {Refer note 18.1 balow) 3,000.00 3,000.00
Unsecured
(b) Loans from Holding Company (Refer note 18.2 below & 39 ) 15,202.13 1447117
Total 18,202.13 17,471.17

181 Short tarm loan from other party
Term loans of Rupees 3,000 lakhs {March 31, 2018 : Rupees 3000 lakhs) are secured by
{a) Sacurity:

i) First Ranking charges on all present and future cash flows, all assets and movable collateral available to the existing landers of the Company as

per the Deads of Hypothecation,

ii) Parsonal Guarantee of both promoter directors of Parent Company
iii} Corporate Guarantee of Parent Company

(b) Rate of Interest: 18% p.a

(¢} Repayment: Bullat payment after expiry of 3 months.

{d) Amount and perlod of default In repaymeant of bomrowings: Deofault in repayment of principal of Rupees 3,000 lakhs as at March 31, 2019.

The same has been racall by the lenders.
18.2 Interest free loan upto 1 year and repayable on demand.

19 CURRENT LIABILITIES- TRAD

P!

putstanding dusg of Micre and Small Enterprises (Refar Note 37 & 48)

Total

5.35

Total outstanding dues of craditors Other than Micre and Small Enterprises
{Refer note 48) 459.12 183.19
Total 478.85 188.54
20 HER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

[

Financlal Liabllities at amortisad cost
Current maturities of long term borrowings

Term Loans from others (Refer Note 15.1 } 1.885.69 -
Interest accrued and due on borrowings #
On tarm loans from others 2.945.77 777.688
On terrn loans fromn others short term 830.04 97:20
interest aceruad but not due on borrowings 1,765.13 950.97
Advance warehouse rent 8.98 -
Security Deposit §1.14 -
Others
Project Creditors( Refer Note 33 & 48) 482.90 §93.14
Employee's Bues™* 67.27 43.96
Other Payables 745 12.97
Total 7,854.37 2,781.12

=+ [nclude Full and Final settlement of Rupees 7.70 lakhs (Year 2013 Rupees 5.88 lakhs)




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

# Amount and period of default In payment of Interest on borrowings

{Rupees in lakhs)

Interest 528.72 2017-18
3,045.00 2018-19
Total 3,576.81

21

akhs

Statutory Liabilities™ 273.84 170.87
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 266.28 2682.59
Total 570.12 433.46

* Statutory Habilities Include TDS, Goods and Service tax {GST), PF,ESIC payable, Employee professional tax.

22 CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

\rlsin ploy benefits
Leave encashment (Refer Note 34)

Total




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

23 REVENUE FROM OPENS _

Rail Frelght Income 72545 50.55
Road Freight Income 87.96 11.77
Rent income 302.03 0.02
THC & DO Incoma 66.13 6.45
Other operating Income 10.55 0.58

1,192.12 78.38

Other Income

Interest on Fixed Deposit 7.91 8.78

Sundry Balance / Excess provision Written Back 257.03 165.70

Miscallaneous Income 047 -
264.81 172.48

25 COST OF OPERATIONS

Rail Frelght Expenses

Road Fraight Expenses 54.08 15:79
Handling Expenses 162 4,60
Other operating expenses 63.54 24.38

883.36 111.81

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds 12.98
Staff welfare expanses 11.30 10.47
303.80 487.50

27 FINANCE COST

Interest expense on borrowings
Unwindlng of interest on loan from related parties
Unwinding of interest on security deposit from customers

Interest expenss others

Interast on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues
Interest on MSME vendors

Interest Expenses Others

Others

Guarantee Commission Expense

Finance cost on Amortisation of Liability Component
Finance cost on derecognition of financial guarantee
Bank charges

Interest expense on Financlal liabilities measured at amortised cost

3,696.43 3,481.44
11.60 207.61
6.42 -

49.92 64.74

0.34

87.73 .
133.53 178.44
81.71 .

- 0.54

0.86 0.94
4,078.64 3,933.71
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

IATION

Depreciation on tangible ass 2,225.55

2,228.58 2,369.81
29 OTHER EXPENSES
Repairs and maintenance

-Building - 8.30
-Othars 32.58 2534
Advertisement 345 38.38
Payments to Auditors {Refer note below) 6.00 6.23
Electricity charges 3214 35.27
Insurance 11.81 17.74
Legal and professional fees 27.93 44.14
Rates and taxes 7.58 7.87
Rent 3.86 15.68
Printing and Stationary 1.54 477
Security charges 36.52 36.50
Telephone and internet expenses 7.20 10.09
Travelllng & conveyance expenses 9.14 3.02
Vehicle Expenses 5.41 13,92
Mizcellanegus expenses 34.60 18.58
Total 218,78 266.93
In lakhs)

As Statutory Auditor
Audit Fee
Certification fees

30 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Raconcillation of loan accounts {net) - {562.38}
Property, Piant and Equipment Written off - 247.30
Sundry Balance written back - © o (47.33)
Galn due to settloment with banks {Refer Note 45 & 48) - {18,180.68)
Loss on sale of Zero coupon unsecurad Compulsorily and fully Convertible Debenture
{CCD} (Refer Note 47) - 10,350.00
Settlement of Claim 80.02 25417
80.02 (7,947.93)




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NKOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3, 201%

31 Eamings per share {(Basic and Diluted)

Profit avallaile to aq shaldon

Profit / (koss) aftar tax (A) (Rupses in Lakhs) B33

Number of equity shares (8.333.06) 1.030.43
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (B) 1,72,37,152 1,92.37.152
Add: Adjustmant on atcount of 0% Optlonally Convertible Redesmable Preference Shares (OCRPS) 1,20,000 " a4 000
Total Weighted average numbar of equity shares/QCRPS (C) 1,73,67,152 1,72,61.152
Mominal Value of an equity share (Rupses) 10.00 T 000
Basic earnings per sharo{A/B) (Rupees) {36.74) 5 éa
Dlluted searnings per share{A/C) {Rupees}* (36.74) 5.07

* Diluted Eaming per shars when anti dilutive is restricted to Basic Eamings Per Share.

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENT
{To the extant not provided for)
1} Capltal Commlitments

i

of

amount of contracts remaining to be exscuted on capital account and not provided for {net of advances r

Gash outfiow expected on execution on such capital contracts

{1} Contingent Habilities:

a) Claims against the Company not ackngwl

of gonds from respective ports to ICD khusja)

{b) Custodian cum Carier Bond (Company has provided bond in favour of custom dapartment for duty free movement

[Na Cash outflow Is expacted In near future

33 Ceftain creditors have (nitiated legal proceedings against tha company and its directors and the company has defaulted in payment of instaiments of censent terms for
which the compuany is in process of negotiating and finallsing the revised consent terms. Majority of the creditors have been setied over the past few years and some
of the creditors have also shown interest and faith not only in logistics and infrastructure ssctor but also in the Company and are being allotted equity shares of Holding

Company.

34 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
34.1 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 1§ — Employss Banefits

{a} Definad contribution plans
Contribution to Definad Contribution Plan, recognised as sxpenses for the years are as under:

Employers Contribuion to Provident Fund
Employer's Contribution to Pension Schemne
Employer's Contribution to ESIC

4.54
.15

{b} Brief descriptiona of the plans

The Company's defined contribution plans are Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance where the Company has no further obligation beyond making the

contributions. The Company's defined benefit plans include grahuity. The employaes are also entitied to leave sncashment as per the Company's policy.

{¢ } Leave Obligations

Proviglons for Leave ancashment
Currant
Non Current




ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

{d] Defined benefit plan — Gratulty:

The employee's Gratuity fund is managed by the Lifa Insurance Carporation of India. The present value of obligation ja determined based on actuarial valuation usi
the Projected Unit Credit Mathod, which recognised each period of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entittement and rneasur:e eachusu.::g

sepearatsty ta build up to final obligation.

P;
I. Actuarial assumptions
Mortallty Table
Indian Assured lives |Indian Assured lives
Mortality {2008-08) Ult| Mortality {2006-08) Ult
Discount rate £.95% 7.40%
Expected return on plan assets 7.40% 7.40%
Salary Escalation Rata 9.00% 7.00%
Wit!\drawal Rate 19.00% 15.00%
Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years
il. Change In Preaent vaiue of defined benefit obligations
Liability &3 at the beginning of the ysar 378 555
Interest cost Q.28 0.36
Current service cost 0.96 2.20
Benefits paid - (5:98)
Actuarial (gain)/koss on chilgations 1.7¢ 263
Acquisition edjustments {3.48) -
Liability a8 at the end of the year 3.22 3.78
IIl. Change In Falr value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assots as at the beginning of the year 8.63 8.63
Expected return on plan assets 0.64 0.5?
Actual Enterprise’s Contributions . .98
Benefits paid - (s'ea)
Actuarial gain/{loss) on plan assets . .57
Fair valus of plan assets as at the end of the year 9.27 a:aa
V. Actual return on plan assats
Expected return on plan assats 0.64 0.57
Actuarial gain/(joss} on plan asseis - (9157)
Actual retum on plan asgets 0.84 -
V. Liability recognised In the Balance Sheet
Liability as &t the end of the year 322 3,76
Falir value of plan assets as at the end of the year 9.27 8:62
Liability recognised in the Balance Shest (6,04} {4.86)
V1. Percentage of sach category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets
Imgurer managed funds 100% 100%:
VI, Amount recognlaed In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 0.96 219
Interest cost - 0.36
Expscted return on plan assets {0.386) {0.57)
Expense recoghised in Statement of Profit and Loss 0.60 108
ViIl. Amount recognisad In the Other Comprehensive Income {OCI)
Amount recog nised i OCI, beginning of the year (7.33) (7.19)
Components of actuarial gainflosses on obligations '
Due to Change in demographic assumptions (0.28} -
Due to Change in financial assumptions Q.57 (@.12)
Due to Change in exparience assumpticn 1.42 2.76
Expactad raturn on plan assets - {0.57)
Total remasurement recognised in OC! 1.70 (0.14)
Amount recognised in OCY, end of year {5.62) (7:33)
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(e

4.2

A
B

()

34.3
16

361

352

353

1X. Balance Shaet reconclllation

Opening niet liability

Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss {;_’:g) (f'-g;)
Actual Employer Contribution _ (3’ 83)
Acquisition adjustments (3.48) : ;
Totel Remeasurement recognised In OCI 1.70 (©.14)
Closing net labillty/ {(Assst) (5.04) ¢ 4.86)

Salary escalation sssumption has been set In discussions with the entarprise bassd on thelr estimates of overall long-term salary growth rate
consideration expactsd eamings inflation as well as performance anx seniovity related Increases. ¢ Ve s ster taking (nto

_Sensitivity analysis: .
Farticulars Changes In Effect on Gratulty
assumptions obligation

For the year ended 3{et March, 2018
Salary growth rate +0.50% 3,89
] -0.50% 3.64
Dissount rata +0.50% 3,64
-0.50% a.89

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
Salary growth rate +0.50% 332
-0.50% 113
Discount rate +0,50% 342
-0.50% 3.33

Tha above sensiﬁvity_analysis is based on a change in &n assumption while holding a1 other assumptions constant. n peatice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in
same of the gssun-n_ptmns may be corelated. In presentll_'tg the above sensitivity anaysls, the present value of defined benefit obligation has been celculated using the
prrzetm urit credit method at the end of reporting period, which ls the same as thet applied in calcutating the defired obligation liabliity recegnised In the balanca
8l

These plans typically expose the Company to actuasial risks such as: longavity risk and selary risk.

[nterest risk - A decrease in the discount rabe will increase the plan liabllity.
Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan Rability is calculated by referance 1o the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants b j
sfter their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the pian participants. As such, an increase the plan's liability. fy of plan participants both during snd

Sulary fisk - The prasent value of the defined plan Rabikty Is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, as i
pian participants will increase the plan's liebllity. plan participa such, &s increase in the salary of the

The welghted average duration of the definad benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is & years (318t March, 2018 - 6 years).
Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 108 -~ Segment Information

Primary Segment Information

The Company operates in two primary roportable business segments, i.e. *Inland Container Depot” and "Domastic Warehousing Zone" and on i
i.e. India 68 per Accounting Standard 108 — "Segment Reporting’. o © geographical sgment

Segment Revenue, results, assets and liabllities
Revenua and results have been identified fo a segment on the basis of relationship to aperating activities of the segmant

Sagmant assets and segment Eatilties represent assets and lisbilites In respective sagments. Segment asaets include all operating assets used by the operating
segment and mainly includes trade recalvatle and other receivables. Segment liabilities primarily include trade payables and other liabilities. Assets and Habilities
which cannot be allocated to any of the segments ara shown ag & part of unallocable assets and llabiiities.

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of jts Busineas Segments separately for the purpose of maki isi

h € ng decisions about
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performancs is evaluated based on profit of kss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the r;:::;?;
statements. Operating segmenit have been identified on the basis of the nature of services.
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354 Segmental Information as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019 is as follows:-

_ {Rupees in lakhs)

. Yoar Ended .
3 arch 2018 -
Segment Revenue ———
ICD
Domestic Warshouss (DTA) gg;';i 7838
Less: Inter Segment ma -
Total Revenue from Operations 1,192.12 78.38
| Segment Results Before Tax and Intorest
1C0
Domestice Warehouse (1[332.;25 E:‘igg'g?i
Total Segment Result {2,174.63) [2,983.79)
Less: Unallocated Expenses nat of Income -
Less: Finance Costs -
4,078.
Less: Excaptional ltems (Net) 8(? 0524 8.933.71
Loss before tax . (7.947.93}
Loss Tax Exponses {6,333.09) 1.030.43
Logs after tax (8,333.09) 1,030.43
Sagment Assets
\cD
- 24,131.48 24,972.29
Domestic Warshouse 415,56 42.325.08
g:::l"“"“ 2.064.77 2.198.90
i 67,614.81 69,499.67
Segment Liabllities
ICD
1,581.88
Domestic YWarehouse 118.18 1.580.04
-—_gzz'l‘mta" 50.897.63 15.567.60
52,697.67 48,147.73
Qther Disclosures
Caplital Expendlture
ICD
93.1
Domestic Warehouse 13 42 £8.23
Unallocated — =
Total 706,55 553
Depraciation and amortisation expenses
1C0
814.21
Domastic Warehouse 311,34 7 2?;23
Unallocated — s
__Total 2,225.65 2,369.61
Non-cash Expenditure -
ICD
Domestic Warehouse " 24730
Unaliocatad -
Total . 247.30
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3  Deferred Taxes

381 In view of oss for the year, no provision for current tax has been made.

38.2 The Company has not recognised any defermed tax agsets on deductible temporary ditferences, unused tax losses as #t is not probable that the Company
will have sufficient future taxable profit which can be available against the available tax losses.

36.3 Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

2013-2014 - 2021-2022 3,037.1¢
2014-2015 §,003.64 2022-2023 6,877.49
2015-2016 794.27 2023-2024 §,267.31
2016-2017 334.53 2024-2025 4,661.18
2017-2018 14,761.78 2025-2026 4,146.96
2018-2018 - 2026-2027 -
20182020 - 2027-2028 2,283.72
Total 20,984.20 25,365.85

Deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2079 Rupees 9,389.39 Lakh (March 31, 2018 - Rupees 5,482.99 Lakh} has not baen recegnised, as there is no
convincing evidence that sufficient taxabie profits will be avallable against which the unadjusted tax losses will be utilised by the Company.

Details of Deferred tax asseis ara mantioned below:- Rupaes in lakhs
R ilars g March 3120010 GRS March: 3201

| Property plant equipment 3.003.51 3,724.85
Financial Instrurnents. 146.78 179.83
\nabgorbed depreciation {6,595.12) {5,211 88)
Expense allowable on payments under {1,388.65) {472.29)
section 438 and 40{a)(ia)

Unabsorbed loss {5,456.89) {3,703.50)
Total Deferred Tax Assets {9,389.39} {6,482.09)

7 DISCLOSURES UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 2006}
To the extentthe company has recsived intimation from the “suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2008, the details are provided as under

Rupees in 1akhs

(i} Principal amount remaining unpald
(ii) intergst due thereon remaining unpaid 0.34 =
(i} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enterprises Development Act 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplisr|
beyend the appointed day during the year.

{iv} Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making paymenit (which have been paid but - R
beyond the appointed day during the year} but without adding the interest specified under the
Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008.

{v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid (net of tax deducted at source) 0.34 -
tvl) Interest remaining due and payable even In the succeeding years, until such date when the - N
interest dues as above are actually paid fo the small enterprise.
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38 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 118 - Leases and carain amendment isti
amerndments shatl be applicable to the Company from April 01, 2019, 1o existing Ind AS. These

A) ISSUE OF IND AS 118 - LEASES
Ind AS 118 will supersede the current standard on Isases i.e. Ind AS 17- Leases. As pev Inxd AS 118, the lessor will have to bring t
cancellable portion of leasing arrangement, ring to baoks ail the non-

B) AMENDMENT TO EXISTING STANDARD

‘The MCA has also carrled out amendments of the following accounting standards

i. Ind AS 101~ First time adeption of Indian Accounting Standards

ii. Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations

iii. Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

iv. Ind AS 111 = Joint Arangsments

v. Ing AS 12 — Income Taxes

vi. Ind AS 19 ~ Empkyyea Benefits

vil. Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

viii. Ind AS 28 - Investment in Associates and Jeint Veniures

Application of above standards are not expected 1o have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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m

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
List of related parties ¢ par the req ts of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Arshiya Limited y
2 |Mira Supply Chain Management Private Limited (formaly known as Arshiya Subeidiary Company 100% Tndia
Supply Chain Management Private Limited) (January 2, 2018 6N March 21,
2018)
Arehiya Northem FTWZ Limited

Mira Supply Chain Management Private Limited (formaly kncwn as Arshiya
Supply Chain Manegement Private Limited) (U January 1, 2016) Fellow Subsidiaries

Arshiya Reil Infrastructurs Linited

Indlia

Nr. Ajay 5. Mittal - Dirsclor
Mrs. Archana A Mittal - Diractor
Mr. Navnit Chowdhary - Director
Mr. Ashigh Kumar Belragra - Indapendeni Direcior I
e Dxmaoh Kumar Soda. Chif Financial Offcer (w.e.f, March 26, 2018) [ Hone0eial Pemonnel {KMF)
Mr. Amit Gupta - Chief Executive Cfficer (w.e.1. March 26, 2018)

Cirecior

Rolative of Key Manaperial Paracnnel

Transactions with related partiss
| Arshiya Rafl Infrastruchure Limited Loans received N
Loar, repaymant { aclugted = . ‘I[g: %
Foail Fraight expensa (7454 23.48,
Unwinded Interasi sxpaniza or Loan from fellow subsidiaries - {87.20}
em FTWZ Lim| ved N
Losn 7 aduptod - ]
Lrrwirkied (ntecest axpansa on Loan from feliow subnidiaras - (7.28}
Purchaes of aquity shares of ASCM™" - 4787
Arahive Lnjieg Loans recelved™ 119.57) {14,47075)
Loan repaymants 10217 514.50
Allocaiion of coat and common expenses by Holdiig {101.95) (418.25)
Company
Urmwinded Interaet axponss on Loan fram Holding Company (11.60) {10.38)
Financlel Guarantaes 133,
Purchasa of equity sharss of ASCH =4 Ty
Mira Supply Ghain Management Private Limited (formaly known as Arshiva| Loan given - (11,500.00)
Supply Chein Menagerent Private Limited) o
inyestmenl made In Compulsory Convertibls Debentures - 11,500.00
CCO) and sdjuated against lsan given o
Ananya Hitisl Salary Paid 25.67 2587

* During the year, tha Hakling Company has sliocated certain common cost and sxpensas incurmed by K, to the company aggregating 1o Rupass 101.85 lakhs {Previous ysar Rupees 416.25 lakhs) hased
on Holding Company's eatimates of such cost and expansas alributable 1o 1he compeny. Hence, Employes benafit axpanses ( Refer Note No. 26} and Certain axpenses alated under other expenses
{Refar Nole No. 29) are presentad as inchistve of such alocation of cenaln common costs and axpenses.

* Tha Company has adjusted payabd of Arshiya Rall infragtuciura Limited (ARAILY on March 31, 2018 NIL {(March 31, 2018 Rupees 1 288.42 lakhs }and payable amount of Arshiya
Northam FTWZ Limited (ANFTWZ) on March 31, 2018 NIL { March 31, 2018 Rupees 80,18 lakhs) with Arshiya Limited.

== Duting tha provious yaar, the Company had made payment of Rupass 4787 lakhs on behalf of Arshiya Norhem FTWZ Limited (ANFTWZ) to Arshiya Limited for share purchase of Mi

Chaln Management Private Limited. squity purchase of Mira Supply
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{l) Cioslng Balanves

15,202.13 1447117
530.08 880.60
28858 -

29,600.00 29,600.00

42,351.00 42,351.00

42,351.00 42,351.00




(i

(a)

(o)

(c)

(i)

(a)
(b
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

C _ _ Rupees In lakhs

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amortised cost
Trade Receivables 316.66 21.15 31666 21.18
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8.40 4.47 8.40 4.47
Cther Bank Balances 118.92 112.34 118.92 112.34
Other Financial Assets 1,528.711 1,528.71 1,528.71 1,528.71

Financial Guarantee

536081 ___ 669.50 536,06 669,59

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost
Borrowings 45,556.69 44 741.64 45,556.69 44.741.64
Trade Payables 476.85 188.54 476.85 186.54

Other financiat liabilities _ 596868 | 276113 5.968.68

Fair Valuation techniques used to determine falr value

The Company maintains procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available.
The fair values of the financial assets and liabliities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to astimate the fair values:

The Company assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current
financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of security deposits and other financial liabilities were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current
lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the Fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of uncbservable inputs including
counterparty credit rigk.

The fair values of non current borrowings ara based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate, They are classified as
level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit rigk,

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made In determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measure at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determing fair value, the
company has classified Its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1 - Lavel 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using Guoted pricss.

Leve! 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over the counter
derivatives) is determined using valustion techniques which maximise the use of obsarvable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are obsarvable, the ingtrument is included in
level 2,

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This
is the case for unlisted equity shares, contingent consideration and indemnification assets included in level 3.
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FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's principal financial fisbilites comprises of borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of thesa financial liabilities is to
manage for the Company's operations. The Company's financlal assets comprises of trade and other receivables, cash and deposits that arises directly
from its oparations.

The company's activities expose it to vanety of financial risks Including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Tha Company's risks managarnent
asgessment, management and processey are estabtished to |dentify and analyze the riaks faced by the Company to set up appropriate risks Emits and
controls, and to monitor such risks and compliancas with the same. Risks assessment and managament policies and processes are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in markst conditions and the company's activitios.

EXposUtEarying 1n aurament :
Cash and cash equivalents, Ageing analysis Ragular review of cradit
trade recalvabiss and Financial limits
pusets measured at amortisad
cost.

Liquidity risk Borrowings ard other llabilities  |Rolling cash flow forecasts Availablity of financlal
support from parent
company

Market risk — interest rate Long-term bomewings at variable | Sensltivity analysis Unhedged

ratas

The Company's risk management ls carried out by & corporate finance team under the policiss approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides
written principles for overall riak management as wall as policies covering specific areas, such as credit isk, interast rate risk.

{A} Credit sk
The Company is exposed to cradit risk, which is rigk that counterparty will defaulk on its contractual obligation resulting in & financial loss to the Company.
Cradit rigk arisas from cash and cash equivalents as well as cradit exposures to trade customers including outstanding receivables.

Trada recelvables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue samed from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed by
the company through continucusly monitoring the creditworthiness of cusiomers to which the company grants cradit terms in the normel course of
business. Outstanding customer recelvables are regularly menitored and any further services to major customers are approved by the senior
managament Credit sisk [s high as only few customers’ account for majority of the rovenue In the year prassnted. On account of adoption of Ind AS 108,
the company uses expectad credit [css maxtel to assase the impairment loss or gain.

{B] Liquldity risk

Liquidity rizk is the risk that tha Company may not be able to meet its prosent and future cash and coltateral obligations without incurring unacceptable
[osses. The Company’s objective is to, at all imes; maintain optimumn levele of liquidity to meat its cash and collateral requiramants, The Company limits
Its liquidity risk by ensuring funds from trade recaivables. The Company relies on operating cash flows and funding from holding company to meet its
neads for funds.

The table below provides undiscountad cash flows iowerds financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining pericd at the balance sheet to
the contractual maturity data.
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March 31, 2019

Borrowings 20,0587.82 24,714.31 -
OCRPS (Dabt and Equity companent} - 1,200.00 -
Trade payables 476.85 - -
Other financial liabillties 5,958.88 . .
Total Flnancial liablllties 26,531,385 25,814.91 -

March 31, 2018

Borrowings 17.482.77 26,800.00 _
OCRPS (Debt and Equity component) . . 1,200.00
Trade payables 188.54 - .
Othaer financial liabilities 2781.12 - .
Total Financial labilities 20,462.43 26,600.00 1,200.00
{C) Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial Instruments will fluctuate because of volatility of prices in the financlal markets,
Markeat risk can be further segregated as: 1) Foraign currancy risk and 2) Intarast rate risk

1) Foreign currency risk

1) Foreign currency Hsk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuate hecause of changes in foreign exchange rates.
However, the Company does not have any foreign currency expasure.

2} Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rak that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate bacausa of changas in markat interest rates. The
Company's main interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings with variable ratas, which exposa the Company to cash flow interest rata risk, During
the 315t Mareh, 2019 the Company's bomowings at the variable rate wara mainly denominated in Rupess.

Tha Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subjact to interest rate risk as defined in IND AS- 107, since
neither tha carrying ameount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate bacause of a change in market interest rates.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the company’s akillty to continue going concam in order to provide the return for sharehol
benafit for other stakehokdars and 1o maiataln an optional caphtal struciure to reduce the cost of capital , capital includes issued equity capital, share pramiu:e;sn: :T:
other equity reserves atiributable fo the squity holders of the company. !

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and tha requirements of the financial coven
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payrment to shareholders, return capital to sharahokders or issue new smiﬁ“ﬂg
comparty monitors capital using a gearing ratia, which Is debt divided by total equity. '

Iniskhe

i

?ﬁm?&sﬁggﬁiﬁ; (interest accrued) 43:2453:23 R
Soto) Debt 50,897.63 46,567.69
et equiy 1320943 19,608.22
Total Equity 15,017.15 31,351.84
Debt to Equity Ratio 3.39 2.18
Notes:-

{i) Debt is defined as long term and ghort tesm borrowinge including current maturities and intarest.
{ii) Total equity {as shown in batance sheet) includas issued capital and all ather equity.

As statad in Notes to accounts, the company Is also having scheme of arrangements to recrganise the capital structure.

Debt Covenants
Under the terms of Restructuring Agreement, the company is required to comply with following financial covenants:-
Without prior approval of Jender, the cornpany shall not:

Loans, debenture & charge - Issue or subscribe to any debentures, shares, raise any loans, deposit from public, Issue equity or prefer i i i
structure or create any charge on its assets Including its cash flow or give any guaraniess. . Squity or preference caplial, change fis capital

Dividend on equity shares - declara/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwise approved by the Lender/BM Committee and
recompense amount payable by the barrower o the lender in accordance with the provisions of RA. subject 1o the: payment of

n order to achieve this overall objective, the Capital tangement, amongst other thing, aims to ensure that it mests Financial covenants altached fo the i .
Loans and borrowings that define Capital structurs requirements, there have been breaches in the Financial covanants of Interest bearing loans mdeﬂgt::}?;b?:m
Cutrent peried and previous period. 9

The Company hag not proposed any dividend In last two years in view of logses Incumred.
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43 Praparation of financial stataments on "Going Concern” basis
The company has incurred net loss of Rupess £.334.70 Lakhs during tha year ended March 31, 2019 and as of that dale, the company's current iabilities axcesded by
s cument assats by Rupees 23,985.99 lakhs. Some of s [onders have recalisd their loans and the company is In the process of negotiating the revised payment terms
with the lengers. In view of the focussed emphasis of the Government on logistics Infrastructure sector, the praposed restruciuring and considering the fact that the
facifiias are yet 10 achieve full operational potentlal besides the strategic [ocations of the fackities, the management's fulure cutiook of its businessas is very promising
Accordingty the financials have been prepared on golng toncem basis, basad on financial support fram the Parent Company. ’

The management of the company is in the process of restructuring ils business operations and staps are as under .

i) Fully operational facility has now entared inta long tarm contrac with global shipping majors;

i) The planned long term cortract for transportation of Reafer cargo to incraase revenus;
fii} Increasing throughput through eolaborative ‘Pooling of assets' with other ICD and Private Container Train Oparators (PCTO);
iv) Increasing wterest from various Global customers for integrated solutions including rail iransport and warehouaing.

44 As per debt covenant, the Company are required to adhere 10 repayment echedule and any short payment gives Edeiwalss Assst Reconstruction Company (EARC) the
right to convert We of t_he ouistanding a_muunt of restructurad rupss loan andior part of the default amount into fuby pald up equity shares of the Company. Mo such
nofice of conversion In wriling has been given by EARC and the Company continues to disciose the amount as non-current and current as per repayment schedule, in

ithe Batance Sheet.

During the previous year two lam_!ers of the company hgw ussigned their rights, tile, and interesl In financisl assistance granted by them 10 Edelwsiss Assels
Reconstruction Parent Company Limited (EARC). Pest assignment of loans, EARC has becoma a secured lender of the Parent Company and right, titie and interest of

the lenders have vested Into EARC.

Pursuant to tha assignmant of such loans, and in terms of the restructuring packege spproved by EARC for the (pans so assignad, the company has exacuted
Restructuring Agreament {RA) with EARC, on behalf of EARC Trusts on 13th January, 2018 taking the aggregate amount of assigned loans to Rupees 20,998 lakhs.

As a rasult of this restructuring and assignment of debls of landera the gein eamed amounting 1o Rupees 10,398.92 lakha has been creditad to the profit and koss in
respectiva year.This has been disclosed as pat of an exceptional #lem.

48 During the previous year ended 31sl March 2018 the company has completed one time ssttlement {OTS) with a lender In respect of the term loan taken. OTS
siipulates payment and allotment of Oph_onally Convertible Redeemabie Preferencs Shares. The Company has made a payment of R3 3000 lakhs on 1Bth January
2018 and fasued 1,20,000 OCRPS. Gain of Rs 7,790.75 lakhs on this OTS has been credited 1o the Statement of Profit & Less 88 an excepllonal item in rupacuvu

year,

47 During the previous year, Company have acquired 33,08,333 aqulty shares from Arshiya Limited{AL) and 4,758,787 wquity shares from Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limitad
(ANFTWZ) @ Rupess 10 each of Arshlya Supply Chain Managerment Private Limited (ASCM) and thersby ASCM bacarrye wholly owned subsidiary of the Campany.

The company has also subscribed and aketied to 11,50,000 Zero Coupon unsecured compulsery and fuly convertible debeniures (CCD) of Rupees 10 each &t a
prarmium of Rupees 990 each of ASCM. Al l_he end of tenure, thesa CCD's are convertible into equal number of aquity sheres of ASCM. However on Marzh 22, 2013
tha Company has sold its investment of Equity shares in ASCM including CCD's to third party incurding a nat loas of Rupses 10,350 lakhs which has been recognised ir;

the Profit & Loss account a8 an exceptional lem in respective year.

48 The Company has sent raquest letters’ emails to various parties for confirmations of balances under borrowings, trade receivabies, trade payables and loans and
advances 1o which only few parfies have responded. the possible adjustment, if any, required in the financial statements will be accounted as and when the same is

determinable.

49 Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation ws 230 to 232 and other applicable pravisions of the Companias Act, 2013 has been filed hefore the National Company
Law Tribunal (*NCLT"} between Arshiya Ral Infrastructurs Limited, the company and Arshiya Transport & Handing Limited and their raspective shareholders. The
scheme ig condiional on vesicus approval { sanctons and is effective thereafter; accoedingly no effect of the said Scheme is given in the financial statements uf the
company. The craditors mesting of tive respactive companies was hekl on §th May. 2019. The Schame shall be given effect after receipt of necessary approvals.
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50 Input Tax Credit {ITC) Receivable:-

The Company has been legaRy advised that posi merger of the Company with ARAIL, the unutiised input tax credit of the Company can be utilised for discharging the

service tax Rabiity of ARAIL.

51 The Gompany disaggregates revenue from costracts with customers by type of producis and services, geagraphy and timing of revenus recognition.
Efiactive April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Coniracts with Customers®. The effect on adoption ¢f Ind AS 115 was insignificant,

Revenue disaggregstion by type of goads and services is given note no. 23
Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

| {Rupees In lakhs}
For the year ended  |For the year ended
Geography 3 March2019 | 31" March 2018
In_india 1,192.12 78.38
Outside India - -

Geographical revenie is aflocated based on the location of the cusiomers.
Revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue recognition is as follcowa:
{Rupess in lakhs)

For the year ended |For the year ended
31" March 2019  |31"March 2018

Geography

Goods fransfemed at a point in time . .
Service transferred over time 1.192.12 78.38 |

52 Based on recent Supreme court judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 there are vanious interpretive isaues including its applicability thus prospective

provisien w.e.f. March 01, 2019 been considarad of Re. 0.04 lakha.

53 The Company's borowings have been assigned by pankers to an ARC. The ARC have charged inerest! penal interest/additional interest amounting to Rs. 8.56 lakhs

upto the year snded March 31,

2018, which was not accepted by the Company and hence is under negotiation. In hght of audit qualifications in pravious year as a

matter of prudence, the company has recognised the sald interest! additional interest! penal interest and has accordingly restated the finance cost and other

conaaquential impacts in the respective years.

Fusther, during the year anded March 31, 2018 reported figure of financa cost, othet Equity and Interest Accrued on bormowings was Rs. 3,024.16 lakhs, Rs. 19,637.77
lakhs and Rs, 768,33 lakhs respactively, Restated figures of finance cost, sther equily and Interest Accrued on Berrowings are Rs. 3,533.71 lakhg, Re. 19,828.22 lakhs

and Rs. 777.85 lakhs reapactively, Earning Per Share (EPS) also recaiculated basad on the restated figures.,

54 Punjab National Bank (lsad Bank), on behelf of Cartain Consorium Banks, has initintad debd recovery action under Section 13(2) of Securitization & Reconsiruction of
Financiel Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESD) (ACT) vide nclica dated 18ih October, 2015 aggregating to Rupees 58.657.51 lakhs
(reduced to Rupees 29,369.94 lakns after the RA is signed with EARC on 31st March,2017). The bank has aiso Invoked the Corporate Guarantee issued by the
Promater Company, Arshiya Limited and Parsonal Guarantees of Promoter Cirectors |.e. Mr. Ajay S. Mittal and Mrs. Archana A, Mitlal, Further on 18th January 2016,
the Company recsived a notice of Possession from the authorised officar of the bank under Powsr Conferred on the bank u/s 13{4) of the sald Act read with Rule 8 () of

the Rules. The said [oan hag heen assigned by Punjab National Bank to EARGC & further EARC has filed an applcation for withdrawal for the same.

85 The figures for the previous ysar have been re-grouped / re-amanged, wherever nacessary, to correspond with the current year's classification/disclosure.

Noles lo the financial siatements 1-56

AB per our_l-?eport of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Ascountants Arshiya industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Firm Registration Number 1017 20W/W1003585
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Vijdy Napawaliya Alay § Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partnar Dirsctor Diractor

Membership Number. 108859 DIN : 002268355 DIN : 00813576

r
Place ; Mumbai Dinesh Kumar Sodani

Date: May 27, 2019 Chief Financial Officar
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Arshiya Lifestyle Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arshiya Lifestyle Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”)and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 315t March, 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were

Regd, Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, india.
(LLP |dentification No. AAB-8737)
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operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease fto
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31%t March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

The Company has not paid / provided remuneration to its directors and accordingly
provisions of section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration are
not applicable.
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018})
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Manoj H. Dama

Partner
(Membership No. 107723)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16™ May, 2019
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Lifestyle
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31%t March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

‘u‘_

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32™ Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstategients due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 315t March, 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

I 7 Jooor §
Manoj H. Dama
(Partner)
(Membership No. 107723)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16%™ May, 2019
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i  In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management
in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and building and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of
the Order is not applicable.

(i) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees,
or security covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act, and hence reporting under
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposit to which the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, are applicable and hence reporting under clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and service tax, cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at 31t March, 2019 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32 Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP |dentification No. AAB-8737)
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(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise
Duty, Value Added Tax and Goods and service tax as on 315t March, 2019 on
account of disputes.

(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks

(ix)

and government or has not issued any debentures. Hence, reporting under clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause
3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given

(xi)

to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company has not paid / provided managerial remuneration and accordingly, the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standard. The provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its holding or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No, 117366W/W-100018)
w727

Manoj H. Dama

Partner
(Membership No. 107723)

Place: Mumbai

Date

i
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: 16" May, 2019



ARSHI
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
R As at As at
Farticulars Notes | mMarch 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 10.04 5.59
(b) Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets 5(a) = -
(c) Income Tax Assets 6 89.04 11.56
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 9 1,266.22 1,668.11
Total Non-Current Assets 1,365.30 1,685.26
Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 7 2,196.75 743.82
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 739.63 658.55
(iii) Other Financial Assets 5(b) 10.89 14.50
(b) Other Current Assets 9 394.99 262.74
Total Current Assets 3,342.26 1,679.61
TOTAL ASSETS 4,707.56 '3,364.87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 10 148.50 148.50
(b) Other Equity 11 1,853.11 1,649.71
Total Equity 2,001.61 1,798.21
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12(a) - 1.00
(ii} Other Financial Liabilities 13 364.05 358.36
(b) Provisions 16 2.47 -
(c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 15 703.55 129.20
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,070.07 488.56
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12(b} 691.70 691.70
(i) Trade Payables 14
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 14.66 =
Other than micro enterprises and small 654.92 138.37
enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 13 4.02 6.16
{b) Other Current Liabilities 15 270.16 241.87
(c) Provisions 16 0.42 -
Total Current Liabilities 1,635.88 1,078.10
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,707.56 3,364.87

See accompanying notes 1 - 37 to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Manoj H. Dama
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Arshiya Lifestyle Limited

( < \
\ R
\ ekl

~Pramotd Raghavan
Director
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Navnit Choudhary
Director

DIN : 00613576
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019
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ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended

Year ended

Notes | March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(I) INCOME

(a) Revenue from operations 17 10,165.30 1,890.38

(b) Other income 18 199.39 49.24
(II) Total Income (a) + (b) 10,364.69 1,939.62
(III) EXPENSES

(a) Warehousing and Handling costs 19 9,094.60 1,897.96

(b) Employee benefits expense 20 23.71 -

(c) Finance costs 21 358.88 25.40

(d) Depreciation expense 22 2.09 0.00

{e) Other expenses 23 851.57 38.64
(IV) Total Expenses (a) to (e) 10,330.85 1,962.00
(V) Profit/(Loss) before tax (II-IV) 33.84 (22.38)
(VI) Tax expense 24 6.98 -
(VII) Profit/(Loss) for the year 26.86 (22.38)
(VIII) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.35) -
Total Other Comprehensive loss for the year (0.35) -
(IX) TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / 26.51 (22.38)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
(X) Earnings per equity share (Face value per 26
Equity share Rs.10)

Basic and Diluted 1.81 (1.51)

See accompanying notes 1 - 37 to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

&/

Manej H. Dama
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Arshivya Lifestyle Limited

uw‘,;.ul‘;h!::’
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Navnit Choudhary

Director

DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai

-.,-’

Date: May 16, 2019

EFamod Ra;évan

SN

DIN : 07634838




ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Equity Share Capital

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
- March 31 March 31
Particulars r ¥
2019 2018
Equity Share Capital 148.50 148.50

Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

See accompanying notes 1 - 37 to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Vs,

Manoj H. Dama
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019

w

¥

M Gyt DI B
-_——s

Navnit Choudhary
Director

DIN : 00613576
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors
of Arshiya Lifestyle lelted

Securities Retained Deemed Total

Particulars Premium Earnings CaPita[
Contribution

As at March 31, 2017 962.50 (1,095.48) - (132.98)
Loss for the year - (22.38) - (22.38)
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Fair value difference of security depaosits placed - - 1,306.58 1,306.58
by the Parent on behalf of the Company
Fair value of financial guarantee provided by the - - 498.49 498.49
Parent on behalf of the Company
As at March 31, 2018 962.50 (1,117.86) 1,805.07 1,649.71
Profit for the year - 26.86 - 26.86
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (0.35) - (0.35)
Fair value difference of security deposits placed - - 173.53 173.53
Fair value of financial guarantee provided by the 3.36 3.36
Parent on behalf of the Company
As at March 31, 2019 962.50 (1,091.35) 1,981.96 1,853.11
Total Equity (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Particulars Total
As at March 31, 2018 1,798.21
As at March 31, 2019 2,001.61

Pramod Raqhav n

Director

DIN : 07634838




ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
hartficliisry March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 33.84 (22.38)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense (Previous year *Rs.291) 2.09 0.00
Bad debts written off 5.09 5.31
Allowance for doubtful debts 45.80 &
Finance costs 358.88 25.40
Foreign exchange differences (Net) 13.40 (2.98)
Sundry balances written back (0.97) (3.61)
Interest on Fixed Deposits (11.12) (17.11)
Interest on Financial assets carried at amortised cost (187.30) (24.94)
Dividend income - (0.60)
Operating profit before working capital changes 259.71 (40.91)
Movement in working capital:
{Increase) in trade receivables (1,517.22) {723:37)
Increase in trade payables 531.21 296.90
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 272.95 (173.35)
Increase in other liabilities and provisions 606.26 606.40
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 152.91 (34.34)
Income taxes paid (84.46) (11.16)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities (A) 68.45 (45.49)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for property, plant and equipment (6.54) (5.59)
Dividends received - 0.60
Interest received 20.17 17.11
Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 13.63 12.12
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from borrowings - 690.70
Repayment of borrowings (1.00) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C) (1.00) 690.70
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 81.08 657.32
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 658.55 1.23
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Note No.8 739.63 658.55

See accompanying notes 1 - 37 to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Manoj H. Dama
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Arshiya Lifestyle Limited ) (
=
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Navnit Choudhary K_Bramod’ﬁ-a’ag;van

Director Director

DIN : 00613576 DIN : 07634838
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2019
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ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Corporate Information

These statements comprises of financial statements of Arshiya Lifestyle Limited (CIN ; U74110MH2010PLC201330) for the year ended
March 31, 2019, The company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated on March 26, 2010 under the provisions of
the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at 301, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar
Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400 018,

Arshiya Lifestyle Limited (ALL) is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited (AL), a company listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and Naticnal
Stock Exchange, Arshiya Lifestyle Limited is a Co-developer under the Special Economic Zones Act, 2005,

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 16, 2019.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

The Company prepared its financial statements in accordance the Indian Accounting Standards {IND AS) are notified under the section
133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual basis and there are no financial assets and
liabilities as at the year end which are measured at fair value at on going basis.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Financial Information of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The Financial Information are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is
entity's functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

(b)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss,

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value anly if it increases the future
benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and eguipment,
including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to profit or loss for the year/period
during which such expenses are incurred.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital
advances under other non-current assets.
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) Is charged to profit or loss when the Property,
plant and equipment is de-recognized.
Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is
capitalized to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect
expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor
is incidental thereto is charged to the profit or loss.
Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis using the useful lives estimated by the management, which are equal to those
prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,
The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Asset Category [No. of Years
Office Equipment | 3-5years
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ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NTS F THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 201

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount,

Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount, An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs
of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the profit or loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of
the asset over its remaining useful life.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

As a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Company, as lessee, bears substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition 15 based on the delivery of performance obligations and an assessment of when control is transferred to the
customer. Revenue 15 recognised either when the performance obligation in the contract has been performed ('point in time'
recognition) or ‘over time’ as control of the performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring
services to a customer as specified in the contract, net off allowances, trade discounts and excluding amounts collected on behalf of
third parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government), Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of
performance obligations and the receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional.

Revenue from contracts with customers includes warehousing storage income, transportation income and handling, value optimisation
and other services. Revenue from rendering of services is recognised on an accrual basis as per the agreed terms,

The following are the specific revenue recognition criteria:

Interest income
Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the
effective interest rate method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established. which is generally when shareholders
approve the payment of dividend.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss either in other comprehensive
income (OCI) or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in QOCI or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
requlations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax Is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except
when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

*.&
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ARGHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT payable for a year is charged to the profit or loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available in the profit and
loss as deferred tax with a corresponding asset only to the extent that there is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward, The said asset is shown as "MAT
Credit Entitlement’ under Deferred Tax. The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the
extent the Company does not have the probable certainty that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Initial Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recegnition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Profit or Loss, .

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets
The Company has assessed conditions for classification of the financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that were
exist on the date of transition to Ind AS.

(i) Amortised Cost
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Fair Value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset Is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(iii) Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair
value through OCIL.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets,

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or “other financial liabilities'.

(i) Financial Liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as
FVTPL. Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Profit or Loss.

(ii) Other Financial Liabilities:
Other financial liabilities {including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. The
Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows
the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application
of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. The Company calculates the expected credit
losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience,

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and recelvable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially madified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds received.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of
the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation,

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(iii)} Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) defined benefit plans viz. gratuity,
(b) defined contribution plans viz. provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
abligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit
credit method,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The interest cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

|



i)

(i

(k)

m

ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations., The Company has
no further payment obligations once the centributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

(vi) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Profit or Loss as a finance cost.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it |s either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are alsa
disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent
liabilities,

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is
recognised.

Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions for
which discrete financial information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating
decision maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators
by business segments and geographic segments.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners of the Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Current/non current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An asset is treated as
current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
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ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with banks having original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to Lakhs in two decimal as per the requirement of
Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements in cenformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities,
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense
for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. )

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of non-financial assets, useful
lives of property, plant and eguipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities and fair value
measurement.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

(a} Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost

(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

(c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

(d) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

(e) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

Impairment of non - financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from
binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that
will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the
DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Valuation of deferred tax assets

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has
been explained under Note (i) above,

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future cutflow of funds resulting
from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification
of the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change, Since the
cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and
adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.
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ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Fair value measurement

Management uses valuation technigues to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market gquotes are not
available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants
would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on cbservable data as far as possible but this is not always available.
In that case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Recent Accounting pronouncements

New standard issued and effective
Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

On March 28, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA} notified the new revenue recognition standard, viz., Ind AS 115 "Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, Ind AS 115 is applicable to the Company from the financial years beginning on or after April 01,
2018. The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to custormers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services,

1t prescribes a five-step model to help entities decide the timing and amount of revenue recognition from contracts with customers.

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a perfermance obligation Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue
when {or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

The Company has completed its evaluation of the possible impact of Ind AS 115. Except for the disclosure requirements, application of
above standard does not have any significant impact on the Company's Financial Statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective
On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 - Lease. These amendments shall be applicable to
the Company from April 01, 2019,

IND AS 116 will replace the existing IND AS 17 Lease. IND AS 116 set ocuts the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors, The standard introduces a single lease accounting model, requiring
lessees to recognise right of use assets for granted rights of use and corresponding lease liabilities. However, IND AS 116 contains the
aption of exercising exemptions for the recognistion of short term leases and those pertaining to low-value assets,

The Company will adopt IND AS 116 effective from April 01, 2019, is in process of accessing impact.

The following are amendments to Ind AS which have been published but not yet effective as on the reporting the date:

Ind AS Amendments to standards / interpretations Mandatory ;. ..t
application

Ind AS 12 Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes (amendments April 1, 2019 No material
relating to Income tax consequences of dividend in profit or impact
loss, other comprehensive income or equity) and Ind AS expected
Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income tax treatments.

Ind AS 109 Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Financial Instruments- April 1, 2019 No material
(amendments relation to Prepayment Features with impact
Megative Compensation) expected

Ind AS 19 Amendment to Ind AS 19- Employee Benefits April 1, 2019 No material
{amendment relating to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or impact
Settlements and Its impact on future service cost and expected
interest cost)

Ind AS 23 Amendment to Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs April 1, 2019 No material
(Amendment relating to inclusion of specific borrowing in impact
general borrowing while computing capitalisation rate) expected

Ind AS 28 Amendment to Ind AS 28 - Investments in Associate and April 1, 2019  No Impact
joint wventures (amendment clarifying that Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures to which equity
method is not applied will be cover under Ind AS 109)

Ind AS 103 & Ind AS 111 Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations and Ind AS 111- Joint April 1, 2019 No Impact

arrangements

(amendment relating to re-measurement of previous held
Interest in the joint control arrangement when control is
obtained}

NG



ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Office Equipment

AT COST
Balance as at March 31, 2017

Additions during the year 5.59
Balance as at March 31, 2018 5.59
Additions during the year 6.54
Balance as at March 31, 2019 12.13
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Balance as at March 31, 2017 o
Depreciation for the year (*Rs. 291) 0.00*
Balance as at March 31, 2018 -
Depreciation for the year 2.09
Balance as at March 31, 2019 2.09
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2017 -
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 5.59
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 10.04




ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

_ J
{Amount in INR Lakhs)

o As at As at
Particulars M h 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{a) Non Current
Security deposits placed with sub-lessor{Refer Note No.28(iv) and 36) 1,732.14 1,718.37
Less: Amount retained by sub-lessor from upfront lease payment
payable to the parent {1,732.14) {1.718:37)
Total - -
{b) Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Interest Accrued 5.45 14,50
Unbilled Revenue 5.44 -
Security deposits placed with sub-lessor{Refer Note No,28(iv) and 36} 3,160.33 6,289.29
Less: Amount retained by sub-lessor from upfront lease payment payable to the parent (3,160.33) (6,289.29)
Total 10.89 14.50
6. INCOME TAX ASSETS
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non Current
Income Tax Assets 89.04 11.56
Total 89.04 11.56
7. TRADE RECEIVABLES :
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulard March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Current
Secured, considered good
Secured, considered good 60.93 29.97
Unsecured, considered good 2,135.82 713.85
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 45.80 -
2,242.55 743.82
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) (45.80) -
Total 2,196.75 743.82
|8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
{Amount in INR Lakhs)
g As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Cash on hand 0.52 0.42
Balances with banks on current accounts (Refer note below ) 739.11 658,13
Total 739.63 658,55

Note:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of restricted bank balances held in escrow account with bank. This account can only be operated with
the specific permission / instructions in terms of the Escrow Agreement entered into by the Company with Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limited

[formerly known as Arshiya Rail Siding & Infrastructure Limited ("APFL"}].

[9. OTHER ASSETS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

4 As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
(a) Non Current
- Prepaid Expenses 104.23 131.20
- Prepaid rent 948.21 1,055.40
- Financial Guarantee (Refer note below ) 213.78 481.51
Total 1,266.22 1,668.11
(b) Current
Advances other than Capital advances
- Advance to suppliers 0.18 -
Others
- Prepaid expenses 27.23 28.46
- Prepaid rent 247.36 217.76
- Balances with Government Authorities 0.17 =
- Financial Guarantee (Refer note below ) 119.47 16.52
- Others 0.58 -
Total 394.99 362.74

Note:

Corporate guarantee given by the parent, Arshiya Limited, to Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limited {formerly known as Arshiya Rail Siding &
Infrastructure Limited) (sub-lessor) in respect of warehouses taken on lease by the Company from sub-lessor.

_—
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NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

[10. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

i. Authorised Share Capital

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Equity Share of Rs.10 each

Number Amount
As At March 31, 2018 30,00,000 300.00
As At March 31, 2019 30,00,000 300.00

ii. Issued subscribed and paidup equity shares

{AmoL

Number

nt in INR Lg_l{,_bﬁ_}_‘
Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed
and fully paidup

As At March 31, 2018

As At March 31, 2019

14,85,000

14,85,000

148.50
148.50

iii. Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of shares, namely, equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

iv. Shares held by the parent company

Qut of eguity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its parent company are as below:

As at As at
Particulars March 31,
March 31, 2019 2018
Arshiya Limited
Equity shares 14,85,000 14,85,000
Percentage 100% 100%

v. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Number %o Holding Number | % Holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Arshiya Limited 14,85,000 100% 14,85,000 100%




ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(11, OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and Surplus {Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at
P
articulars rch 1 M h 31, 2018
{a) Securities Premium 962.50 962.50
{b) Retained Earnings (1,091.35) (1,117.86)
(c) Deemed Capital Contribution 1,581.96 1,805.07
1,853.11 1!649.71

{a) Securities Premium

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 1

Opening balance 962.50 962.50

Closing balance 962.50 962.50

Securities Premium represents premium received on equity shares issued, which can be utilised only in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for specified purposes.

(b) Retained Earnings

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars i 2 March 31, 201
Openina balance (1,117.86) (1,095.48)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 26.86 (22.38)

Other comprehensive loss for the year (0.35) =
Closing balance (1,091.35) (1,117.86)

{c) Deemed Capital Contribution

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

. Year ended Year ended
Paxticulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Opening balance 1.805.07 =
During the vear 176.89 1,805.07
Closing balance 1,981.96 1,805.07

Deemed Capital contribution comprises notional interest on security deposits received by Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limited
(formerly known as Arshiya Rail Siding & Infrastructure Limited ("APFL")} (the Sub-lessor) out of amount payable to the
parent and Financial guarantee issued by parent to the Sub-lessor accounted at fair value.

[12. BORROWINGS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars b Wi -
(a) Non Current Borrowings
Loans from Others (Refer Note below (i}) - 1.00
Total - 1.00
(b) Current Borrowings
Loans from Related Parties (Refer Note below(ii)) 691.70 691.70
Total 691.70 691.70

Note:

(i} Loan pertains to outside party, which is interest free.

(ii) Of the above, Rs.691.70 Lakhs (
which is interest free.

Previous year Rs.691.70) is inter corporate loan from Arshiya Limited - Parent Company



ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

{33. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

]
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

y As at As at
Particulars M 1, 2018 |
{a) Non Current
Security Deposits from customers 364.05 358.36
Total 364.05 358.36
{b) Current
Security Deposits from customers 4.02 6.16
Total 4.02 6.16

[14. TRADE PAYABLES

|
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Current
Micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note below) 14.66 =
Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 654.92 138.37
Total 669.58 138.37

A) DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM
ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT,2006

(Amo
Particulars erchA:::tzo 19 | Ma rchA‘;:tzms
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 14.49 -
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount 0.17
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under 0.17 _

MSMED Act, 2006

Note:
The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Micro and Small”

enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company.

[15. OTHER LIABILITIES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars NS ak AR AL
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 |
(a) Non current
Lease equalisation reserve 703.55 129.20
Total 703.55 129,20
(b) Current
Advance received from Customers 220.27 202.22
Statutory Liabilities {Refer note below) 49.89 39.65
Total 270.16 241.87

Note:
Statutorv dues includes TOS, Provident Fund, Profession Tax and Interest payable for delayed payments of statutory dues.

[16. PROVISIONS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars

(a) Non Current
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 25) 1.76 =
Compensated absences 0.71 -
2.47 -

{b) Current
Provision for employee benefits

Gratulty (refer note 25) 0.28 -
Compensated absences 0.14 =
Total 0.42 -

i —




ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

[17. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

|
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Sale of services
Warehousing services

9,274.01 1,738.95
Handling and other services 891.29 151.43
Total 10,165.30 1,890.38

[18. OTHER INCOME

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Interest income on
- Deposit with bank

11.12 17.11
- Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Refer Note No.36) 187.30 24.94
Dividend income - 0.60
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation - 2.98
Sundry Balances written back 0.97 3.61
Total 199.39 49.24
|19. WAREHOUSING AND HANDLING COSTS ;
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
Baidiiae Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Business conducting fees (Refer Note No.35) 3.351.11 972.91
Lease Rent 5,484.68 902.70
Handling equipment hire charges 96.11 4.92
Labour Charges 162.70 17.43
Total 9,094.60 1,897.96
|20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE |
{Amount in INR Lakhs)
= Year ended Year ended
Partioulorg March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 21.48 =
Contribution to provident and other funds 1.01 =
Staff welfare expenses 0.73 =
Gratuity Expense 0.49 -
23.71 -
(21. FINANCE COSTS |
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Interest expense on unwinding deposit (Refer Note No.36) 187.30 24.94
Interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 3.27 -
Interest on Micro enterprises and small enterprises vendors 0.17 -
Guarantee Commission expense 168.14 0.46
Total 358.88 25.40

\'aw___l
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ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED

E T D AR 201
|22. DEPRECIATION EXPENSE |
{Amount in INR Lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Depreciation expense (Previous year *Rs,291) 2.09 0.00
Total 2.09 0.00
(23. OTHER EXPENSES |
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
PArHEUIaES March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Electric power, fuel and water 352.99 =
Repairs and maintenance 27.92 2.61
Payments to auditors (Refer note below) 52:55 975
Bad debts written off 5.09 5.31
Legal and professional fees 22.37 3.06
Rates and taxes 27.81 5.29
Travelling and conveyance expenses 86.47 12.10
Allowance for doubtful debts 45.80 s
Security charges 209.26 =
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 16.36 €
Miscellaneous expenses 4.95 0.52
Total 851.57 38.64
Note : Payments to auditors (Amount in INR Lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
As auditor
Audit Fee 12.00 7.50
Other services 40.55 2.25
Total 52.55 9.75
[24. TAX EXPENSES |
{(Amount in INR Lakhs)
PartioulaFE Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Current Tax 6.88 =
Earlier Year's Tax 0.10 -
Total 6.98 s




ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION

(i) Defined contribution plans
The Company has provident fund, Employee State Insurance and Employee's pension scheme which are classified as defined contribution
plans. Contributions are made to provident fund for eligible employees at the prescribed rate of the eligible salary as per the regulation, The
contributions are made to Regional Provident fund Authority. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has
no further contractual or any contractual obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is INR 1.01
Lakhs (March 31, 2018: INR Nil)

(ii} Defined benefit plans (unfunded)

The Company provides gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn eligible
monthly salary proportionately for 15 days salary and multiplied by number of years of service. The Company provides for gratuity liability
based on the Actuarial valuation carried out by the independent actuary at the end of the year.

a) Reconciliation of n of Defined Benefit Obligation: (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2019 |  March 31,2018 |

Defined Benefit Obliaation, balance transferred - -
Current service cost 0.41 =
Interest cost 0.08 -
Remeasurements - Actuarial (gain)/ loss - -
- Chanae in demoaraphic assumptions - -
- Change in financial assumptions

- experience variance 0.35 -
Benefits paid - -
Liabilities transfer in* 1.20 -
Defined Benefit obligation at year end 2.04 -

*Some employees of Arshiya Limited are transferred to the Company w.e.f 01-06-2018. Along with employees, the Company has taken over
corresponding employee benefit liabilities outstanding as on the date transfer determined on the actuarial bases by independent actuary.

(b) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss : {Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at
P
At March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current service cost 0.41 -
Interest cost Q.08 z
Net Cost 0.49 =
In Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements - Actuarial gain/ (loss) for the year on defined benefits obligations (0,35) i
Recognised in OCI {0,35) =
(c) Actuarial assumptions: (Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 6.95% ]
Salary escalation rate 9.00% -
Withdrawal Rate 17.00% -
100% IALM
Mortality Rate (2006-2008)

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India Bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated
term of the obligations.

Salary escalation assumption has been set based on their estimates of overall long term salary growth rates after taking into consideration
expected earings inflation as well as performance and seniority related increases.

Assumptions regarding withdrawal rates are set based on their estimates of expected long term future employee turnover within the
organisations.

(c) Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obliqation :

Significant Actuarial Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The
sensitivity analysis below, have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at end of the reporting
period , while holding all other assumptions constant, The result of Sensitivity analysis is given below:

{Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at

As at
Particylars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(I} Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the period -
(1) Impact due to increase of 0.50% 1,98 -
(i} Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 2.10 -
(11} Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of oblination at the end of the period =
(1) Impact due to increase of 0.50% 2.10 i
ii b 1.98 -

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
{A) Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase the plan liability.

(B) Longevity risk ~ The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of
plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan‘s
llability.

(C) Salary risk - The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such,
an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability,

N
e




ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

[26. EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

(a) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share 1.81 (1.51)

Profit/(Loss) for the year used in calculating basic / diluted earnings per share 26.86 (22.38)

(b) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic / diluted

earnings per share 14,85,000 14,85,000

[27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

{(Amount in INR Lakhs)
[A- Leases |
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for certain warehouse facilities, The lease is non-cancellable and is for a
period of & years and may be renewed for a further period of 6 years based on mutual agreement of the parties. The lease agreements
provide for an increase in the lease payments by 5 % every year from lease commencement date.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Future Non-Canceliable minimum lease commitments

Within one year 4,916.73 4,642.37
Later than one year but not later than five years 21,214.21 21,009.65
Later than five years - 4,896.67

26,130.94 30,548.68

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

B. Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Bond-cum Legal Undertaking (Refer note below) 1,000.00 1,000.00

Note:
Bond-cum Legal Undertaking has been given to SEEPZ Authority for safeguarding duty liability on goods stored in warehouses within FTWZ
on behalf of Unit holders.



ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

[28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

[Narrle of Related Party

[Nature of Relationship

Parent Company

Arshiva Limited

Parent Company

List of Related party and relationship, with whom transaction have taken place

Arshiya Logistics Services Limited (formerly known as Laxmipati Balaji Exim Trading Limited)

Fellow Subsidiary

{ii) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties for sales and purchase of services, and reimbursements,
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Name

Nature of Relationship

March 31, 2019

N Nature of Transactions As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Arshiya Limited Business conducting fees 3,351.11 572.91
Arshiya Limited Income billed to customer on behalf of the Company 1,777.01 257.65
Arshiya Limited Corporate guarantee received 241.87 31,288.61
Arshiya Limited Corporate guarantee reduced 4,659.61 739.93
Arshiya Logistics Services Warehousing and handling services income 4,838.52 723.76
Limited
Arshiya Limited Cost sharing 615.65 =
Arshiya Limited Repayment of Borrowings - 724.98
Arshiya Limited Interest expense on unwinding deposit 187.30 24.94
Arshiya Limited Guarantee Commission expense 168.14 0.46
Also see note 11(c) for deemed capital contribution from Arshiya Limited.
(iii) Qutstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of services (Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at

March 31, 2018

Trade Receivables

Arshiya Logistics Services Fellow Subsidiary 1,182.89 245.53
Limited

Trade Payables

Arshiya Limited Parent Company 553.40 104.81

Name

(iv) Loans from related parties
Nature of Relationship

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Loans from related parties

Arshiya Limited Parent Company Beginning of the year 691.70 =
Loans received - 1,416.68
Amount retained by sub-lessor 6,160,33* 9,289.29
from upfront lease payment
payable to the parent (Refer Note
No. 36)
Less: Loan repayments made - (724.98)
Less: Security deposits placed (6,160.33)* (9,289.29)
with sub-lessor (Refer Note No.
36)
End of the year 691.70 691.70
Corporate guarantee
Arshiya Limited Parent Company Beginning of the year 30,548.68 -
Corporate guarantee taken 241.87 31,288.61
Corporate guarantee reduced (4,659.61) (739.93)
End of the year 26,130.94 30,548.68

* During the year INR 3,128.96 Lakhs has been received from sub-lessor which is paid to the Parent.

L




ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

[29. SEGMENT REPORTING —

The Company is primarily engaged in providing end to end supply chain management solutions to its customers in FTWZ. In the opinion of the Company,
the entire business Is governed by same set of risks and returns and hence, the Company has only one reportable segment, namely, “Operation of
warehouses in Free Trade Warehousing Zone”. The Company provides services within India and hence, doesn't have any operations in economic
environments with different risks and returns. Hence, it is considered that the Company is operating in single geographical segment.

[30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS |

Fair value of Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at Fair value, but their value disclosures are required

1. Financial Instruments by Category (Amount in INR Lakhs)
|_____Carrying Am
g As at As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amortised cost
Trade Receivables 2,196.75 743.82 2,196.75 743.82
Cash and Cash Equivalents 739.63 658.55 739.63 658.55
Other Financial Assets 10.89 14.50 10.89 14.50
Total 2,947.27 1,416.87 2,947.27 1,416.87
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amortised cost
Borrowings 691.70 692.70 691.70 692,70
Trade Payables 669,58 128.37 669.58 138.37
Other financial liabilities 368.07 364.52 368.07 364.52
Total 1,729.35 1,195.59 1,729.35 1,195.59

The management have assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, and other
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

—
—
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[31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT |

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk, liguidity risk and foreign exchange risk. The
Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and
management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, loans given and investments. Credit risk is managed
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparty to which the Company
grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Cancentration of Revenues from four customers of the Company are 83.79% and
84.42% of total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively out of which revenue from fellow subsidiary is
47.62% and 47.04% respectively. Concentration of trade receivables from three customers of the Company are 91.82% and 68.60% of
total trade receivable as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 resepectively out of which trade receivable from fellow subsidiary is
52.75% and 33.01% respectively.

(b) Trade Receivables

The Company has used expected credit loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For this purpose, the Company uses a provision
matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk factors and historical
data of credit losses from various customers. The Company has recognised Rs. 44.95 Lakhs as at March 31, 2019 (Rs. Nil as at March 31,
2018) allowances for doubt trade receivables, estimated using ECL model.

{Amount in INR Lakhs)
Financial assets for which loss allowances is measured using the expected credit loss As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Current
Trade receivables
Secured, considered qood 60.93 29.97
Unsecured, considered good 2,135.82 713.85

Total 2,196.75 743.82

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its
liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.

(d) Foreign exchange risk

The Company's foreign exchange risk arises from its foreign currency revenues (primarily in US Dollar and Euro). As a result, if the value of
the Indian Rupee appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Company's revenues and expenses measured in Indian Rupees may
decrease or increase and vice-versa. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially in
recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future. The Management of the Company monitor movement in the
exchange rate of determine appropriate action.

(i) Significant foreign currency risk exposure relating to trade receivables and balance with bank
(Amount in Lakhs)

Foreign Currency amount Equivalent amount in INR
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Particulars 2018
Trade receivables

UsD 14.93 6.36 1,050.80 409.62

EUR 0.10 0.05 3.86 4.14
Advance from customer

usD 0.26 - 20.27 -
Balance with banks

usD 2 O3 - 8.42

(ii) Sensitivity
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end
of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

o



ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

[32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s capital management objectives are:

- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern; and

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders through optimisation of working capital
The Company working monitors capital on the basis of the amount of working capital
The Company’s objective for capital management is to maintain an optimum overall, working capital.

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

[33. TAX RECONCILIATION

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 |
Reconciliation of tax expense
Profit/(loss) before tax 33.84 (22.38)
Enacted income tax rate (%) applicable to the Company # 27.820% 27.820%
Tax expenses calculated at enacted income tax rate 9.41 (6.23)
Effect of unused tax losses and tax offsets not recognised as deferred tax assets (9.41) (6.23)
Tax paid under provision of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 6.88 -
Earlier Year's tax 0.10 =
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 6.98 z

# The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 27.820% at which the Company Is liable to

income under the Indian Tax Law.

pay tax on taxable

(34. DEFERRED TAX

Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been

recognised are attributable to the following:

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars RE-ax i
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Tax losses 42.69 78.59
Unabsorbed depreciation 2.51 0.42
Total 45.20 79.01
Tax effect of the aforesaid unrecegnised deferred tax assets 12.58 21.98

Note:

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of above items, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be

available against which the Company can use the benefit therefrom.

The Unrecognised Tax Losses carried Forward will expire as follows:-

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars A% at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Assessment Years:
2019-2020 - 0.28
2020-2021 1.76 37.38
2021-2022 2.57 2.57
2022-2023 14.28 14.28
2023-2024 - -
2024-2025 1.10 1.10
2025-2026 - -
2026-2027 22.97 22.97
Total 42.69 78.59

-



ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

35. During the previous year, the Parent Company (AL) has entered into Business Conducting and Services Agreement and
addendum thereto with the Company in relation to operation of Six Warehouses taken on sub-lease from Ascendas Panvel FTWZ
Ltd (formerly known as Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited (APFL)) and operation of Container Yard and Open Yard
owned by the Parent Company. The aforesaid Business Conducting and Services Agreement and addendum thereto is to be read in
the overall context of Master Lease agreement (MLA) dated 3rd February, 2018, Sub-Lease agreement dated 3rd February, 2018
and other agreements and documents entered into in connection with lease of Six Warehouses by the Parent Company, being
ocwner, to APFL and Sub-Lease of the said Six Warehouses by APFL to the Company and transfer of all rights and obligations under
the Existing Unit Holder Agreements entered into by the Parent Company to and in favour of the Company. The Parent Company
for the administration and operational expediency entrusted the Company to carry out operating and managing the open yard, the
container yard and warehouses whereby the Company agreed to undertake and conduct the business of operating and managing
the open yard and the container yard and warehouses and provide other services by utilising the infrastructure facilities provided
by the Parent Company. The Company shall also receive all the incomes generated from the warehouses and storage yard, bearing
the cost and expenses to operate and maintain the warehouses and storage yard. Pursuant to the aforesaid Business Conducting
and Services Agreement, the Company will pay 99% of Excess Revenue / Total Income over all the expenses / charges / provisions
to the Parent Company as Business Conducting Fees. Accordingly, the Company has recognised as Business Conducting fees
{expenses) Rs. 3,351.11 Lakh during the year ended 31st March, 2019 (year ended March 31, 2018: 972.91 Lakh}.

36. Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Ltd (formerly known as Arshiya Rail Siding & Infrastructure Limited (‘the Sub-lessor’ or "APFL’) has
retained Rs. 6,160.33 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rs. 9,289.29 lakhs) from the consideration by way of lump sum rent ("Upfront Lease
Layment’) payable by APFL to the Company’s Parent, Arshiya Limited ("AL’) in terms of Master Lease Agreement dated February
03, 2018 {MLA) and considered the same as deposit paid by the Company to ARSIL for guaranteeing the payment of the Sub-
Lease Rent and ali other amounts as payable by the Company and/or AL and/or and/or Arshiya Logistics Services Limited (formerly
known as Laxmipati Balaji Exim Trading Limited ("ALSL")) and ALSL are fellow subsidiaries of the Company] under the Sub-Lease
Dzed and/or all the other Transaction Documents and for the due observance of certain undertakings provided by AL to APFLL in
relation to payments to be made by AL to its creditors and to certain Government Authorities.

Pursuant to the terms of the aforesaid agreements, the Management has offsetl the security deposits with APFL and payable to ALL.
The related finance income and finance expenses arising on discounting of security deposits with APFL and payable to AL are
disclosed under Notes 18 and 21, respectively.

37. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to comply with requirement of Ind AS and Schedule III.
Previous year's figures are not comparable with those of current year since the Company has commenced warehousing operations
w.e.f. February 03, 2018.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Arshiya Lifestyle Limited
/]

- AQQJL .

Navnit Choudhary “Pramod Ra
Director Director

DIN : 00613576 DIN : 07634838
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2019

N A iy A O S
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- Chartered Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Arshiya Logistics Services Limited (Formerly known as
Laxmipati Balaji Exim Trading Limited)
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arshiya Logistics Services
Limited (Formerly known as Laxmipati Balaji Exim Trading Limited) (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31%* March, 2019, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS")and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31t March, 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP |dentification No. AAB-8737)
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making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 313
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31t March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Qur report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

The Company has not paid / provided remuneration to its directors and accordingly
provisions of section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration are
not applicable.



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Manoj H. Dama

Partner
(Membership No. 107723)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16" May, 2019
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ARSHIYA LOGISTICS SERVICES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAXMIPATI
BALAJI EXIM TRADING LIMITED)

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya
Logistics Services Limited (Formerly known as Laxmipati Balaji Exim Trading
Limited) (“the Company”) as of 31t March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financiai information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Regd. Office: Indiabulis Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road {(West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP |dentification Mo. AAB-8737)
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 315t March, 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No, 117366W/W-100018)

s .

Manoj H. Dama
(Partner)
(Membership No. 107723)
Place: Mumbai
Date: 16t May, 2019
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ARSHIYA LOGISTICS SERVICES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAXMIPATI
BALAJI EXIM TRADING LIMITED)

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management
in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and building and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(i) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of
the Order is not applicable.

(iliy The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees,
or security covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act, and hence reporting under
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposit to which the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, are applicable and hence reporting under clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and service tax, cess and other

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32 Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Fiphinstone Road {West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March, 2019 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise
Duty, Value Added Tax and Goods and service tax as on 313t March, 2019 on
account of disputes.

(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks
and government or has not issued any debentures. Hence, reporting under clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause
3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) The Company has not paid / provided managerial remuneration and accordingly, the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standard. The provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its holding or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Manoj H. Dama

Partner
(Membership No. 107723)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 May, 2019
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

7 As at As at
Particulars HNotes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

(@) Property, plant and eguipment 4 1.832 1.36

(b} Financial Assets

(i} Investment in subsidiary 5 5.00 -
(i) Other Financial Assets 6 32.07 F
(c) Income Tax Assets 7 232.51 80.59
{d} Other Non-Current Assets 8 8.37 =
Total Non-current Assets 279.78 81,95
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i} Trade receivables 9 1,593.03 1,121.86
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 10 74.46 92.54
(iii) Loans 11 0.25 "
{iv} Other Financial Assets 53 2.83 E
{b) Other current assets 8 7.91 3.07
Total Current Assets 1,678.48 1,217.47
TOTAL ASSETS 1,958.26 1,299.42
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 12 160.00 160.00
(b} Other equity i3 (233.91) (122.21)
Total Equity (73.91) 37.79
Liabilities
Non current liabilities
(a) Provisions 14 27.51 19.87
Total Non-current Liabilities 27.51 19.87
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 15
-total outstanding Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.30 2.43
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 1,509.60 830.54
and small enterprises
(i1} Other financial liabilities 16 380.57 280.15
(b} Other current liabilities 17 108.94 125.22
tcl Provisions 14 5.25 3.42
Total Current Liabilities 2,004.66 1,241.76
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,958.26 1,299.42

See accompanying notes 1 - 36 to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Mancy H. Dama
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited

=~ aﬁjr'u:f—uu;] D (’

—a

' : M--

MNavnit Choudhary
Director

DIN: 00613576
Place: Mumbai

///,é-——S-EEE\ Date: May 16, 2019
FAN 3

Pramod Raghavan
Director
DIN: 07634838

o
3

(=

-
AL
v,

wuneM

7/, N/
&ﬂw*@

€S

»
=
&
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I BALAJI EXI

AT NT F DL TH RCH 31, 20
{(Amount in INR Lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
Notes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(1) INCOME

(a) Revenue from operations 18 6,795.46 4,845.64

(b) Other income 19 4.49 44.16
(I1) Total Income (a) + (b) 6,799.95 4,889.80
(II1) EXPENSES

(a) warehousing, Transportation and Handling Costs 20 6,425.44 4,654.42

(b) Employee benefits expense 21 236.82 158.44

(c) Finance costs 22 0.36 3.51

(d) Depreciation expense 23 0.27 0.02

(e) Other expenses 24 245.94 189.27
(IV) Total Expenses (a) to (e) 6,908.83 5,005.66
(V) Loss before tax (II-IV) (108.88) (115.86)
(VI) Tax expense - a
Loss for the year (108.88) (115.86)
(VII) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (2.82) 1732
Total Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year {(2.82) 17.32
(VIII) TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (ﬁ.?ﬂ] (98.54)
(IX) Earnings per share (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

Basic and Diluted 25 (6.80) (18.40)

See accompanying notes 1 - 36 to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Manoj H. Dama
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited
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Mavnit Choudhary

Director

DIN: 00613576

~.Date: May 16, 2019

ramod Raghavan
Director
DIN: 07634838
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ARSHIYA LO RMER KNO : A : :
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Equity Share Capital

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Equity share capital 160.00 160.00
Retained earnings (Amount in INR Lakhs)

ieul As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening balance (122.21) (23.67)
Loss for the vear (108.88) (115.86)
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) - remeasurement of (2.82) 17.32
defined benefit plans
Closing balance (233.91) (122.21)

Total Equity (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Particulars Total

As at March 31, 2018 37.79
As at March 31, 2019 (73.91)

See accompanying notes 1 - 36 to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(s

Manoj H. Dama
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited
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Director
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Director
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Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at
Particylars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss before tax: (108.88) (115.86)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense 0.27 0.02
Sundry balances written back (0.13) -
Bad debts written off 37.56 -
Allowance for expected credit losses 33.45 50.17
Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss 26.26 (19.84)
Interest income on deposits with banks - (0.97)
Interest on Financial assets at amortised cost (1.77) -
Finance costs 0.36 3.51
Operating loss before working capital changes (12.88) (82.97)
Movement in working capital:
Increase in trade receivables (565.59) (1,145.53)
Increase in other assets (46.34) (3.07)
Increase in trade pavables 677.05 822.97
Increase in Other financial liabilities 97.38 279.65
(Decrease) / Increase in other liabilities (16.45) 121.14
Increase in provisions 6.66 40.61
Cash flow after working capital changes 139.83 32.80
Income taxes paid (151.92) (81.47
Net cash used in operating activities {A) (12.09) (48.67)
(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
purchase of property, plant and equipment (0.74) (1.38)
Investment made in equity shares of a subsidiary company (5.00) -
Interest received - 0.97
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (5.74) (0.41)
(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - 155.00
(Repayment of)Proceeds from borrowings (13.51)
Loans to subsidiary (0.25) -
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (0.25) 141.49
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (18.08) §2.41
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year g92.54 0.13
Cash and cash equivalents as per Note No. 10 74.46 92.54

See accompanying notes 1 - 36 to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Manoj H. Dama
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited
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Navnit Choudhary ———
Director
DIN: 00613576

; “.Date: May 16, 2019

Pramod Raghavan
Director
DIN: 07634838
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Corporate Information

The Company is a Public Company domiciled in India and is incorporated on June 21, 2008 under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 301, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annle Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai Mumbai City MH 400018.These statements comprise financial statements of Arshiya Logistics
Services Limited (CIN : U93000MH2008PLC183791) for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Arshiya Logistics Services Limited is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited (AL), a Company listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National
Stock Exchange. Arshiya Logistics Services Limited is an integrated logistics and supply chain management solution and value
optimisation services provider.

The Company is registered as a service unit in Free Trade Warehousing Zone (FTWZ) of Arshiya Limited, at Panvel, Maharashtra and
in FTWZ of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited, at Khurja, Uttar Pradesh.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 16, 2019,
significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance
accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These are the Company's first Ind AS financial statements. Refer to Note 34 for information
on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair value.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Financial Information of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The Financial Information are presented in Indian rupee (INR}, which s
entity’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Fareign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, iIf any. The
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future
benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment,
including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to profit or loss for the year/period
during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as
capital advances under other non-current assets.,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is charged to profit or loss when the
Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is
capitalized to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect
expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is neither related to the construction activity
nor is incidental thereto is charged to the profit or loss.

Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.
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Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis using the useful lives estimated by the management, which are equal to those
prescribed under Schedule 1I to the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Category MNo. of Years
Office Equipment 3-5 years
Computers 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount,

Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the assel’'s recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the profit or loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of
the asset over its remaining useful life.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition is based on the delivery of performance obligaticns and an assessment of when contral is transferred to the
customer. Revenue Is recognised either when the performance obligation in the contract has been performed (‘point in time’
recognition) or ‘over time’ as control of the performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the company expects to be entitied to in exchange for transferring
services to a customer as specified in the contract, net off allowances, trade discounts and excluding amounts collected on behaif of
third parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government). Consideration Is generally due upon satisfaction
of performance obligations and the receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional.

Revenue from contracts with customers includes warehousing storage income, transportation income and handling, wvalue
optimisation and other services. Revenue from rendering of services is recognised on an accrual basis as per the agreed terms.

The following are the specific revenue recognition criteria:

Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the
effective interest rate method,

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
chareholders approve the payment of dividend.

Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation

authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amcunt are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss either in other
comprehensive income {OCI) or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except
when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is prabable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets agamnst
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT payable for a year is charged to the profit or loss as current tax. The Company recagnizes MAT credit available in the profit and
loss as deferred tax with a corresponding asset only to the extent that there is probable certainty that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The said asset is shown
as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ under Deferred Tax. The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the asset to
the extent the Company does not have the probable certainty that it will pay normal tax during the specified period,

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Initial Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, an initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Profit or Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets
The Company has assessed conditions for classification of the financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that were
exist on the date of transition to Ind AS.

(i) Amortised Cost
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(iii) Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair
value through OCIL.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.

(i) Financial Liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as
FWTPL. Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Profit or Loss.

(ii) Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. i
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Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting periad. The
Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows
the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. The Company calculates the
expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to ancther party. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing hability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds received.

Convertible financial instrument
Convertible instruments are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible instruments, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction
costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds Is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option
meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax.
The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible instrument based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end af
the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilibies are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.
The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur,
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(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a)} defined benefit plans viz. gratuity,
(b} defined contribution plans viz. provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation Is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected
unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The interest cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost,

Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Profit or Loss as a finance cost.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, Is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also
disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, whose operating results are reqularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions for
which discrete financial information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating
decision maker evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance
indicators by business segments and gecgraphic segments.




(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(i)

ARSHIYA LOGISTICS SERVICES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWRN AS LAXMIPATI BALAJI EXIM TRADING LIMITED)
N T FI AL FOR THE 1

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners of the Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earn'!ngs per share adjusl;s the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and_ other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Current/non current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as
current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liablility for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents
The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. '

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term depaosits with banks having
original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. '

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax i1s adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferra!s or gccruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Rounding of amounts

Al amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off Lakhs in decimals as i
er the re
Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated. g requirement of

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities

disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and
expense for the periods presented.

Estimates aqd underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key gources of estimation of un-;ertainty a_t the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and |Iarb||ltIES within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of non-financial assets, useful
lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities and fair value
measurement.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

(c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
(d) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

(e) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL




(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(wii)

{viii)
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Impairment of non - financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of dispesal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data
from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that
will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the
DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may
result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has
been explained under Naote (i) above.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting
from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and
quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to
change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are
reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Fair value measurement

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are nct
available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants
would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available.
In that case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date,

Recent Accounting pronouncements

New standard issued and effective
Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

On March 28, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the new revenue recognition standard, viz., Ind AS 115
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. Ind AS 115 is applicable to the Company from the financial years beginning on or after
April 01, 2018. The core principle of Ind AS 115 Is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

It prescribes a five-step model to help entities decide the timing and amount of revenue recognition from contracts with customers.
Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: ldentify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises
revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

The Company has completed its evaluation of the possible impact of Ind AS 115. Except for the disclosure requirements, application
of above standard does not have any significant impact on the Company’s Financial Statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) second amendment rules on March 30, 2019, which notified the following standards and amendments
to Ind AS applicable effective from April 1, 2018,

Ind AS 116 - Leases

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recagnition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. The standard introduces a single lessee accounting
model, requiring lessees to recognize right-of-use assets for granted rights of use and corresponding lease liabilities, However, Ind
AS 116 contains the caption of exercising exemptions for the recognition of short-term leases and those pertaining to low-value
assets.

The Company will adopt Ind AS 116 effective from April 1, 2019, the Company is in process of assessing impact.
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The following are other amendments to Ind AS which have been published but not yet effective as on the reporting date:

Ind AS Amendments to standards / interpretations Manl?lattcio r\; Impact
application ~ ~ =~
Ind AS 12 Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes (amendments Company is in
relating to Income tax consequences of dividend in profit process of
or loss, other comprehensive income or equity) and Ind AS April 1, 2019 assessing the
Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income tax treatments. impact
Ind AS 109 Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Financial Instruments- Company is in
{(amendments relation to Prepayment Features with . process of
: < April 1, 2019 ;
Megative Compensation) assessing the
impact
Ind AS 19 Amendment to Ind AS 19- Employee Benefits Company isin
(amendment relating to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or . process of
Settlements and Its impact on future service cost and P11 2019 Gogeccing the
interest cost) impact
Ind AS 23 Amendment to Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs No material
{(Amendment relating to inclusion of specific borrowing in April 1. 2019 impact
general borrowing while computing capitalisation rate) P s expected
Ind AS 28 Amendment to Ind AS 28 - Investments in Associate and No Impact
joint ventures (amendment clarifying that Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures to which equity April 1, 2019
method is not applied will be covered under Ind AS 109)
Ind AS 103 & Ind AS 111 Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations and Ind AS 111- Joint Mo Impact

arrangerments

{amendment relating to re-measurement of previous held April 1, 2019
Interest in the joint control arrangement when control is

obtained)
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Equipments Computers Total

At cost

Balance as at April 1, 2017 - - ~
Additions 1.38 - 1.38
Bal?'lwe as at March 31, 2018 1.38 = 138
Additions s 0.74 0.74
Balance as at March 31, 2019 1.38 0.74 2.12

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Balance as at April 1, 2017 - } )

Depreciation for the year 0.02 = 0.02
Balance as at March 31, 2018 0.02 - 0.02
Depreciation for the year 0.26 0.01 0.27
Balance as at March 31, 2019 0.28 0.01 0.29
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 1.36 = 136

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 1.10 0.73 1.83




(Amount in INR Lakhs)

5. INVESTMENT

As at As at
Pl March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non Current-ungquoted
Investments in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary at cost (Refer note below) 5.00
Total 5.00 T

Note:

50,000 Equity shares of Arshiya 3PL Services Private Limited of the face value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up (as at March 31, 2018: NIL)
Note on Exemption of preparation of consclidated financial statement as per IND AS 110:

Arshiya 3PL Services Private Limited became wholly owned subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. August 27, 2018. Arshiya Limited {Parent
Company) produces consolidated financial statement In compliance with Indian Accounting Standards that are available for public use.
Thus the Company is exempted from preparing consolidated financial statements.

6. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non Current
Financial assets carried at amaortised cost
Security Deposit with fellow subsidiary (refer note below) 32.07 -
Total 32.07 =
Current
Others
- Unbilled Revenue 2.83 =
Total 2.83 =
Note:

As per terms of Unit holder agreement between Developer and Unit holder, the Company (Unit Holder) has given interest free refundable
security deposit to Fellow Subsidiary Company Arshiya Morthern FTWZ Limited (Developer) for Free Trade Warehousing Zone at Khurja,
Uttar Pradesh.

7. INCOME TAX ASSETS

As at As at
1
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non Current
Income Tax Assets 232.51 80.59
Total 232.51 80.59
8. OTHER ASSETS
As at As at
rs
Particula March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non Current
Others
- Prepaid rent 8.37 =
Total B8.37 -
Current
Advances other than Capital advances
- Trade advances 0.38 0.15
Others
- Prepaid rent 4.22 =
- Prepaid expenses 3.31 2.92
Total 7.91 3.07
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9. TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current
Trade recelvables considered good-Secured 149.84 201.10
Trade receivables considered good-Unsecured 1,443.19 920.76
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 83.62 50.17
) W 6 g 4 " 1,676.65 1,172.03
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss al owance)
(refer note below) (83.62) (50.17)
(83.62) (50.17)
Total 1,593.03 1,121.86
Note: Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance)
- As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 50.17 3
Add: Impairment losses recognised during the year 33.45 50.17
Balance at the end of the year 83.62 50.17
10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at As at
P lars
articu March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balances with banks In current accounts 73.28 90.78
Cash on hand 1.18 1.76
Total 74.46 92.54

Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2019 INR 64.70 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 INR 806.72 Lakhs) comprise of restricted bank
balances held in escrow account with banks. These accounts can only be operated with the specific permission / instructions in terms of
the Escrow Agreement entered into by the Company with third parties i.e. Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limited (formerly known as Arshiya Rail
Siding & Infrastructure Limited ("ARSIL")& Banks.

11, LOANS
As at As at
iculars
Partl March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Loan to subsidiary (refer note below} 0.25 i
Total 0.25 -
Note:

Interest free loan given to wholly owned Subsidiary Company Arshiya 3PL Services Private Limited to fulfill their initial compliance to open
new bank account and the same is receivable on demand.
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, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

teliry Equity Share of Rs. 10 each
Number Amount

2,50,00,000 2,500.00

2,50,00,000 2,500.00

Authorised Share Capital

ys at March 31, 2018
\s at March 31, 2019

) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares

rticulars Number Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed

and fully paid up

As at April 1, 2017 50,000 5.00
Issued during the year 15,50,000 155.00
As at March 31, 2018 16,00,000 160.00
Issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2019 16,00,000 160.00

ii) Shares held by the Parent Company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Parent Company are as below:

articulars A9 at oty
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
shiya Limited (Parent Company w.e.f. June 13, 2017) 16,00,000 16,00,000

of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

v) Details
As at As at
ame of the shareholder March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Number %o holding Number %o holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Arshiya Limited 16,00,000 100% 16,00,000 100%

v) Rights, preferences and restrictions
he Company has issued only one class of equity shares, namely, equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one

ote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
hareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

n the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
sreferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehoclders.
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13, OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and Surplus

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Retained Earnings (233.91) (122.21)
Total (233.91) (122.21)
5 s (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Retained Earnings Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period (122.21) (23.67)
108.88) (115.86)
Loss for the year ] ] (
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) - remeasurement of defined benefit plans (2.82) 17.32
Balance at the closing of the reporting period (233.91) (122.21)
14. PROVISIONS (Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Non Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 26) lggz lgg
C ensated absences ; 5
omp 27.51 19.87
Current ;
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 26} i.;g i.ig
mpensated absences ) )
come Total 5.25 3.42

15, TRADE PAYABLES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current
Trade Payables to Micro enterprises and Small enterprises (refer note below) 0.30 2.43
Trade Payables to Related Parties (refer note 28) 1,236.17 565.21
Trade Payables to Others than Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 273.43 265.33
Total 1,509.90 832.97

ENTERPRISES

A) DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO ENTERPRISES AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM

Particulars

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 on the above amount
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act,

2006

0.30

2.42
0.01

0.01

Note:

on the basis of information available with the Company.

The above information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Micro and Small" enterprises




delayed payments of statutory dues.
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16. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
{(Amount in INR Lakhs)
= As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current
Financial Liabilities
Deposits from customers 380.57 280.15
Total 380.57 280.15
17. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
- As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Current
Advance received from Customers 6.21 34.82
Others
Statutory Dues (refer notes below) 102.73 g90.17
Others - 0.23
Total 108.94 125.22
Notes:

1. Statutory dues includes TDS, Provident Fund, Profession Tax, ESIC, Goods and Service Tax and Interest payable for

2. Based on recent Supreme court judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 there are various interpretive
issues including its applicability thus prospective provision w.e.f. March 01, 2019 been considered of Rs. 0.40 lakhs.

\

iy
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18. REVENUE FROM OPE Aot T INR Lahe)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue from Operations
Warehousing income 3,106.88 2,175.18
Transportation income 1,695.55 1,377.14
Handling, value optimisation and others services 1,993.03 1,293.32
Total 6,795.46 4,845.64
7 R OME -
19. OTHER INC {Amount in INR Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest income on deposits with banks = 0.97
Financial assets at amortised cost 1.77 i
Foreign exchange gain - 43.19
sundry balance written back ;}513 =
Miscellaneous Income 3 )
: Total 4.49 44.16
H ING, TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING COSTS
20. WAREHOUS (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Warehouse storage charges 4,516.18 3,175.14
Transportation charges 763.08 725.76
Material Handling and other Charges 1,146.18 753.52
Total 6,425.44 4,654.42
_EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
21. E (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
salaries, wages and bonus 210.36 128.53
Compensated absences (refer note 26) . 4,43 1.61
Contribution to provident fund and employees' state insurance 11.00 6.79
Gratuity expense (refer note 26) gg% li-gg
Ifare expenses i i
BUEAS Total 236.82 158.44

22. FINANCE COSTS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Interest on delayed payment of Statutory Dues

0.36 3.50
Interest on delayed payment of dues to Micro enterprises and Small enterprises o 0.01
Total 0.36 3.51

23. DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

| A - —

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Depreciation expenses

0.27

0.02

0.27

0.02
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24. OTHER EX (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
pParticulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rent 44.61 80.30
Repairs and maintenance 4.70 5.24
Insurance 1.35 0.01
Rates and taxes 0.46 2.06
Legal and professional fees 19.21 11.32
Telephone and internet expenses 15.01 10.31
Printing and Stationery Expenses 1.64 0.71
Bank charges 22.13 7.96
Travelling and conveyance expenses 0.82 0.81
Audit Fees (Refer note (a) below) 23.25 11.25
Advertisement 1.71 1.22
Sales Promotion expenses - o
Temporary shed hire charges 19.85 -
Bad Debts written off 37.56 -
Foreign exchange loss 14.04 -
postage and courier charges 0.67 0.70
allowance for expected credit losses 33.45 50.17
Miscellaneous expenses 5.48 3.17
Total 245.94 189.27
udit Fees (Amount in INR Lakhs)
(2) A Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
As auditor
Audit Fee including limited review 12.00 11.25
Other services 1125 -
Total 23.25 11.25

25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (6.80) (18.40)
Loss for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating (108.88) £115.86)
basic / diluted earnings per share
| _(b) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator 16,00,000 6,29,589
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ARSHIYA LOGISTICS SERVICES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAXMIPATI BALAJI EXIM TRADING LIMITED)

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION

(i) Defined contribution plans
The Company has provident fund
Contributions are made to provident fund and ESIC for employees at the rate prescribed of
obligation of the Company is li
recognised during the year towar

(ii) Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by number of years of service.

(a) Reconciliation of opening and clasing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation:

, Employee State Insurance and Employee's pension scheme which are classified as defined contribution plans.

the eligible salary

mited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or any constructive obligation. The expense
ds defined contribution plan is INR 11.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: INR 6.79 Lakhs)

The Company provides gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of
five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per

as per the regulation. The

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

i As at As at
e March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Defined Benefit Obligation, balance transferred * 15.05 1793
Current service cost 3,34 15.95
Interest cost 1.18 0.3
Remeasurements - Actuarial (gain)/ loss 2.82 (17.32)
Benefits paid (0.92) (1.52)
Defined Benefit obligation at year end 22.36 15.96

taken over all the employee benefit liabilities outstanding as on the date transfer,
(b) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss :

*All the employees of one of the fellow subsidiaries are transferred to the Company w.e.f July 01, 2017, Along with employees, the Company has

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

- As at As at
1
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current service cost 3.34 15.85
Interest cost 1.18 0.93
Net Cost 4,52 16.88
In Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements - Actuarial gain/ (loss) for the year on defined benefits obligations 2.82 (17.32)
Income for the period recognised in OCI 2.82 (17.32)]
{c) Actuarial assumptions: {Amount in INR Lakhs)
: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 6.95% 7.40%,
Salary escalation rate 9.00% 7.00%
withdrawal Rate 17.00% 15.00%
. IALM [ALM
Martality Rate
rtality (2006-2008) (2006-2008)

the cbhgations.

expected earings inflation as well as performance and seniority related increases.

organisations.

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India Bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of|

Salary escalation assumption has been set based on their estimates of overall long term salary growth rates after taking into consideration

Assumptions regarding withdrawal rates are set based on their estimates of expected long term future employee turnover within the




ARSHIYA LOGISTICS SERVICES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAXMIPATI BALAJI EXIM TRADING LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(c) Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation :
Significant Actuarial Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The
sensitivity analysis below, have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at end of the repni-rtm

period, while holding all other assumptions constant, The result of Sensitivity analysis is given below: 4

(Amount in INR Lakhs)|

Particulars As at As at
e | March 31, 2018

(I} Impact of the change in discount rate Murch 31, 2019 March 31, 201
present value of obligation at the end of the period 29.37 15.95
(i) Impact due to increase of 0.50% (0.59) (0'40
(i) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 0.62 0'42]

(II) Impact of the change in salary increase z
present value of obligation at the end of the period 22,37 15.95
(iY Impact due to increase of 0.50% 0.60 0'42
(i) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (0.58) (0.40)

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

(A) Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase the plan liability.

(B) Longevity risk = The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s hiability

(C) Salary risk — The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan‘s liability. ' '

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars » As at As at

arch 31, 2019
Bond-cum Legal Undertaking (refer note below) - 15.000.00 March 31-152%33 =
Note:

Bond-cum Legal Undertaking has been given to SEEPZ Authority for safeguarding duty liability on goods stored in FTWZ on behalf of customers




ARSHIYA LOGISTICS SERVICES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAXMIPATI BALAJI EXIM TRADING LIMITED}
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

28. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

[i) List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Name of Related Party

|Nature of Relationship

Parent Company

Arshiya Limited

|Parent Company (w.e.f. June 13, 2017}

List of related parties and relationship, with whom transaction have taken

place

Arshiya 3PL Services Private Limited

‘Whally owned Subsidiary (w.e.f. August 27, 2018)

Arshiya Lifestyle Limited

Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Fallow Subsid

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited (upto March 21, 2018)

Mega M g t Services Private Limited

Welldone Software Consultancy Private Limited

Company having commaon Key Managerial personinel (KMP's} (upto June 28, 2017)

{ii} Transactions during the vear with related parties
The fallowing transactions occurred with related parties for sales and purchase of services, and relmbursements.

Name

Mature of Relationship

Nature of Transaction

Year ended
March 31, 2019

{Amount in INR Lakhs)
Year ended
March 31, 2018

Arstuya Limited

arshiya Lifestyle Limited

Arshiya Northern FTWEZ Limited

Arsniya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Arshiya 3PL Services Private Limited

Arshiya 3PL Services Private Limited

Arshuya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Parent Company
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

warehousing and Handling Costs
Warehousing and Handling Costs
‘Warehousing and Handling Costs
Revenue from operations
Security deposits

Loans

Investmants

Other Advances ®

4,838.52
325.05

45.00
0,25

5.00

2,694.77
7376
146,88

1.62

0.23

Name

rchases of services

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Nature of Relationship

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Trade Payables

Arshiya Limited #

Arshiya Lifestyle Limited

Arshiya Northern FTWE Limited
Security Deposits

Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited **

Parent Company
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiaries

1,182.8%
53.28

45.00

286.87
245,53
30.81

({iv} Loans te/from related parties

Mame

MNature of Relationship

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

{Amountin INR Lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2018

Loans to related parties ##
Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Lirmited

Fellow Subsidiary

Beginning of the year
Loans given #

End of the year

5,710.21
Loan repay received, # (5, 710.21)
End of the year =
Arshiya IPL Services Private Limited Subsidiary Beginning of the year :
Loans glven 0.25 -
Loan repayments received, adjusted -
End of the year 0.25 -
Loans from related parties
arshiya Limited Parent Company Beginning of the year - =
Loans recelved # 168.62 4,73575
Loan repayments made/ adjusted {168.62) (4,735.75)
End of the year - =
Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited Fellow idiary Beginning of the year 0.23 .
Loan repayments made/ adjusted = {0.23} 0.23
End of the year = 0.23
Mega Management Services Private Limited Company having comman |Beginning of the year 13,32
Key Managerial Personnel |Loans recelved 2
Loan repayments mades {13.32)
End of the year - =
welldone Software Consultancy Private Lamited Campany having common |Beginning of the year 0.19
Key Managerial Personnel |Loan repayments made

(0.19)

# As per the arrangements,

{v] Issue of Rights shares to Arshiya Limited

*payment made on behalf of Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited

+# These leans have bean granted to the above entities for the purpose of their business.

inter-aila, entered into between the Company, Arshiya Limited {aL) and Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited {ASCM), a fellow
subsidiary, upto March 21, 2018 the baiance receivable from ASCM has been adjusted against balance payable to AL and the net payable to AL has been disclosed.

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

—(Amount in INR Lakhs) |
As at
March 31, 2018

Equity Share of INR 10 each

155.00

During the year ended March 31, 2019 Company has made Right issue of Nil equity share (March 31, 2018 15.50 Lakhs).

29. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company |s primarlly engaged in providing ntegrate
warehouse Zone (FTWZ). In the opinion of the Company,
business segment, namely, “Operation of Free Trade Warehousing Zone”.
enviranments with different risks and returns. Hence, it is consid

d that the C

¥ |5 op

d logistics and supply chain management solution and value optimisation services [0 Iis customers in Free Trade
the entire business s gowverned by same set of risks and returns and hence, the Company has only one reportable

The Company provides services within India.and hence, doesn’t have any operations in economic
ing in single geagraphical segment.
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ARSHIYA LOGISTICS SERVICES LIMITED {(FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAXMIPATI BALAJI EXIM TRADING LIMITED}
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value of fi ial ts and 7al liabilities that are not measured at Fair value, but their value disclosures are required.
Financia! {atlint b ry
ing Amount Fair Value
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amortised cost
Trade Receivables 1,593.03 1,121.86 1,593.03 1,121.86
ash and Cash Equivalents 74.46 492.54 74.45 92.54
Loans Q.25 - 0.25 -
Other Financial Assets 34.50 - 34.90 -
Total 1,702.64 1,214.40 1,702. 1,214.40
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amortised cost
Trade Payabies 1,509.90 832.97 1,509.80 832.97
Other financial liabilities 380.57 280.15 380.57 280,15
Total 1,890.47 1,113.12 1,890.47 1,113.12

The management have assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, loans, other financial assets
and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

31, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, Including credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange risk. The Company's risk
management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate|
risk limits and controis, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk nt and manag t policies and processes are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Campany’s activities.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customers contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).
Customer credit nsk is managed by each team subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date for major clients. In addition, large number of minor receivables are grouped into|
homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of financial assets. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivahles. Cancentration of Revenues from
two customers of the Company were 15% and 12% of total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively.
Concentration of Receivables from three customers of the Company were 32% and 19% of total trade recelvables for the year ended March 31,
2019 and March 31, 2018 respeclively.

(b) Trade receivables

The Company has used expected credit loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For this purpose, the Company uses a provision
matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk factors and historical data
of credit losses from various CUSTomers.

Financial assets for which loss allowances is measured using the expected credit loss As at As at
model March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
r
Trade receivables
Trade receivables considered good-Secured 149,84 201.10
Trade recewvables considered good-Unsecured 1.443.19 920.76
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 83.62 50,17
1,676.65 1,172.03
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) (83.62) (50.17)
{refer note below)
1,593.03 1,121.86
Note: Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts {expected credit loss allowance)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 50.17 -
Add: Impairment losses recognised during the year 33.45 50.17
Balance at the end of the year 83.62 50.17

{ ) Liauidity risk
The Company closely monitors its risk of shortage of funds, The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to its debt as low. As at
reporting date the Company does not have any loans and all other financial liabilities of the Company are short term. Further, the Company
believes that carrying value of all of its financial liabilities approximates to its fair value.

(d) Foreian exchange risk
The Company's foreign exchange risk arises from its foreign currency revenues primarily in US Dollar and Euro, As @ result, if the value of the
Indian Rupee appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Company’s revenues and expenses measured in Indian Rupees may decrease
or increase and vice-versa. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies has changed in recent periods and may
continue to fluctuate in the future.

(i) Sianificant foreian currency risk exposure relating to trade receivables and balance with bank

{Amount in Lakhs}
Foregign Currency amount i n in IN
e As at As at As at As at
: March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Trade receivables
usp 27.35 17.82 1.891.52 1.145.11
EUR 0.26 0,32 20.27 25.63
QAR & 0.04 . 0.79
Advance from customer
UsD 0.09 0.53 6.18 34.01
EUR 0.0003 - 0.02 -
Security deposits from customer
uso 0.73 0.14 50.66 9.29
EUR 0.02 0.03 1.35 272
AED 0.35 : 6.65 -
Balance with banks
Uso - 0.002 L Q.14

(ii) Sensitivity

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk Decause the exposure at the end of]
the reporting period dees nat reflect the exposure during the year.




EEHIYA LﬁGIETICE EEEVICEE LIEITEE iFORMEELY KNOWN AS LAXMIPATI BALAJI EXIM TRADING LIMITED)
o TO E FINANCIAL ST EMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

TES THE FINANCIAL STAT

2. DEFERRED TAX

.eductible temporary differences, unused tax lo
ttributable to the following:

sses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

ol As at As at

articulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

ax losses 148.39 84.26

Inabsorbed depreciation 0.44 0.0/

ieductible temporary differences ©7.80 2590
Total 216.63 107.53

¥ effect of the aforesaid unrecognised deferred tax assels 60.27 509G

Jote:
jeferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of above item
vhich the Company can use the benefit therefrom.

¢, because it s not probable that future taxable profit will be available agamst

The Unrecognised Tax Losses carried Forward will expire as follows:-

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at

Particulars As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Assessment Years: T
2018-2019
2019-2020
2020-2021
2021-2022 p
2022-2023 0.61 061
2023-2024 0.63 0.63
2024-2025 1.84 1.84
2025-2026 81.18 81.18
B 2026-2027 64.14 ;
Total 148.39 84.26

'33. TAX RECONCILIATION

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended Year ended

Reconciliation of tax expense

Profit/(loss) before tax

Enacted income tax rate (%) applicable to the Company #

Income tax (credit)/debit calculated at enacted income tax rate

Effect of expenses that are not deductible

Effect of unused tax losses and tax offsets not recognised as deferred tax assets
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{108.88) {11580
27.82% 27.88%
{30.29) {32.23)
(0.06) 317
30.35 29.06

# The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corp
income under the Indian Tax Law.

orate tax rate of 27.820% at which the Company is liable to pay tax on taxable

34. PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON GOING CON

CERN BASIS

v has incurred net loss of Rs.108.88 lakhs during the year ended M

w subsidiaries of Rs. 1,236.17 la

The Compan
lakhs which includes payables to fello
worth of the Company eroded. Howev
achieve full capacity utilization in near future. The Company also
FTWZ.

khs and current assets of Rs, 1,678.48 lakhs. Due to accumulated losses, N
er the Company is expanding its FTWZ Business and getting more clients over past few quarters and expecten to
focusing on higher margin business and focusing on cost control at Panvel and Khurja

arch 31, 2019 and the Company's current hiabilities are Rs. 2,044 o

35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s capital management objectives are:

- to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern; and

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders through optimisation of working
The Company monitors worki
The Company's objective for capital management I1s Lo maintain optimum overall
36. Frevious year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to comply
are not comparable with those of current year since the Company has commence

RV

ng capital on the basis of the amount of working capital

capital

working capital,

with requirement of Ind AS and Schedule U1, Previous year's Hygures
d warehousing operations w.e.f. July 01, 2017.

for and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of

Arshiya Logistics Services Limited
; ) v O |
el O ,,\-;ﬁ(__l.}_j | @_« ~—"
S E—— = — QWJ') il | -
Navnit Choudhary ~pramod Raahavan/
Director Director
DIN: 00613576 DIN: 07634838
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Arshiya Transport and
Handling Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March
2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
(hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the
financial position of the Company as at 31% March 2019, and its financial performance
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the Note no. 20 of the Financial Statement, regarding preparation of
financial statements on going concern basis, which indicates that the Company has incurred
net losses and as of that date their accumulated losses is resulting in negative net worth of
Company. Arshiya Limited, the Parent Company, has given a support letter to extend, for the
foreseeable future and any financial support which may be required. Therefore, the financial
statement is prepared on going concern basis. Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the
above said matter. J—

Yl e
Head Office: 714-715, Tulsiani Chambers, 212, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel.: +91 2 :/Fafaﬁ;-b 22 3021 8595
o

Other Offices: 44 - 46, “C" Wing, Mittal Court, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel.: +9122 4 AR 91 22 45109722
URL : www.cas.ind.in S

Branch : Bengaluru
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s report (but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

That Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Compan%g%eporﬁng
process.
. g

Continuation sheet. ..
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
Professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

N Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

/e \
(= MUnge E)
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the
Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as
we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

2.  Further to our comment in the Annexure A, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act,
we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules there under;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Company as on 31 March, 2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we
report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31t March, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f. The matters described in the paragraphs above Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Company;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act; ZaveD; g
R
Q

;
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration is paid by the Company to its directors during the year
hence the provisions of section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

i.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have pending litigation which would impact the

financial position.

ii. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

ili.  There is no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

[
s
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Vijay Napawaliya ,\:;:’ { "84, / %}f
Partner 7N e Y/
Membership No. 109859 NS/
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 25/05/2019
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited on the financial statements for the
year ended 315t March 2019)

(i) The Company does not have fixed assets therefore the Provisions of Clause 3 (i) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i1) The nature of business of the Company does not require any inventory during the
year therefore the Provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the
Provisions of Clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  The Company has not made any loan, investment, guarantees and securities to
any person specified under section 185 and section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore the Provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning
of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified. During the year, no order has been passed by the Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court
or any other Tribunal.

(vi)  The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified under Section
148(1) of the Act, the Provisions of Clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(vil) (a) According to the records of the company and information and explanations
given to us, the Company has generally been regular except delays in tax deducted
at source and interest thereon, in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, , goods
and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities,
as applicable, during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such statutory dues
were outstanding as at 31st March, 2019 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable except Tax deducted at Source amounting to
Rs. 5.66Lakh and interest on TDS Rs. 7.88 Lakh, respectively.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and goods and service tax,
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information
ues in respect of

Continuation sheet...
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loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank and government as at
balance sheet date. There are no dues to debenture holders as at the balance
sheet date.

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not
raise any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including
debt instruments) and no term loans was raised during the year. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such case by the Management.

(xi)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year.

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to it the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance
with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) under Section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

| JrepeE

\
Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25/05/2019
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited on the financial statements for the
year ended 31t March 2019.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Transport
and Handling Limited (“the Company”) as of 315t March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Continuation sheet...
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Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management, directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit of test of
controls, in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

( IQ oppe¥” g
Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25/05/2s5019

Continuation sheet...



ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED
BALAISCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

(Rupees in Lakhs)

BaTEl P As at As at
articulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Current assets
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 0.02 0.42
Total Current Assets 0.02 0.42
TOTAL ASSETS 0.02 0.42
FQUITY AND LIABILITIES
tquity
(a) Equity Share capital 5 5.00 5.00
(h) Other Equity 6 (1,079.59) (964.74)
Total Equity (1,074.59) (959.74)
Liabilities
Mon Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 7 - 936.79
Totai Non-Current Liabilities - 936.79
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 8 1,059.68 5,10
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 9 1.37 (5.96
/b) Other Current Liabilities 10 13.56 17.31
Total Current Liabilities 1,074.61 23.37
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 0.02 0.42

See accompanying notes 1 - 21 to the financial statements

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firn Reg.No.101720W/W100355

[’_ p"q/}cy} C ""'7"/_
II:\/

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership Number 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Arshiya Transport and Handling Linmted
Y R Y \\
——
Navnit Choudhary Vingd Parekh
Director Director

DIN : 00613576 DIN : 06529752

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2019




ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
N
oluk March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(I) INCOME

Revenue from operations - &
(II) Total Income - ~
(III) EXPENSES

(a) Finance costs 11 113.92 102.09

(b) Other expenses 12 0.93 1.23
(IV) Total Expenses (a) to (b) 114.85 103.32
(V) Loss before exceptional items and tax (II-1IV}) (114.85) (103.32)
Exceptional Items - i}
Loss before tax (114.85) (103.32)
(VI) Tax expense 21

Current tax - -

Deferred tax . ;
Loss for the year (114.85) (103.32)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (0OCI) = "
Item not to be reclassified to profit and loss : - 5
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (114.85) (103.32)
(VII) Earnings per equity share (Face Value Rupees 10 each)

Basic and Diluted 13 (229.70) (206.64)

See accompanying notes 1 - 21 to the financial statements

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.NalOl?ZOW}WlOOBSS

( i;' j"%% Vo “’73
=

Vijay Napawaliya

Partner
Membership Number 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2019

Director Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directqgrs
Arshiya Transport and Handling Li e

) G/ mir A O /
R —
Navnit Choudhary Vinod Parekh

DIN : 00613576 DIN : 06529752




ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Equity Share Capital

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Hacticiilsie _Ba[ance at the Balance at the end of
Beginning of the year the year

As at March 31, 2018 5.00 5.00

As at March 31, 2019 5.00 5.00

Other Equity

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Equity component of
Particulars Retained Earnings loan from Parent Total
Company

As at March 31, 2017 (1,163.82) 302.40 (861.42)
Loss for the year (103.32) = (103.32)
Other comprehensive income - - -

As at March 31, 2018 (1,267.14) 302.40 (964.74)
Loss for the year (114.85) - (114.85)
Other comprehensive income for the year = o ~

As at March 31, 2019 (1,381,99) 302.40 (1,079.59)
Total Equity (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Total

As at March 31, 2018 (959.74)
As at March 31, 2019 {1,074.59)

See accompanying notes 1 - 21 to the financial statements

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg.No.101720W/W10035

5

=
{ ijﬂ":ﬂ% 4T /

vijay Napawaliya \(;:{ MUMBA!

Partner .c’\
Membership Number 109859 \%,P?M

, N0 pi 0
Place: Mumbai S

Date: May 25, 2019

Arshiya Transport and\Handling\Limited

For and on behalf of the Board bf Directors
" Gsmar =09 \ -

—e——
Navnit Choudhary inod Parekh

Director
DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2019

Director
DIN . 06529752




ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss before Tax (114.85) (103.32)
Adjustments for:

Finance costs 113.92 102.09
Operating loss before working capital changes (0.93) (1.23)
Changes in working capital:

Decrease/(Increase) in other financial liabilities 0.41 (1.28})

Decrease in other current liabilities (5.25) (1.96)
Cash generated from operations (5.77) (4.47)
Income taxes paid = =
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) (5.77) (4.47)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from related parties (net) 5.37 4.12
Net cash generated from financing activities (B) 5.37 4.12
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B) (0.40) {0.35)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.42 0.77
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.02 0.42

Balances with bank:
- in current account 0.02 0.42
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.02 0.42

See accompanying notes 1 - 21 to the financial statements

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No.101720W/W100355

(or

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner

For and on behalf of

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2019

the Board bf Directors
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
" A =0V \
#’-" -

Vinod Parekh
Director
DIN ; 06529752
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ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Corporate Information

Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited 'the Company', was incorporated on March 5, 2010 to engage in the business of transport
and handling of containers/goods within India including movement of containers, cargo, goods trains using Indian Railway Network
and also to acquire, procure, obtain, on lease/license or otherwise container trains, rakes, wagons, bogies and create, develop or
obtain on lease/license basis Railway sidings, Rail yards and Warehouse required for business of the Company, The registered office
of the Company is located at 301, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai City
MH 400018.These statements comprise financial statements of Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited (CIN
U63030MH2010PLC200604) for the year ended March 31, 2019.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 were approved and adopted by board of directors in
their meeting held on May 25, 2019,

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Financial Information of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The Financial Information are presented in Indian rupee {INR), which is
entity’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

(b)

(i)

(i}

(<)
O]

(ii)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of goods or rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

Generally, control is transfer upon shipment of goods to the customer or when the goods is made available to the customer,
provided transfer of title to the customer occurs and the Company has not retained any significant risks of ownership or future
obligations with respect to the goods shipped.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring
services to a customer as specified in the contract, net off allowances, trade discounts and excluding amounts collected on behalf of
third parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government), Consideration is generally due upcn satisfaction
of performance obligations and the receivable is recognized when it becomes uncenditional.

The following are the specific revenue recognition criteria:

Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the
effective interest rate method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which 15 generally when
shareholders approve the payment of dividend.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside profit or loss either in other
comprehensive income (OCI) or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initiai recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that s noE
a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.




(iii)

(d)

(i

(i

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(a)
(b)

(e)

ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT payable for a year is charged to the profit or loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available in the profit and
loss as deferred tax with a corresponding asset only to the extent that there is probable certainty that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The said asset is
shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ under Deferred Tax. The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the
asset to the extent the Company does not have the probable certainty that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finanaial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets -Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Financial
assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
a) Financial assets at fair value

b) Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair
value through profit or loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income}.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment)
unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash
flow.

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flow and selling financial assets.

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets - Derecognition
A financial assets (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed form the Company's statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from the asset.

Financial liabilities - Initial recognition and measurement:
The financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. g

R




(f

(g9)

(h)

(i

ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
income or expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of financial instruments, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are approximate at their fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.

Financial Liabilities - Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised Initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial Liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another, from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Compound Instruments

An issued financial instrument that comprises of both the liability and equity components are accounted as compound financial
instruments. The fair value of the liability component is separated from the compound instrument and the residual value is
recognised as equity component of other financial instrument. The liability component is subsequently measured at amortised cost
whereas the equity component is not remeasured after initial recognition, The transaction costs related to compound lnstrumentsr
are allocated to the liability and equity components in the proportion to the allocation of gross proceeds. Transaction costs related
to equity component is recognised directly in equity and the cost related to liability component is included in the carrying amount of
the liability component and amortised using effective interest method,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. It is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using
equivalent period government securities interest rate. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes
to the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain
then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset. i

Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions
for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief
operating decision maker evaluates the Company‘s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners of the Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take intc account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversicn of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Current/non current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as
current when L is:




)

(k)

m

)]

3A

ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting periad

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and cash in hand and short-term deposits with banks having
original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off Lakhs in decimals as per the requirement of
Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities,
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and
expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a matenal adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of valuation of deferred tax assets.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

Recent Accounting pronouncements

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

On March 30,2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 - Leases and certain amendment to existing Ind
AS. These amendments shall be applicable to the Company frem April 01, 2019. N

A) ISSUE OF IND AS 116 - LEASES
Ind AS 116 will supersede the current standard on leases i.e. Ind AS 17- Leases. As per Ind AS 116, the lessor will have to bring to
books all the non-cancellable portion of leasing arrangement.

B) AMENDMENT TO EXISTING STANDARD

The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards
i. Ind AS 101- First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

ii. Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations

iii. Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

iv. Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements

v, Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

vi, Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits

vii. Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

viii. Ind AS 28 - Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars AR At ARt
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance with bank in current account 0.02 0.42
Total 0.02 0.42




ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

5. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

i. Authorised Share Capital

o Equity Share of Rs.10 each

S
As At March 31, 2019 50,000 5.00
As At March 31, 2018 50,000 5.00

50,000 (As At March 31, 2018: 50,000) Equity shares of Rs 10 each

ii. Issued subscribed and paid up equity shares

ik Amount
Particulars Number (Rupees in Lakhs)
As At March 31, 2019 50,000 5.00
As At March 31, 2018 50,000 5.00
50,000 (As At March 31, 2018: 50,000) Equity shares of Rs 10 each

iii. Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of shares, namely, equity shares having par value of Rupees 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

iv. Shares held by Holding Company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Holding Company are as below:

As at As at

Rarticulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Arshiya Limited

No. of Equity shares 50,000 50,000
Percentage Holding 100% 100%

v. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Number % Holding Number % Holding

Equity shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid
Arshiya Limited 49,400 o 49,400
Shares held with Nominee and jointly shareholders 600 1007% 600 1B




ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

6. OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and Surplus

(Rupees in Lakhs)

As at

As at

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a) Retained Earnings (1,381.99) (1,267.14)
(b) Equity component of loan from Parent Company 302.40 302.40
Total (1,079.59) (964.74)
(a) Retained Earnings (Rupees in Lakhs)

_ As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening balance (1,267.14) (1,163.82)
Loss for the year (114.85) (103.32)

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) = B
Closing balance (1,381.99) (1,267.14)

Nature & purpose of reserves

(a) Retained Earnings:

(b) Equity component of loan from Parent Company:

equity component by the Parent Company.

Retained earnings are the losses of the Company earned till date net of apropriations.

The difference between the fair value of interest free loans on the date of issue and the transition price is recognised as a deemed

For computation of the fair value benefit, the Company has estimated the fair value of the financial liability on the date of issue of
considering complete market interest rates adjusted to the facts and circumstances relevant to the Company.

7. NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

(Rupees in Lakhs)

As at As at
iculars
Particula March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Loan from Holding Company* (Refer Note 14) - 936,79
Total = 936.79
* Note:
Loan from Holding Company is interest free and repayable on demand.
8. CURRENT BORROWINGS
(Rupees in Lakhs)
= N As at As at
rticular
i